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PITTS Gc MATTE  

a coiporation of 

certified public accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Chairman and Members of the St. Mary Parish Council 
Franklin, Louisiana 

Opinions  
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, the aggregate 
remaining fund information, and the respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund, Road 
Construction & Maintenance Fund, and Sanitation Fund, and the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, and the related notes to the financial statements which 
collectively comprise the Council's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents under 
Basic Financial Statements. We also have audited the financial statements of each of the Council's 
nonmajor governmental funds presented as supplementary information, as defined by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board, in the accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements 
and individual fund budgetary comparison schedules as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, as 
listed in the table of contents under Supplementary Information — Nonmajor Governmental Funds. 

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the accompanying financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component 
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Council as of December 31, 
2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the 
respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund, Road Construction & Maintenance Fund, and 
Sanitation Fund, Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net 
Position in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
1n addition, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective fmancial position of each 
nonmajor governmental fund of the Council as of December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in 
financial position, and respective budgetary comparisons, where applicable thereof, for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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We did not audit the financial statements of nineteen of the thirty-two discretely presented component 
units, which represent 85 percent, and 90 percent respectively, of the assets, and revenues of the 
discretely presented component units. In addition we did not audit any of the assets or liabilities within 
the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports 
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those twenty 
component units in the component unit amounts presented within the Statement of Net Position, 
Statement of Activities, and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, as listed in the table of 
contents, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

Basis for Opinions  
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Arnerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards  
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perforin the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
rnaterial misstatement. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Council and to meet our others ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirernents related to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements 
Manageinent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial staternents in 
accordance with accounting principles generally acceptecl in the United States of America; this includes 
the clesign, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

ln preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Council's ability to continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objcctives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud rnay involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Council's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those chargecl with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Management has ornitted Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opithoh on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing 
information. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Contributions and related notes, and Schedule 
of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, as listed in the table of contents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Council. The accompanying component unit 
information listed in Supplementary Information — Component Units in the table of contents, the 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniforrn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements  
for Federal Awards, and the information listed as General Supplementary Information in the table of 
contents are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements of the Council. 

The information listed as Supplementary Information — Component Units, the Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards and the inforrnation listed as General Supplementary Information in the table of 
contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information, except for that portion marked "unaudite& on which we express no opinion, has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements of the Council, 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial stateinents or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on 
our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
The infonnation marked as '‘unaudited” has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 3,2024 
on our consideration of the Council's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and in considering the Council's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

August 15, 2025 
Morgan City, Louisiana 
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ST. MARV PARISH COUNCIL 
Statonient of Net Position 

December 31, 2023 

Total 
Primary 

Primly Government Government 
Governmental Business-type Component & Component 

Activities Acliviiies Tota] LIMB Units 

ASSETS 
Curlew assels 

      

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,456,186 $ 365 S 3,456,551 S 29,929,064 9 33,385,615 
'Investments 

 

2,013,474 917 2,014,391 23,565,56I 25,579,952 
Receivables (act of allowances 

for uneelleeli bias) 

 

754,814 493,340 1,248,154 6,646,882 7,895,036 

Othei receivables 

   

- 10,757,483 10,757,481 

Lease receivable 

 

1,099,534 

 

1,099,534 

 

1,099,534 
Due from component units 

 

1,001,500 

 

1,001,500 50,809 1,052,309 

Due from other goverinnents 

 

8,459,266 8,031 8,467,297 4,255,388 12,722,685 

Prepaid expenses 

    

1,469,904 1,469,904 

liwuntoi ies 

    

1,042,873 1,042,873 
Other assets 

 

4,673 

 

4,673 263,373 268,046 
[Mental balances 

 

(779,012) 779,012 

  

. 

Iatal Clirrert assets 

 

16,010,435 1,281,665 17,292,100 77,981,337 95,273,437 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted Assets: 

     

- 
Cash 

  

1,266,988 1,266,9138 13,145,206 14,412,194 
investments 

  

635,957 635,957 938,820 1,574,777 
internal balances 

 

(5,635,885) 5,635,885 

   

Other 

    

1,524 1,524 

1 otal resit iined assets 

investment in Berwick Bayon Vista Joint 
Waterworks Commission 

 

(5,635,885) 7,538,830 1,902,945 14,085,550 

379,673 

15,988,495 

379,673 

Nct pension asset 

   

- 

  

Tolal nocurrent assets 

 

(5,635,885) 7,538,830 1,902,945 14,465,223 16,368,168 

Capital Assess 

      

Land and improvements 

 

1,919,874 3,762,536 5,682,410 6,401,362 12,083,772 
Buildings, net of accumulated depreeintion 

 

6,463,928 836,232 7,300,160 52,497,224 59,797,384 

Improvements other than buildings, net of 

accumulated depreciation 

 

17,860,496 14,239,394 32,099,890 18,264,308 50,364,198 
Equipment and fornilure, net of accumulated 

depreeialion 

 

1,935,1356 1,183,491 3,119,347 16,593,237 I4,712,584 
lnfrasiruettire, net of accumulated depreciaiion 

 

70,101,376 

 

70,101,376 20,698,420 90,799,796 

Constructton in progress 

 

3,734,027 

 

3,734,027 16,157,641 19,891,668 

Righuof-use lcascs net of aceninulated 

   

- 

  

amortization 

 

418,839 159,975 578,814 

 

578,814 

Total capital assets 

 

102,434,396 20,181,628 122,616,024 130,612,192 253,228,216 

Total assets 

 

112,808,946 29,002,123 141,811,069 223,058,752 364,869,821 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

      

Gain en iefunding 

 

12,000 

 

12,000 

 

12,000 

Dcbt rHemption costs 

  

255,900 255,900 228,308 484,208 
Related lo pensions 

 

3,001,827 828,401 3,830,228 3,621,476 7,451,704 
Related to WEB 

 

4,017,475 714,899 4,732,374 1,056,803 5,789,177 

Thifil deferred outflows of resources 

 

7,031,302 1,799,200 8,836,502 4,906,587 13,737,089 

"fetal assets and deferred outflows of iesources 

 

119,840,248 $ 30,801,323 S 150,641,571 $ 227,965,339 S 378,606,910 
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Tolal 

Primary 

Ninety Government Government 

Governmental Business-type Component & Component 

Activities Aelivities Total thits Unils 

LIABILITIES 

CulTent liabilities 

      

Accounts payable $ 2,628,996 $ 289,386 $ 2,918,382 $ 4,828,191 $ 7,746,573 

Contracts payable 

 

197,004 

 

197,004 20,987 217,991 

Retainage payable 

 

68,189 

 

68,189 82,021 150,210 

Accrued liabilities 

 

264,707 

 

264,707 2,253,027 2,517,734 

Accrued intei est payable 

 

305,442 

 

305,442 13,288 318,739 

Due to St, Mary Parish Council 

   

- 132,958 132,958 
Due to component units 

    

31,614 31,614 

DOC to other governments 

    

431,524 431,524 

Payable from restricted assets 

    

777,020 777,020 

Other liabili lies 

    

170,748 170,748 
Current poi tion of long.term debt 

 

2,778,800 1,019,000 3,797,800 2,270,048 6,067,848 

Cm rent poriion of lease obligation payable 

 

297,974 163,519 461,493 

 

461,493 

Total current liabilities 

 

6,541,112 1,471,905 8,013,017 11,011,426 19,024,443 

Nonetarenl liabililies 

      

Other post-employment benefits 

 

9,704,754 1,388,254 11,093,008 8,044,255 19,137,263 

Compensated absences 

 

249,000 

 

249,000 392,696 641,696 

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 

 

33,026,376 4,586,124 37,612,500 17,759,704 55,372,204 

Due to St. Mary Parish Coimeil 

    

528,620 528,620 
Net pension liability 

 

2,322,414 640,907 2,963,321 4,297,080 7,260,401 
Landfill CIOSM and post-elosuie 

care costs 

  

11,290,000 11,290,000 

 

11,290,000 
Lease liability 

     

• 

Lease obligation payable 

 

104,452 570,187 674,639 

 

674,639 

Total nonetillent liabilities 

 

45,406,996 18,475,472 63,882,468 31,022,355 94,904,823 

Total liabilities 

 

51,948,108 19,947,377 71,895,485 42,033,781 113,929,266 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

 

. 

    

Unearned revenue 

 

- 

 

- 1,913,125 1,913,125 
Deferred inflow of resources relate to revenue 

 

843,698 

 

843,698 

 

843,698 

Deferred inflows related to pension 

 

295;496 81,548 377,044 672,872 1,049,916 

Deferred inflows related to OPEB 

 

7,725,349 1,658,388 9,383,737 2,933,965 12,317,702 

Total deferred inflows of tesourees 

 

8,864,543 1,739,936 1(7,604,479 5,519,962 16,124,441 

Total liabilities arid clamed inflows of resources 

 

60,812,651 21,687,313 82,499,964 47,553,743 130,053,707 

NEf POSITION 

      

Invested ill capilal assets, net of related debt 

 

66,226,794 14,416,529 80,643,323 1 l 1,773,913 192,417,236 

Restricted for. 

      

Capital projects 

 

- 

 

- 2,061,926 2,061,926 
Debt service 

 

2,654,356 1,150,683 3,805,039 1,797,2(79 5,602,248 

Other purposes 

 

3,912,065 

 

3,912,065 1,711,4(74 5,623,469 

Unrestricted (deficit) 

 

(13,765,618) (6,453,2(72) (20,218,820) 63,067,144 42,848,324 

Total net position 

 

59,027,597 9, l 14,010 68,141,607 180,411,596 248,553,203 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 

 

119,840,248 $ 30,801,323 $ 150,641,571 $ 227,965,339 $ 378,606,910 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Sta/ernent of Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Functions/Prozrams Expenses 

 

Program Revenues 

  

Net (Expense) Revent.in and Changes in Net Assets 

 

Primary Government 

 

Component 

V...W.,5 

Total 
Pornary 

Government 
& Component 

Units 

Charges 

for 

Services 

Operaring 

Grains and 
Contributions 

Capital 
Grams and 

Contributions 
Governmental 

ActIvifires 

Business- 
type 

Aotivitties Total 

PRIMARY GOVERNDIENT: 
Governmental activities: 

     

General government $ 7,655,754 $ 1,077,036 S 672,979 $ 470,726 $ (5,435,413) 

 

$ (5,435,413) 

 

$ (5,435,413) 
Public safety 5 189,354 24,696 

 

335,239 (4,829,419) 

 

(4,829,419) 

 

(4,829,419) 
Public works 6,873,801 

 

981,386 2,754,418 (3,137,997) 

 

(3,137,997) 

 

(3,137,997) 
Sanitation 2,47I,091 1,643,315 33,267 71,662 (722,847) 

 

(722,847) 

 

(722,847) 
CilitLirz & reaeation 2,372,890 60,270 150 

 

(2,312,470) 

 

(2,312,470) 

 

(2,312,470) 
Health & welfare 1,747,155 178,119 319,211 

 

(1,249,825) 

 

(1,249,825) 

 

(1,249,825) 
Urban redevelopment & housing 532,651 

 

537,317 

 

4,666 

 

4,666 

 

4,666 
Economic development & assistance 247,191 

   

(247,191) 

 

(247,191) 

 

(247,191) 
Interest on righr.of-use leases 11,690 

   

(11,690) 

 

(11,690) 

 

(11,690) 
Interest on long-term eebt 1,125,974 

   

(1,125,974) 

 

(1,125,974) 

 

(1,125,974) 
fees on iong-term debt 7,900 

   

(7,900) 

 

(7,900) 

 

(7,900) 

Total governmental activIdes 28,235,451 2,983,436 2.543,910 3,632,045 (19,076,060) 

 

(19,076,060) 

 

(19,076,060) 

Business-type activities: 

         

Solid waste Landfill 9,997,243 3,692,579 

   

$ (1,904,664) (1;904.664) 

 

(1,904,664) 
Small animal control 429,130 98,913 

   

(330,217) (330,217) 

 

(330,217) 

Kemper Wilhams Park 574,873 421,545 34,943 

  

(118,385) (118,385) 

 

(118,385) 

Total business-type acovines 6,601,246 4,213,037 34,943 

  

(2,353,266) (2,353,266) 

 

(2,353,266) 

Total primary government 34,836,697 7,196,473 2,578,853 3,632,045 (19,076,060) (2 353,266) (21,429,326) 

 

(21,429 326) 

COMPONENT UNITS: 

         

General governrne¢I 3,942,658 1,771,724 

     

$ (2,170,934) (2,170,934) 

Water & sewer 12,750,459 7,057,663 

     

(5,692,796) (5,692,796) 

Drainage 5,037,553 

 

51,531 

    

(4.986,022) (4,986,022) 

fire Protection 1,688;513 

 

47,946 

    

(1,640,567) (1,640,567) 

Reoreation 4,269,799 1,036,004 772,125 

    

(3,051,670) (3,061,670) 

Health and Welfare 136,850 

      

(136,850) (136,850) 

Rental fees 

 

88,142 

     

88,142 88,142 

Medical Care 38,365,457 29,284,658 11,664.611 ≥.763,437 

   

6,347,239 6,347,239 

Libran; 2,836,317 26,752 12.637 

    

(2,796,928) (2,796,928) 

Tourism 905.744 7,342 412,793 

    

(485,609) (485,609) 

Public safety 1,096,856 - 5,997 

    

.(1,090,859) (1,090,859) 

Interest and fees on long-term debt 653,122 

      

(653,122) (653,122) 

Total col-noon:en] unna 71,683,338 39,272,285 12,567,640 3,763,437 

   

(I6,279,976) (I6,279,976) 

Total primary government and component liras S 106,520,035 $ 46,468,758 $ 14,946,493 $ 7,399,482 

    

$ (37,709,302) 



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 

General revenues' 
Taxes' 

Primary Government 

 

Component 
Units 

Total 
Pnmary 

Government 
& Component 

Units 
Governmental 

Acrrvities 

Business- 
type 

Aetiviries Lotal 

 

Sales and use $ 7,353,645 

 

$ 7,353,645 $ 1,261,428 $ 8,615,073 
Ad valorem taxes lexied for general 

purposes 3,705,589 

 

3,705,589 20,125,428 23,831.017 
Ad valorem taxes levied for debt 

service 184,066 

 

184,066 

 

184,066 
Severance taxes 1,2.38,296 

 

1,238,296 

 

1,238,296 
licnel-Motel tax 

   

552,327 552,327 
Other taxes, penalties, & interest, etc. 109,246 

 

109.246 

 

109,246 
Royalty road funds 1,893,765 

 

1,893,765 

 

1,393,765 
Occupational Licenses 

    

- 
State shored revenue 1,159,948 

 

1,159,948 269,583 1,429,531 
Special assessments 

    

- 
Investment earnings (loss) 435,367 $ 47,615 482,982 1,607,202 2,099,184 
Lease revenue 246,852 

 

246,852 

 

2.46,852 
Gain (loss) OR dispositiou of assets 

  

- 20,765 20,765 
State Grants 

  

- - - 
Insurance recoveries 

   

13,873 13,873 
Payments from St. Mary Parish Council 

   

460,113 460,113 
Disaster reGe£ 

     

NEscelaneous 

   

115,488 115,483 
Nonemployer pension contributions 56,227 

 

56,227 254,222 310,449 
Operating (I,715,000) I,715,000 - 

 

- 
Capital contrilmtmas 

   

(30,398) (30,398) 

Total general revenue,s, special items, 
Total general reveaies, special gems, and transfers 14,668,001 1,762,615 16,430,616 25,336,620 42,563,001 

Special ltem 
Transfer from abolished districts 

   

(109,176) (109,176) 

Total special item 

     

Change in net position (4,408,059) (590,651) (4,998,710) 9,056,644 4,057,934 

Net position - beginning of year (as previously stated) 63,435,656 9,704,661 73,140,317 171,495,39 l 244,635,708 

Prior period adjustraent 

   

(140,439) (!49.439) 

Net position-beginning of year (as restated) 63,435,656 9,704,661 73,140,317 171,354,952 244,495,269 

Net potion - end of year $ 59,027,597 $ 9,114,010 $ 68,141,607 $180,411,596 $ 248.553,203 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 



ST_ MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
December 31, 2023 

ASSETS 

General 
Fund 

Road 
Construction 

& Maintenance 
Fund 

Sanitation 
Fund 

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund 

CDBG 
Recovery 

Fund 

Combined 
Sewer 

Conoruction 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Govemmental 

Funds 

      

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

418 $ - $ - $ 1,089,I87 
610,487 988,025 

$ 1,145 $ - $ 2,365,436 
152,826 262,136 

$ 3,456,186 
2,013,474 

Receivables (net of allowances 
for uncollectibles) I 87,703 66,499 198,001 257,626 

  

44,985 754,814 
Lease receivable 1,097,286 

      

1,097,286 
Due from component units 666,556 

    

334,944 

 

1,001,500 
Due from other governrnents 3,526,494 495,901 570,121 2,968,215 

  

898,535 8,459,266 
Advance to other funds 

     

463,340 2,438,909 2,902,249 
Other assets 

   

4,673 

   

4,673 
Total assets $ 5,478,457 $ 562,400 $ 1,378,609 $ 5,307,726 $ 1,145 $ 95I,110 $ 6,010,001 $ 19,689,448 

UABILIT1ES 

        

Accounts payable $ 1,577,014 $ 356,227 $ 391,491 $ - S - S 529 $ 303,735 $ 2,628,996 
Contracts payable 

   

I97,004 

   

197,004 
Retainage payable 

   

68,189 

   

68,189 
Accrued liabilities 180,116 76,344 1,6 I 3 

   

6,634 264,707 
Advance from other funds 2,468,154 683,753 201,672 5,547,423 

  

416,144 9,317,146 
Total liabilities 4,225,284 1,116,324 594,776 5,812,616 

 

529 726,513 12,476,042 

Deferred inflows of resources 843,698 

      

843,698 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 5,068,982 1,116,324 594,776 5,812,616 

 

529 726,513 13,319,740 

FUND BALANCES 

        

Fund balances (deficits) 

        

Nonspendab le - non-current receivables 666,556 

    

334,944 

 

1,001,500 
Restricted for 

        

Use in specific geographic areas 

      

1,762,203 1,762,203 

Debt service 

      

2,351,756 2,351,756 

Assigned for 

        

General Government 

      

181,182 181,182 

PubIic safety 

      

3,820 3,820 

Culture & recreation 

      

103,615 103,615 

Health & welfare 

      

11,951 11,951 

Debt service 

      

608,042 668,042 

Sanitation 

  

783,833 

  

615,637 

 

1,399,470 

Capi tal projects 

    

1,145 

  

1,145 

Unassigned (257,081) (553,924) 

 

(504,890) 

  

260,919 (1,054,976) 

Total fund balances 409,475 (553,924) 783,833 (504,890) 1,145 950,581 5,283,488 6,369,708 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances $ 5,478,457 $ 562,400 $ 1,373,609 $ 5,307,726 $ 1,145 $ 951,110 $ 6,010,001 $ 19,689,448 

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2023 

Reconciliation of the total fund balance - total governmental funds 
to the total net position of governmental activities: 

Total fund balance - Governmental Funds 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 

are different because: 

Accrued interest income for right-of-use leases in governmental activities is 
not current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported in the 
governmental funds balance sheet. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental 
funds balance sheet. 

Interest payable on fong-term debt does not require current financial 
resources, and, therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability 
in the governmental funds balance sheet. 

$ 6,369,708 

2,248 

102,434,396 

(305,442) 

Noncurrent liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
are not reported in the governmental funds balance 
sheet: 

Long-term debt (35,805,176) 
Lease obligation (402,426) 
Compensated absences (249,000) 
Other post-employment benefit plans (9,704,754) 
Net pension liability (2,322,414) (48,483,770) 

The deferred outflows and inflows of resources that do not affect the current 
period are not reported in the governmental fund balance sheet: 

Deferred outflows gain on refunding 12,000 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 3,001,827 
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEBs 4,017,475 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (295,496) 
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEBs (7,725,349) (989,543) 

Net position of governmental activities $ 59,027,597 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund. Balances 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Road 
Construction 

General & Maintenance 
Fund Fund 

Sanitation 
Euiid 

Capital 
Improvement 

ainA 

Combined 
CDEG Sewer 

Recovery Construction 
Fund Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

 

Sales and use $ - $ - S 3,178,824 3 - S - $ - S 4,174,821 S 7,353,645 

Ad valorem 3,705,589 

   

184,666 3,889,655 

Other taxes, penalties, & interests, etc. 109,419 

    

109,419 

Intergovernmental revenues 

      

Federal grants 237,015 1,354,418 

 

202,518 66,125 544,407 2,404,483 

Medicaid 

      

State funds 

      

State grants 47,793 91,780 33,267 296,540 

 

170,691 640,071 

State revenue sharing 1,159,948 

    

1,159,948 

Royalty road funds 1,893,765 

    

1,893,765 

Parish road transpertation funds 479,279 

    

479,279 

Severance taxes 1,238,296 

    

1,238,296 

Local 

 

71,662 202,083 

 

335,239 608,984 

Riverboat fees 

    

1,400,000 1,400,000 

Licenses & permits 728,589 

   

26,518 755,107 

Fees, charges, & commission 216,460 1,643,315 

  

196,477 2,056,252 

Mosquito abatement 172,077 

    

172,077 

Lease Revenue 246,852 

    

246,852 

Investment earnings & interest 53,406 25,133 42,024 179,888 5,139 127,529 433,119 

Other revenues 90,731 410,327 

   

142,080 643,138 

Total revenues 8,006,I75 4,254,702 4,969,092 881,029 66,125 5,139 7,301,828 25,484,090 

EXPENDITURES 

      

Current: 

      

General government 6,886,943 

   

98,666 6,985,609 

Public safety 874,235 1!7,957 

  

2,761,462 3,753,654 

Public works 523,409 3,940,559 33,506 

  

251,628 4,749,102 

Sanitation 

 

2,465,799 

 

5,292 

 

2,471,091 

Culture & recreation 902,255 

   

293,707 1,195,962 

Health & welfare 841,012 40 

 

66,125 426,119 1,333,296 

Urban redevelopment & housing 

    

532,651 532,651 

Economic development & assistance 247,191 

    

247,191 

Miscellaneous 2,393 

    

2,393 

Capital outlay 

  

3,288,198 

 

83,693 3,371,891 

Right-ofUse leases 

      

Principal 84,570 84,134 

    

168,704 

Interest 2,495 6,964 

    

9,459 

Debt service 

      

Principal 

    

3,020,000 3,020,000 

Interest 

    

1,210,517 1,210,517 

Fees 

    

7,900 7,900 

Total expenditures 10,364,503 4,031,657 2,617,302 3,283,198 66,125 5,292 8,686,343 29,059,420 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (2,358,329) 223,045 2,351,790 (2,407,169) (153) (1,384,515) (3,575,330) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

      

Operating transfers in 2,000,000 400,000 

  

200,000 4.526,490 7,126,490 

Operating transfers out (865,000) (2,389,037) (2,636,000) (106,453) 

 

(2,845,000) (8,841.490) 

Total other financing sources (uaes) 1,135,000 (1,989,037) (2,636,000) (106,453) 200,000 1,681,490 (1,715,000) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 
and other uses (1,223,328) (1,765,992) (284,210) (2,513,622) 199,847 296,975 (5,290,330) 

Fund bidance (debits) at beginnning of year as previously stated. 2,916,458 1,212,068 1,068,043 2,008,732 1,145 750,734 3,702,858 11,660,038 

Prior.Period Adjustment (1,283,655) 

   

1,283,655 

 

Fund balance at beginning of year as restated 1,632,803 1,212,068 1,068,043 2,008,732 1,145 750,734 4,986,513 11,660,038 

Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ 409,475 $ (553,924) $ 783,833  S (504,890) S 1,145 S 950,581  $ 5,283,488  $ 6,369,708  

The accampanying notes are an integral part cif these financial stalernents. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Reconciliation of the changes in fund balances - total governmental 
funds to the change in net position of governmental activities: 

Net change in fund balance Governmental Funds $ (5,290,330) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statetnent of 
Activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the 
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
which depreciation ($7,064,730) was exceeded by capital outlays ($3,469,660) 
meeting the Council's Capitalization policy in the current period. 

Repayment of bond principal and lease obligations is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces noncurrent liabilities in the 
Statement of Net Position 

Repayments of principal on long term debt 3,043,800 
Lease obligation payments 305,732 

Net adjustment 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources; therefore, are not reported in 
governmental hinds as expenditures. 

Decrease in accrued compensated absences 81,000 
Increase in accrued interest income 2,248 
Decrease in accrued interest expense 70,339 
Amortize on lease assets (172,838) 
Amortize gain on refunding (12,000) 

Net adjustment 

Effects of recording net pension liability, other posternployment benefits liability, 
deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and other iterns related to these liabilities: 

Decrease in pension expense (570,715) 
Non employer pension contributions 56,227 
Increase on other postemployment benefit expense 1,673,548  

Net adjustment 

(3,595,070) 

3,349,532 

(31,251) 

1,159,060 

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (4,408,059) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

December 31, 2023 

Business-type Activities 

Enterprise Funds 

Reduction Small Kemper 
and Animal Williams 

Transfer Control Park 
Fund Fund Fund Total 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

    

Cash and cash equivalents S 125 $ - $ 240 $ 365 
ltivestments 917 

  

917 
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 482,672 2,435 8,233 493,340 
Due from other governments 8,031 

  

8,031 
Advance to other funds 929,125 

 

292,852 1,221.977 

Total current assets 1,420,870 2,435 301,325 1,724,630 

Noncurrent assets 

    

Restricted cash 1,266,988 

  

1,266,988 
Restricted investments 635,957 

  

635,957 

Restricted advances 5,635,885 

  

5,635.885 

Total restricted assets 7,538,830 

  

7,538,830 

Property, plant, and equipment 
(net of accumulated depreciation) 17,000,788 720,019 2,300,846 20,021,653 
Right-of-use leases 
(net of accumulated eli101 ti za ti on) 125,021 34,954 

 

159,975 
Total noncurrent assets 24,664,639 754,973 2,300,846 27,720,458 
Total assets 26,085,509 757,408 2,602,171 29,445,088 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

    

Debt redemption costs 255,900 

  

255,900 

Related to pension 577,562 130,924 119,915 828,401 
Related to OPEB 401,159 157,986 155,754 714,899 

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,234,621 288,910 275,669 1,799,200 

Total assets and deferred outflows 

of resources $ 27,320,130 $ 1,046,318 $ 2,877,840 $ 31,244,288 

LIABILITIES 

    

Current liabilities 

    

Accounts payable and accrued 

expenses $ 251,711 $ 12,652 $ 25,023 $ 289,386 
Lease obtigation payable within one year 151,705 11,814 

 

163,519 
Bonds payable within one year 1,019,000 

  

1,019,000 
Advance from. other Pinsk 301,742 141,223 

 

442,965 

Total cumin liabilities 1,724,158 165,689 25,023 1,914.070 

Long-term liabilities 

    

Other post-ernployment benefits 682,337 367,653 338,264 1,388,254 
Lease oblitaition payable 546,826 23,361 

 

570,187 
Bonds payable, including unamortized premium 4,586,124 

  

4,586,124 

Landfill closure and 
post-closure care costs 11,290,000 

  

11,290,1)00 
Nei pension liability 446,840 101,292 92,775 640,907 

Total long-terin liabilities 17,552,127 492,306 431,039 18,475,472 

Total liabilities 19,276,285 657,995 456,062 20,390,342 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

  

. 

 

Related to pension 56,855 12,888 11,805 81,548 
Related to other post-einployment benefits 967,531 335,199 355,658 1,658,388 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 

of resources 20,300.671 1,006,082 823,525 22,130,278 

FUND EQIJITY 

invested in capitaf assets, 

net of related debt 11,395,664 720,019 2,300,846 14,416,529 
Restricted 1,150,683 

  

1,150,683 
Unrestricted (5,526,888) (679,783) (246,531) (6,453,202) 

Total net position 7,019,459 40,236 2,054,315 9,114,010 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position $ 27,320,130 $ 1,046,318 2,877,840 $ 31,244,288 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Reduction 
and 

Transfer 
Fund 

Small 
Animal 
Control 

Fund 

Kemper 
Williams 

Park 
Fund Total 

   

Solid waste disposal fees $ 3,680,353 $ - $ $ 3,680,353 
Impound fees 

 

44,741 

 

44,741 
Admission fees 

  

11,822 11,822 
Campsite fees 

  

199,809 199,809 
Special events 

  

26,457 26,457 
Other 12,226 54,172 183,457 249,855 

Total operating revenues 3,692,579 98,913 421,545 4,213,037 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

    

Personal services 1,008,250 217,933 236,226 1,462,409 
Contractual services 204,059 

 

2,483 206,542 
Supplies 57,469 34,165 57,656 149,290 
Materials 737,105 8,453 10,510 756,068 
Utilities 74,518 25,825 133,177 233,520 
Repairs and maintenance 244,229 38,529 22,282 305,040 
Landfill closure costs 667,000 

  

667,000 
Equipment and rentals 949,222 14,287 6,184 969,693 
Miscellaneous 130,590 3,668 10,585 144,843 
Depreciation 1,149,077 65,323 72,950 1,287,350 
Amortization of capital leases 53,005 9,799 

 

62,804 
Insurance 84,813 10,596 22,820 118,229 

Total operating expenses 5,359,337 428,578 574,873 6,362,788 

Net operating income (loss) (1,666,758) (329,665) (153,328) (2,149,751) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

    

Investment earnings 47,808 (285) 92 47,615 
Gifts/donations 

  

34,943 34,943 
Interest (233,606) (552) 

 

(234,158) 
Fees (4,300) 

  

(4,300) 

Total non-operating revenues (190,098) (837) 35,035 (155,900) 

Income (]oss) before transfers (1,856,856) (330,502) (1 18,293) (2,305,651) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Operating transfers in 

    

General Fund 

 

265,000 250,000 515,000 
Sanitation Fund 1,200,000 

  

1,200,000 
Total transfers 1,200,000 265,000 250,000 1,715,000 

Change in net position (656,856) (65,502) 131,707 (590,651) 

Net position, beginning of year 7,676,315 105,738 1,922,608 9,704,66I 

Net position, end of year S 7,019,459 $ 40,236 $ 2,054,315 $ 9,114,010 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Reduction 
and 

Transfer 
Fund 

Small Kemper 
Animal Williams 
Control Park 
Fund Funcl Total 

  

Received from charges for services $ 3,864,980 $ 103,130 $ 420,791 $ 4,388,901 
Payments to suppliers for goods & services (2,530,193) (138,048) (272,358) (2,940,599) 
Payments to employees for services (1,178,898) (267,812) (297,933) (1,744,643) 

Net cash flows (deficiency) from operating activities 155,889 (302,730) (149,500) (296,341) 

Cash flows from noncapital fmancing activities: 

   

Due to other funds 261,798 (66,642) 195,156 
Contributions 

 

34,943 34,943 
Operating transfers in from other funds 1,200,000 265,000 250,000 1,715,000 

Advances to other funds 

 

(168,075) (168,075) 
Repayment of advances by other funds (374,368) 141,223 (233,145) 

Net cash fiows (deficiency) from noncapital financing activities . 1,087,430 339,581 116,868 1,543,879 

Cash flows from capital and related financial activities 

   

Fixed asset acquisitions (1,022,246) (42,779) (39,177) (1,104,202) 
Lease payments 519,804 6,213 526,017 
Debt payments (1,132,906) 

 

(1,132,906) 

Net cash flows (deficiency) from capital and related 
financing activities (1,635,348) (36,566) (39,177) (1,711,091) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

   

Investment earnings 47,808 (285) 92 47,615 
Sale of investments 174,860 - 174,860 

Net cash flows from investing activities 222,668 (285) 92 222,475 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (169,361) (71,717) (241,078) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,436,474 71,957 1,508,431 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,267,113 $ - $ 240 $ 1,267,353 

Shown in the accompanying Statement of Net Position as: 

   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 125 $ 240 $ 365 
Restricted cash 1,266,988 

 

1,266,988 

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,267,113 $ 240 $ 1,267,353 
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Business-type Activities 
Enterprise Funds  

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash, provided 
by operating activities: 

Reduction 
and 

Transfer 
Fund 

Small 
Animal 
Control 
Fund 

Kemper 
Williams 

Park 
Fund Total 

    

Operating income (loss) $ (1,666,758) $ (329,665) $ (153,328) $ (2,149,751) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

    

Depreciation and amortization 1,202,082 75,122 72,950 1,350,154 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 172,401 4,217 (754) 175,864 
Decrease (increase) in net pension asset 473,566 154,850 109,375 737,791 
Decrezoe (increase) in deferred outflows related to pension (457,288) (91,596) (92,137) (641,021) 
Decrease (increase) in deferred outflows related to other 

post-employrnent benefits 103,993 34,664 34,664 173,321 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses (48,188) (2,525) (6,661) (57,374) 
Increase (decrease) in land£'tlt closure costs 667,000 

  

667,000 
Increase (decrease) in other post-employrnent benefits 104,211 34,737 34,737 173,685 
Decrease in retainage payable 

    

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows related to pension (399,156) (136,221) (93,516) (628,893) 
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows related to other 

post-employment benefits (442,814) (147,605) (147,605) (738,024) 
Total adjustments 1,822,647 26,935 3,828 1,853,410 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 155,889 S (302,730) $ (149,500) $ (296,341) 

    

7 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetaq Comparison Schedule 
General Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual  

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
;Negative) 

   

Ad Valorem $ 3,350,000 $ 3,470,000 $ 3,705,589 $ 235,589 
Other taxes, penalties, & interests, etc. 120,000 125,000 109,419 (15,581) 

Intergovernmental revenues 

    

Federal grants 61,825 127,271 237,015 109,744 
State funds 

    

State grants 

 

33,792 47,793 14,001 
State revenue sharing 496,000 966,182 1,159,948 193,766 
Severance taxes 1,175,000 1,238,000 1,238,296 296 

Licenses & permits 721,500 721,500 728,589 7,089 
Fees, charges, & commission 178,000 l 78,000 216,460 38A 60 
Mosquito abatement 180,000 180,000 172,077 (7,923) 
Lease Revenue 

  

246,852 246,852 
Investment earnings & interest 21,800 21,800 53,406 31,606 
Other revenues 487,615 334,865 90,731 (244,134) 

Total revenues 6,791,740 7,396,410 8,006,175 609,765 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

General government 

    

Legislative 513,809 513,809 460,039 53,770 
Judicial 1,319,314 1,339,314 1,299,027 40,287 
Executive 283,531 353,531 337,705 15,826 
Elections 119,655 181,805 155,426 26,379 
Finance & administrative 1,310,153 1,358,753 1,184,777 173,976 
Courthouse 1,592,476 1,644,141 1,392,797 251,344 
Other 1,456,943 1,520,976 2,057,172 (536,196) 

Public safety 775,373 910,868 874,235 36,633 
Culture & recreation 991,291 1,014,441 902,255 112,186 
Health & welfare 617,055 702,743 684,142 18,601 
Economic development & assistance 29(,36 l 291,361 247,191 44,670 
Mosquito abatement 201,146 201,146 156,870 44,276 
Airport operations 300,393 473,014 523,409 (50,395) 
Miscellaneous 3,500 3,500 2,393 1,107 

Right-of-use leases 

    

Principal 

  

84,570 (84,570) 
Interest 

  

2,495 (2,495) 
Total expenditures 9,776,500 10,509,902 10,364,503 145,399 

Excess (deficiency) af revenues 
aver (under) expenditures (2,984,760) (3,113,492) (2,358,328) 755,164 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Operating transfers in 

    

Sanitation Fund 50,000 50,000 50,000 

 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund 1,400,000 1,400,000 l ,400,000 

 

Juror Comp. Fund 50,000 50,000 50,000 

 

Gaming Receipt Fund 450,000 500,000 500,000 

 

Operating transfers out 

    

Small Animal Control Fund (265,000) (265,000) (265,000) 

 

Jail Operating & Maintenance Fund 

 

(350,000) (350,000) 

 

Kemper Williams Park Fund (350,000) (250,000) (250,000) 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,335,000 1,135,000 1,135,000 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 
and other uses (1,649,760) (1,978,492) (1,223,328) 755,164 

Fund baIance (defcits) at beginning of year as previously stab 2,180,000 2,824,045 2,916,458 2,916,458 

Prior period adjustment 

 

- (1,283,655) (1,283,655) 

Fund balance at beginning of year as restated 2,180,000 2,824,045 1,632,303 (1,191,242) 

Fund balance at end of year $ 530,240 $ 845,553 $ 409,475 $ (436,078) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Road Construction & Maintenance Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

Federal grants $ 150,000 $ 1,688,024 $ 1,354,418 $ (333,606) 
State funds 

    

State grants 91,780 91,780 91,780 

 

Royalty road funds 3,200,000 2,700,000 1,893,765 (806,235) 
Parish road transportation funds 400,000 476,000 479,279 3,279 

Investment earnings & interest 1,500 1,500 25,133 23,633 
Other revenues 410,000 408,451 410,327 1,876 

Total revenues 4,253,280 5,365,755 4,254,702 (1,111,053) 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

Public worlcs 

    

Highways/streets & roads 3,540,342 3,722,342 3,514,219 208,123 
Road supervisor 109,914 109,914 113,228 (3,314) 
Bridges 235,026 215,026 194,570 20,456 
Avoca ferry 141,369 128,869 118,542 10,327 

Right-of-use leases 

    

Principal 

  

84,134 (84,134) 
Interest 

  

6,964 (6,964) 
Debt service 

Fees(Transfer to Bonding Agent) 

 

1,339,636 

 

1,339,636 
Total expenditures 4,026,651 5,515,787 4,031,657 1,484,130 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 226,629 (150,032) 223,045 373,077 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Operating transfers in 

    

Wards 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, & 10 Sales Tax Fund 

 

50,000 50,000 

 

Sanitation Fund 350,000 350,000 350,000 

 

Operating transfers out 

    

Debt Service Fund (Interest) 

  

(378,025) 378,025 
Debt Service Fund (Principal) 

  

(636,012) 636,012 
Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund (1,375,000) (1,375,000) (1,375,000) 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,025,000) (975,000) (1,989,037) (1,014,037) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 
and other uses (798,371) (1,125,032) (1,765,992) (640,960) 

Fund balance at beginning of year 850,000 1,212,068 1,212,068 

 

Fund balance at end of year $ 51,629 $ 87,036 $ (553,924) $ (640,960) 

The accompanying notes are an integrfprt of these financial statements. 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Sanitation Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
fNegative) 

    

Sales and use $ 2,600,000 $ 3,100,000 $ 3,178,824 $ 78,824 
Intergovernmental revenues 

    

State grants 34,030 34,030 33,267 (763) 
Local grants 70,000 70,000 71,662 1,662 

Fees, charges, & commission 1,508,000 1,508,000 1,643,315 135,315 
Investment earnings & interest 2,200 2,200 42,024 39,824 

Total revenues 4,214,230 4,714,230 4,969,092 254,862 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

Public safety 202,851 202,851 117,957 84,894 
Sanitation 2,273,200 2,349,555 2,465,799 (116,244) 
Public Works 

 

33,507 33,506 1 
Health & Welfare 34,030 34,030 40 33,990 

Total expenditures 2,510,081- - 2,619,943 2,617,302 2,641 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 1,704,149 2,094,287 2,351,790 257,503 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Operating transfers out 

    

GeneraI Fund (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 

 

Road Construction and Maintenance Fund (350,000) (350,000) (350,000) 

 

Solid Waste Reduction 

 

(500,000) (500,000) 

 

Solid Waste Bond Sinking Fund (700,000) (700,000) (700,000) 

 

3/4% Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund (705,000) (705,000) (705,000) 

 

Cornbined Sewer Constru.ction Fund (200,000) (200,000) (200,000) 

 

Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund (131,000) (131,000) (131,000) 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,136,000) (2,636,000) (2,636,000) 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 
and other uses (431,851) (541,713) (284,210) 257,503 

Fund balance at beginning of year 500,000 1,068,043 1,068,043 

 

Fund balance at end of year $ 68,149 $ 526,330 $ 783,833 $ 257,503 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
20 



ST. MARY PARISH SALES AND USE TAX DEPT. 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION! 
December 31, 2023 

ASSETS 

Cash $ 2,922,546 
Investments 2,153,738 
Taxes receivable 5,381,343 
Amounts due from taxing units 669,636 

Total assets 11,127,263 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pensions 356,111 
Related to OPEB 29,505 

Total deferred outflows of resources 385,616 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 11,512,879  

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 232 
Amounts due to taxing units: 

Amount payable in January, 2024 4,127,541 
Amount payable in February, 2024 5,381,343 

Accrued compensated absences 135,603 
Net pension liability 269,296 
Other postemployment benefits liability 1,554,245 

Total liabilities 11,468,260 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pensions 31,410 

NET POSITION 
Restricted 13,209   

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position $ 11,512,879  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statement. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 

June 30, 2023 

ASSETS 

 

Cash , $ 1,827,912 
Investments 500,000 

Total Assets 2,327,912 

Net Position 

 

Restricted for litigants and others 2,327,912 

Total Net Positon $ 2,327,912 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH SALES AND USE TAX DEPT. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023 

ADDITIONS 

St. Mary Parish 
Sales and 

Use Tax Dept. 

 

Sales tax $ 51,341,030 
Hotel/Motel tax 645,679 
Occupational license 1,446,203 
Penalty and interest collected 375,939 
Interest on investments 34,211 

Total additions 53,843,062 

DEDUCTIONS 

 

Distributions to other governmental units $ 53,560,380 
Administrative cost 1,093,628 

Total liabilities 54,654,008 

Change in net position (810,946) 

Net Position 

 

Net position-beginning of year as restated 824,155 

Net position-end of year $ 13,209 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023 

ADDITIONS 

 

Suits and successions 1,145,088 
Judgements 1,457 
Interest earned 2,260 

Total Additions 1,148,805 

REDUCTIONS 

 

Clerks cost (transferred to General Fund) 653,885 
Refunds to litigants 192,113 
S ettlements 631,188 
Sheriff fees 103,556 
Judges supplemental 27,363 
Other 92,998 

Total reductions 1,701,103 

Change in Net Position (552,298) 

NET POSITION 

 

Net positon-beginthng of year 2,880,210 

Net position end of year 2,327,912 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2023 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

On July 16, 1983, the voters of the parish approved a change in the form of parish government from the 
police jury form of government to the parish council system. The newly elected parish council was 
seated on Novernber 26, 1984. The St. Mary Parish Council is the governing authority for St. Mary 
Parish. The parish council consists of eleven members, eight of whom are elected from single-mernber 
districts and three elected at large. The parish president, elected by the voters of the parish, is the chief 
executive officer of the parish and is responsible for carrying out the policies adopted by the parish 
council and for exercising such general executive authority as authorized by the charter. 

The Council, under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes, enacts ordinances, sets policy and 
establishes programs in such fields as social welfare, transportation, drainage, industrial inducernent and 
health services. 

The financial statements of the St. Mary Parish Council have been prepared in conforrnity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The rnore significant of the Council's 
accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The GASB has established several criteria for deterrnining the governmental reporting entity. The 
reporting entity for St. Mary Parish should include the St. Mary Parish Council, which as governing 
authority of the parish is the primary governinent, and other governmental entities within the parish for 
which the Council has financial accountability. Financial accountability is determined by the Council, 
on the basis of applying the following criteria from those established by the GASB: 

1. Financial benefit or burden 
2. Appointment of a voting majority 
3. Imposition of will 
4. Fiscally dependent 

The GASB requires that certain other organizations be included in the reporting entity although the 
primary government is not financially accountable if exclusion froin the financial statements would 
render the reporting entitys financial statements incornplete or misleading. 

On April 24, 2020, the St. Mary Parish Council created St. Mary Parish's Consolidated Gravity 
Drainage District No. 2A (the District), a consolidated gravity drainage district which includes the 
boundaries of Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 2 and Gravity Drainage District No. 6. 

The District was created and established pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 22, Title 33 of the 
Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as arnended. The District has fiill power and authority to drain 
lands in the District by construction, rnaintenance, and operation of purnping plants, dikes, levees, and 
other related works. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

This report includes all funds which are controlled by or dependent on the District's executive and 
legislative branches (the Board of Comrnissioners). Control by or dependence on the District was 
deterrnined on the basis of budget adoptions, taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election or 
appointment of governing body, and other general oversight responsibility. The District is an integral 
part of the Parish of St. Mary Parish (Council). 

Based on the previous criteria, the Council has determined that the following are component units and 
should be discretely reported components within the reporting entity but not within the primary 
government except for the Industrial Developrnent Board of the Parish of St. Mary (included with the 
Council as part of the primary government as it has no assets, liabilities, defened inflows or outflows; 
nor revenues or expenses). 

Component Unit Area Served 
Fiscal 

Year End 
Criteria 
Used 

St. Mary Parish Water & 
Sewer Comm.: 

   

No. 1 Amelia/Siracusa December 31 1, 2, 3 
No. 2 Bayou Vista September 30 1, 2,3 
No. 3 West of Patterson to September 30 1,2,3 

 

Calumet, Verdunville, 
& Centerville 

  

No. 4 Chatsworth, St. Joseph, September 30 1, 2,3 

 

Irish Bend, Yokely, 
Websterville, 

Charenton, St. Peter 

  

No.5 Four Corners/Glencoe September 30 1, 2, 3 

St. Mary Parish Library St. Mary Parish 
except Morgan City 

December 31 1,2, 3 

Hospital Service District: 

   

No. 1 Wax Lake Outlet to September 30 2, 3 

 

Jeanerette 

  

No. 2 Atchafalaya River to December 31 2, 3 

Waterworks District: 
Amelia 

  

No. 5 West of Patterson to May 31 2, 3 

Sewerage District: 

Calurnet, Verdun ville, 
& Centerville 

  

No. 11(no activiO Cypreinort Point September 30 1,2, 3 

Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewer Comm. Atchafalaya River west 
to Wax Lake Outlet 

Septeniber 30 2, 3 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage 
District: 

   

No. 1 Wax Lake Outlet west to Septernber 30 2, 3 

 

Jeanerette 

  

No. 2A Atchafalaya River to September 30 2, 3, 4 

 

Bayou Rarnos 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Component Unit Area Served 
Fiscal 

Year End 
Criteria 

Used 
Wax Lake East Drainage District Berwick, Bayou Vista, Septernber 30 2, 3 

Patterson, Calumet 
Sub Gravity Drainage District No. 1 

of Gravity Drainage District No .2 Bayou Vista S eptember 30 2, 3 

Cajun Coast Visitors and 
Convention Bureau St. Mary Parish September 30 2, 3 

St. Mary Parish Sales and Use 
Tax Dept. (Fiduciary Fund-Custodial Type) St. Mary Parish December 31 1,3 

Recreation District: 

   

No. 1 Amelia September 30 2, 3 
No. 2 Siracusa September 30 1, 2, 3, 
No. 3 Bayou Vista September 30 1, 2, 3 
No. 4 Patterson September 30 1,2, 3 
No. 5 Four Corners, Sorrell Septernber 30 2, 3 

 

Glencoe 

  

No. 7 Centerville, Verdunville September 30 2, 3 

Atchafalaya Golf Course St. Mary Parish September 30 1,2,3,4 
Commission 

Fire Protection District: 

   

No. 1 Cypremort Point December 31 2, 3 
No. 2 Franklin/Ward 3 September 30 1 , 2, 3 
No. 3 Amelia September 30 1,2, 3 
No. 7 Bayou Vista September 30 2, 3 
No. 11 Four Corners, Glencoe, September 30 2, 3 

 

Sorrell 

  

No. 12(na activity) Charenton September 30 2, 3 

Mosquito Control District No. 1 Cypremort Point December 31 1,2, 3 

Comrnunications District (911) St. Mary Parish December 31 2, 3, 4 

St. Mary Parish Assessor St. Mary Parish December 31 1, 4 

St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court St. Mary Parish June 30 1,4 
(includes Fiduciary Fund-Custodial 7)/pe) 

4 

27 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Fiscal Criteria 
Component Unit Area Served Year End Used 

Industrial Development Board 
of the Parish of St. Mary, 
Louisiana, Inc. St. Mary Parish December 31 1,2, 3, 4 

(only activity is issuance 
of conduit debt through 
the Council ,See Note 16) 

The accornpanying group financial statements present the Council's primary government and 
cornponent units over which the Council has financial accountability. The component unit 
columns in the basic financial statements include the financial data of the Council's discretely 
presented component units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are 
legally separate from the Council. The Council and all the component units with activity issue 
separate financial statements containing only the Council or that component's financial 
operations. The Council and several component units are audited and reported on by Pitts & 
Matte (group engagement team), the primary auditor. Most of the component units are audited 
by and reported on separately by other component auditors who furnish those audit reports to 
the primary auditor. The component units audited by the primary auditor (either as a separate 
component unit or a part of the reporting entity audit [group financial statements]) are noted by 
an astericic (*). Reports for each component unit can be obtained fi-om the administrative 
offices of each component and from the Clerk of the St. Mary Parish Council, Fifth Floor St. 
Mary Parish Courthouse, Franklin, Louisiana. 

The Council's financial statements are maintained on the calendar year basis. Many of the 
component units maintain their financial statements on other fiscal years as shown earlier. The 
information represented in these financial statements for the Council is as of December 31, 
2023 and the year then ended. The financial information for the component units is as of and 
for their year ended within 2023. Because of the different year ends, certain amounts shown as 
payable between the Council and component units may differ. Note 11 discloses the amounts 
due/to from the Council and various components. 

The parish school board, the St. Mary Parish Sheriff, and the municipal level governments, are 
excluded from the accompanying financial statements as they are considered autonomous 
governments. These units of government issue financial staternents separate frorn that of the 
Council. Also in accordance with GASB, the St. Mary Community Action Committee 
Association, Inc. (CAA) and the West St. Mary Parish Port, Harbor, and Terminal District 
(Port) are considered to be related organizations of the St. Mary Parish Council, primary 
government. Several different primary governments or other bodies appoint members to the 
board of the Port and CAA but none are considered to be financially accountable because they 
do not impose their will or have a financial benefit or burden relationship with the Port or 
CAA. 

The Council considers eight of these colnponent units to be major components. In determining 
which components are major, the Council considers the significance of the component's assets 
and liabilities and revenues and expenditures in relation to the Council's and to the other 
component units' assets and liabilities and revenues and expenditures. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (contInued) 

The following are condensed statements of net position for the Council's eight major component units at 2023 year end: 

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDAIFD 

   

WATER & SEWER WATER Sr SEWER WATER & SEWER WATER & SEWER 
GRAVITY 

DRAINAGE 
GRAVITY 

DRAINAGE 
HOSPITA₹, 
SERVICE 

 

TOTAL 
COMMISSION*/ COMMISSION:42 COMMISSION -43 COMMISSION 4 4 DESTRICT 4 1 DISTRICT 4 2A DISTRICT 4 1 ST. MARY MAJOR 
OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISFL OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH PARISH COMPONENT 

OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY LIBRARY UNITS 

 

.ASSETS 

CIIITtra assets 

            

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,476,390 $ 327,923 $ 5,260,548 S 58,136 $ 1,560,244 $ 2,097,63t $ 6,291,714 $ 1,791,931 $ 21,864,517 

 

Investments 

 

:50,735 

 

3,293,690 

   

1,623,367 4,323,550 593,890 9,985,232 

 

Receivables (net of allowances 

            

for uncollectibles) 

 

107,063 

 

1'21,712 238,449 /71,288 

  

1,475,261 2,591,905 4,709,578 

 

Other receivah/cs 

 

57/.200 

   

19,035 

  

8,743,370 

 

9,333.605 

 

Due from other governments 

 

27,507 

   

761,973 25,426 

 

2,945,144 35,562 3,795,612 

 

Preparn expenses 

 

34,646 

 

14,792 38,975 34,947 

 

113,564 781.564 16,459 1,034,947 

 

Inventories 

 

152.417 

 

132,672 

    

663,346 

 

995,435 

 

Net pension asset 

            

Other assets 

       

257,250 

  

257,250 

 

Total current assets 

 

2,519,958 

 

3,944,739 9,537,972 1,045,379 1,585,670 4,091,312 25,223,949 5,029,647 51,979,176 

 

Noncurrent Assets 

            

Restricted Assets: 

            

Cash 

 

91,701 

 

24,212 233,002 379,937 

  

12,172,488 

 

12,901,340 

 

Investments 

   

215,029 

      

215,029 

 

Invest in Berwick Bayou Vista Commission 

   

379,673 

      

379,673 

t• -) Capital Assets 

           

'...7 Land and Improvements 

 

705,7116 

 

51,709 22,155 6,926 8.600 2,789,972 1.635.758 320,891 5,041..737 

 

Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation 

 

1,302,354 

 

19,475 217,558 443,351 28,331 7,965 25,846,675 7,059,883 34,925,622 

 

Improvements, other than buildings, net 

            

of accumulated depreciation 

 

2,5I0,640 

 

3,775,553 4,308,610 3,118,462 

  

1.866,129 

 

15,879,394 

 

Equipment and furniture, Out Of 

            

fICCOMIllatod depreciation 

 

247,903 

 

23,090 268,843 1,222,147 585,034 335,033 5,507,301 796,110 9,535,461 

 

Infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation 

     

3,871,097 2.162,447 14,664,876 

  

20,698,420 

 

Construction ic progress 

 

1,941,167 

 

31,059 209.443 802,796 19,053 12,100,901 267,406 235,766 15,607,591 

 

Total noncurrent assets 

 

6,599,491 

 

4,519,500 5,259,611 9,844.746 2,803,465 30,443,747 47,295,757 8,412,650 115,184µ67 

 

Tots] assets 

 

9,119,449 

 

8,464,559 13.797,583 10,890.125 4,389,135 34,540,559 72,519,706 13,442,297 I67,I63,443 

 

DEFERRED ournows OF RESOURCES 

            

Debt redemption costs 

       

215,233 13,025 

 

228,305 

 

ReIated to pensions 

    

323,537 305,782 315,767 

  

656,467 1,671,553 

 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

    

323,537 305,782 385,767 215,283 13,025 656,467 1,899,861 

 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 9,119,449 3 8,464 589 S 14,121.120 S 11,195.907 $ 4,774,902 $ :4,755,342 72,532,731 $ 14,098,764 3 169,063,304 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

    

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDA 

       

GRAVITY GRAVITY HOSPITAL 

  

WATER & SEWER WATER & SEWER. WATER & SEWER WATER& SEWER DRAINAGE DRAINAGE SERVICE 

 

TOTAL 
COMNISSION 4 L CONCAISS1ON 4 2 COMMISSION 4 3 COMMJSSION 4 4 DISTRICT F 1 DISTRICT 42 DISTRICT 4 1 ST. MARY MAJOR 
OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF TH1E PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH PARISH COMPONENT 
OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST MARY OF ST MARY LIBRARY UNITS 

 

LIABILITIES 

Liabilities 
Curl-err liabilities 

            

Accounts payable 

 

313,529 $ 52,364 $ 144,605 $ 713,422 $ 69,596 $ 40,304 $ 2,908 145 28,170 $ 4,270,335 

 

Contracts payable 

     

20,987 

    

29,987 

 

Retamage payable 

 

83,021 

        

82,021 

 

Accrued liabilities 

 

146,330 

 

35,765 

 

42,868 

 

56,147 1,673,896 $ 146,511 2.101,517 

 

Accrued interest payable 

        

12.446 

 

12,446 

 

Due to St Mary Parish Courted 

 

47,589 64,998 

       

112,587 

 

Due to component units 

  

31,614 

       

31,614 

 

Due to other governments 

  

36,955 

  

313,655 

  

30,914 

 

431,524 

 

Payable from irstacted assets 

 

91,701 224,650 234,642 

 

226.027 

    

777.020 

 

Other liabilities 

   

21,738 

      

21.736 

 

Current portion of lortg-term debt 

     

444,635 48,535 854,004 320,497 

 

1,668,471 

 

Totai current liabthlres 

 

681.170 410,581 436.750 

 

1,761.594 118,131 951,255 4,995,393 I74,881 9,530,260 

 

Noncurrent liabilities 

            

Compensated absences 

   

72,187 

 

136,959 143,388 

   

352,534 

 

Net pension liability 

   

248,651 

 

157,775 291,269 

  

465,673 I,I63,368 

 

Lon.g-terro debt 

      

- 

     

Noncurrent portion of long term debt 

     

2.633 886 14.443 8.730,958 3,548,197 

 

I4,926,578 

f....) Total noncurrent liabilities 

   

320,838 

 

2,928,620 449,100 8,7130,058 3,548,191 465,673 16,442,480 
Cl/ Total liabilities 

 

681,170 410,581 757,588 

 

4,690,214 567,231 9,681,313 8,544,089 640,554 25,972,749 

 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

            

Related to pensions 

   

28,560 

 

39,838 32,719 

  

66,358 167,475 

 

Unearned revenue 

        

750,000 

   

Total deferred inflows of resources 

   

23,560 

 

39.838 32.719 

 

750,000 66,358 917,475 

 

Total Gabilities and deferred inflows 

            

of resources 

 

681,170 410,581 786,148 

 

4,730,052 599,950 9,681,313 9,294,089 706,912 26,390,215 

 

NET POSLTION 

            

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

 

6,507.790 3,900,886 5,026,609 

 

6,386,283 2,740,487 22.033.289 31,154,581 3,412,650 36,262,580 

 

RestrKted FIJI-

             

Capital projects 

     

153,910 

    

153.910 

 

Debt service 

       

801,445 380.155 

 

1,181,600 

 

Other purposes 

 

1,000,000 

    

18,58.1 

   

1,018,581 

 

Unrestricted 

 

930,489 4,153,122 8,308,363 

 

(74.343) 1,415,884 2,239,795 31,603,906 4,979,202 53,556,418 

 

Total net prsition 

 

8,430,279 8,054,008 13,334,972 

 

6,465,855 4,174,952 25,074,529 63,238,642 13,391,852 142,173,089 

 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 

            

andeetposition S 9,119,449 S 8,464,589 $ 14,121,120 

 

1I,I95,907 S 4,774,902 $ 34,755,842 $ 72,532.731 $ 14,098.764 S 169,063,304 



NOT£ I-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The following are condensed statements of activities for the Couneirs eight major components for 2023: 

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED 

       

GRAVITY GRAVITY HOSPITAL 

  

WATER&SEWER WATER & SEWER WATER & SEWER WATER & SEWER DRAINAGE DRAINAGE SERVICE 

 

TOTAL 
COMMISSION # 1 COMMISSION # 2 COMMISSION s COMMISSION 44 DISTRICT 4 / DISTRICT # 2A DISTRICT # 1 OF ST MARY MAJOR 
OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF TRE PAIUSH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH THE PARISH PARISH COM1IONENT 

OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MA.RY OE ST MARY LIBRARY UNITS 

E.2Tames 

          

Water & sewer S 2,513,981 S 1,689,770 S 2,717,750 $ 3,494,086 

     

$ 10,415,587 
Drainage 

    

$ 1,820,090 $ 1,971,728 

   

3,791,818 
Medical care 

      

5 38.365,467 

 

38,365,467 
Library . 

        

$ 2,836,317 2,836,317 
Interest and fees on long-term debt 

  

34,931 126,189 

 

310,360 

 

176,462 

 

647,992 
Total progam expenses 2.513,981 1,639,770 2,752,73 I 3,620,279 1,820,090 2,282,088 

 

38,54 i,929 2,836,317 56,057,181 

Fragrant revenues 

          

Charges for services 

          

Water & sewer 1,021,499 1,084,222 1,756,760 1,695,321 

     

5,557,802 
Medical care 

       

29,284,658 

 

29,284,658 
Library 

        

26.752 26,752 
Total charges for senices 1,021,499 1,034,222 1,756,760 1,695,921 

   

29,284,658 26,752 34,869,212 

Operating garas and contributions 

          

Drainage 

          

Medical care 

       

1.1,664,611 

 

31,664,611 
Ldm-ary 

        

12,637 12,637 

Total operating a.n.ts and 
contributions 

       

11,664,611 12,637 11,677,248 

Capital grants and contributions 

          

Drainage 
Medical care 

       

3,763,437 

 

3,763,437 

Total capital grants and 
centribmions 

       

3,763,437 

 

3,763,437 

Net proam e8spenses (revenues) 1,492,482 605,543 999,971 1,924,954 1,820,690 7,282,088 

 

(6,170,777) 2,796928 5,747,284 

General revenues 

          

Taxes: 

          

Ad valorem taxes levied 
for general purposes 626,165 827,354 1,075,140 651,091 1,594,996 2,237,300 

 

2,893,401 7.931,619 12,737,066 
Ad valorem taxes levied 

for debt service 

         

- 
State shared revenue 

        

37,213 37 213 
Investment earnings & interest 10,837 124,212 329,233 513 22,221 87,698 

 

200,024 146,073 920,831 
Payment from St. Mary Parish Conrcil. 

    

24,000 

    

24,000 

Miscellaneous 

   

22,486 129.793 7,147 

 

(133,387) 10,948 36,887 

Intergovernmental grants 

   

761,973 

     

761.973 

Nor-emplayer pension conrtibutions 

    

7,052 

    

7,052 
Transfers: 

          

Capital contributions 

 

( 102,767) (220,000) 

      

(322.767) 
Recovery of bad debt 

   

(109 176) 

      

Total general revenues and transfers 637,022 148,799 1,184,373 1,326,887 1,778,062 2,332,145 

 

2,960,039 3,025,753 14.202,255 

Change in net position (855,460) 243,251 188,402 (598.067) (42,028) 50,057 

 

9,130,815 223,825 8,345,795 

Net position- beg-a-hung ofyear 9,293,739 7,810,757 13,146,570 7,063,922 4,357,419 25,024,472 

 

54,107,827 13,163.O27 133,967,733 

Prior period adjustment 

    

(140,439) 

    

(140,439) 

Net posilion - bnnu.-.4 olyear (as adjusted) 9,293,739 7,810,757 13,146,570 7,063,922 4,716,980 25,024,472 

 

54,107,827 13,163,027 I33.827.294 

Net position - end of year S 8,433,279 S 8,054,008 $ 13,354,972 $ 6,465,855 S 4 174,952 $ 25,074,529 $ 63,233,642 $ 13,391,852 S 142.173,039 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Basic Financial Statements - Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities which report all activities of the Council and its components except for fiduciary activities 
(the Council does not conduct fiduciary activities however two of the component units do). The 
government-wide presentation focuses primarily on the sustainability of the Council and components 
and the change in the net assets resulting from the current year's activities. For the most part, the effect 
of interfund activity of the Council has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues, are 
reported separately from business type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges 
for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given fimetion or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provicled by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to rneeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular flinction or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

C. Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements 

The financial transactions of the Council are reported in individual funds in the fund financial 
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, reserves, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures. 

Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciaiy. Each category, in 
turn, is divided into separate "fund types." The following is a description of the funds utilized by the 
Council. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Funcl 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Council. It is used to account for all financial 
resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds. The Council reports the General 
Fund as a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds are usecl to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
earmarked for expenditures for specified purposes. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The Council reports two special revenue funds as rnajor fimds as follows: 

ROAD CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE FUND 

The Road Construction and Maintenance Fund accounts for the maintenance and upkeep of the parish 
road system. Major financing is provided by the State of Louisiana Parish Transportation Funds and 
Royalty Road funds. Use of Transportation Funds is restricted by Louisiana Revised Statutes. 

SANITATION FUND 

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the collection of solid waste for the Parish. Major financing is from 
the three-fourths percent sales tax and garbage collection fees, The expenditures are restricted by the 
three-fourths percent sales tax ordinance. 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt Service Funds are usecl to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-
term debt principal, interest and related costs. 

Capital Projects Funds 

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). 

The Council reports the three following capital project funds as major fiinds: 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for ongoing capital projects, other than those accounted for 
in the CDBG Recovery Fund or the Sewer Construction Fund. The projects may be funded with either 
federal, state, or local funds. A major portion of the funds are currently being fiinded with the 
proceeds of the $11,500,000 St. Maly GOMESA Project Fund 2019 Bonds. 

CDBG RECOVERY FUND 

The CDBG Recovery Fund accounts for major ongoing capital projects and is funded by federal 
fiinds. The Fund was established to handle approxirnately $19 million in federal grants. The Council 
will maintain this as a major fund until all projects are substantially cornplete. 

COMBINED SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 

The Combined Sewer Construction Fund is used to account for the proceeds of sewer bonds and three 
quarters percent sales tax that is being used to construct and improve sewer systems within the Parish. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

Enterprise Funds  
Enterprise fiinds are used to account for activities of provicling goods and services to outside parties 
sirnilar to those found in the private sector, where the deterrnination of net income is necessary or useful 
to sound financial administration. 

The Council reports two of its three proprietary funds as major funds: 

REDUCTION AND TRANSFER FUND 
The Reduction and Transfer Fund accounts for the operation of the parish solid waste disposal plant. 
All garbage anti trash in the western portion area of the parish is collected at the reduction station in 
Berwick. All garbage and trash in the western portion of the parish is first collected at the transfer 
station in Franklin and then transferred to the Berwick reduction station for disposal. 

KEMPER WILLIAMS PARK FUND 
The Kemper Williarns Park Fund accounts for the operations of Kemper Williams Park, a 
recreational facility available for parish residents. The facility charges its patrons for admission to 
the park which consists of picnic grouncls, campsites, athletic fields, a jogging trail, and tennis courts. 

Because the Council only has one remaining proprietary fund it is presented in the basic financial 
statements, even though the Council considers it to be a nonmajor fund. 

SMALL ANIMAL CONTROL FUND 
The Small Animal Control Fund accounts for the operation of a small animal shelter. This fund was 
established for the collection, housing, adoption, and euthanasia of small stray animals within St. 
Mary Parish and is fundecl by the parish, cities, and public of St. Mary Parish. 

Fiduciary Funds 
The GASB issued Statement 84 Fiduciary Activities which is applicable for calenclar years ending 2020 
for December 31s1  year ends, or fiscal year 2021 for June 30th  year ends. The St. Mary Parish Sales 
Tax Department with a Deceinber 31, 2023 year end adopted the provision of GASB No. 84 in a prior 
year. The St. Maiy Parish Clerk of Court with a year end of June 30, 2023 adopted the previous of 
GASB No. 84 in the prior year. Under the provision of GASB 84, a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position is presented. 

The Sales and Use Tax Dept. collects and disburses sales and other taxes for the Council and certain of 
its component units and other governments (municipalities and School Board) within the Parish. 
Amounts collected and held in behalf of the Council - S1,5] 8,858 and it's component units - S142,067 
are reported as assets of the Council ancl component units at year end and are excluded from the assets 
and liabilities of the Sales and Use Tax Dept. at year end. The Clerk of Court utilizes fiduciary funds 
(custodial funds) to account for assets received or ordered by the Courts to be held by others. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a terrn used to described "which" transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the 
rneasurernent focus applied. 

Government-wide Statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements  
The government-wide statements and the proprietary fund financial statements are reportecl using the 
econornic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement 
focus, all assets and all deferred outflows of resources and all liabilities and all deferred inflows of 
resources (whether current or noncurrent) are included in determining financial position. Under the 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in both the governrnent-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for 
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this sarne limitation. The Council and all 
major components, except Hospital Service District No. 1, have elected not to follow subsequent 
private-sector guidance. 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using the cunent financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, 
only current assets, current deferred outflows of resources, and current liabilities, and current 
deferred inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of 
these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (Le., 
expenditures and other financing uses) in net fund balance. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual 
(i.e.,when they become both measurable and available). Measurable means the amount can be 
determined. Available means the normal time of collection is within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay current liabilities (the Council generally uses a sixty day period after year end). 

E. Revenues 

The following is a summary of the recognition policies for major revenue sources: 

Sales tax revenues are recorded when the sales tax is earned, regardless of when they are collected by 
the St. Mary Parish Council's sales tax department. 

Ad valorern taxes and the related State Revenue Sharing (which are based on population and 
homesteads in the Parish) are recorded in the year the taxes are assessed. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Federal and State aid and grants are generally recorded when the Council or component units have met 
the requirernents of the grant and are entitled to receive the funds. 

Investment earnings are generally recorded when earned. 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when they become available to the Council or component 
units. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are 
charges to customers for sale and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of 
sales and services, adrninistrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

F. Expenses/Expenditures 

The government-wide and proprietary fiind financial statements recognize expenses under the accnial 
basis of accounting and records the related liability at the time the expense is incurred. 

ln the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures are generally recognized under the 
modifiecl accrual basis of accounting when the related fiind liability is incurred, except principal 
and interest on long-terrn debt which is not recognized until due. 

G. Budgets 

The Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

I . Ninety days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the Parish President presents to the Council 
the annual operating budget which was prepared by the Director of Finance under the direction of 
the Chief Administrative Officer. 

2. The Council then orders a public hearing, notice of which, along with a surnmaiy of the budget, will 
be published ten days prior to the date of the hearing in the official journal of the Council. 

3. No later than the second to last regular meeting of the fiscal year, the Council enacts an ordinance to 
adopt the annual operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The Council may adjust the budget as 
proposed by the Parish President or amend it, as they see fit, by a vote of the rnajority of the Council. 

4. The Parish President may accept or veto the entire budget as approved by the Council or be rnay line 
item veto certain appropriations. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

5. Should the Council and Parish President be unable to adopt a budget prior to the beginning of the year, then 
fifty percent of the prior year's budget shall be appropriated for the upcoming year; until such tiine as a new 
budget is properly enacted. 

6. The Director of Finance, under the direction of the Chief Administrative Officer, has the authority to alter, 
and must approve all changes in budgeted amounts within function lines. However, budget adjustments that 
cross function lines require approval of the Council. 

7. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. 

8. The General Funcl and all Special Revenue Funds with activity have adopted budgets. 

9. Budget appropriations lapse at year end. 

10.In the financial statement comparison of the buclget to actual amounts, both the original and final amended 
budget arnounts are shown. 

H. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For financial statement purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short terrn investments with original maturities of less than three months. 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approxirnates fair value. 

Certain short-terrn interest bearing cash accounts are maintained on a pooled basis, interest revenue or 
expense is allocated to each participating fund based upon its pro rata share of the total pooled account 
balance. The overall balance in the pooled account is always a large positive balance. However, froin 
time to time an individual fund's proportionate share of the balance may temporarily be negative. This 
most comrnonly occurs when a fund makes an unusually large disbursement such as a payment on a 
construction contract or when the fund is awaiting an investinent to mature and be placed in its cash 
account. 

I. Investments 

The Council and components invest in bank certificates of deposit (CDs) and external investment pools. 
The CDs (nonparticipating contracts) are recorded at cost, unless there is significant impairment of the 
credit stancling of the issuer. The pooled investinents are recorded at fair market value. 

The Council and certain components also invest in Federal government securities which are recorded at 
fair value. 

J. Receivables 

The Council's receivables are stated at net realizable value after provision for estimated uncollectible 
accounts which are negligible. Most component units use the direct write off rnethod for recording bad 
debt, however bad debts are insignificant. Hospital Service District No. 1 uses the reserve method. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

K. Inventories 

The Council and most component units do not report inventories at year end as the amounts are 
immaterial. 

In the case of Hospital Service District No-. 1, inventory consists primarily of drugs and medical supplies 
and is valued at a lower of cost or market (first-in first-out method). 

In the case of Water & Sewer Commissions No.'s 1 and 2, inventou consists primarily of material, 
parts, and supplies and is valued at cost, determined by the first-in-first-out method. 

L. Prepaid Expenses 

The Council does not report prepaid expense because they are not material. 

Cornponent units with material prepaid expenses record the prepayments of expenses, such as insurance 
as an asset on the balance sheet and systematically recognize an expense over the period of the 
prepayment. 

M. Restricted Assets 

Many of the business-type component units hold cash ancl investments, that are limited as to use, which 
are reported in restricted asset accounts on their statement of net assets. The use of these assets is 
limited to repayment of debt, additions or maintenance of assets or as security for custorner utility 
deposits. 

In the Reduction and Transfer Enterprise Fund certain assets are set aside for certain uses. These 
amounts are reported as either cash, investments, or advances and are reported as restricted assets. The 
following is a summary at December 31, 2023: 

Reserved for debt service by debt covenants $1,986,644 
Reserved for depreciation and contingencies by debt covenants 36,081 
Earmarked for landfill closure costs and post-closure care costs 

by Council Action 5,516,105 

 

.$7,538,830 

N. Fixed Assets 

 

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (fixed assets) depends on whether they 
are reported in the government-wide, proprietary fund, or governmental fund financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Government-wide Statements and Proprietary Fund 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as 
capital assets. All purchased fixed assets are valuecl at historical cost. Donated fixed assets are valued 
at their estimated fair market value on the date received. Fixed assets are reported at their historical cost 
or estimated fair market value less their accumulated depreciation. Additions, improvements, and other 
capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred 
for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method basecl on the estimatecl useful life of the various 
assets. The following is a summary of estimated usefitl lives by classification of the fixed assets: 

Category Years 

Buildings 10-50 
Equipment and furniture 3-40 
Improvements 5-50 
Water plants and distribution system 5-50 
Sewerage plants and distribution system 10-50 
Drainage Systems and improvements 10-25 
Infrastructure 10-50 

Fund Financial Statements 

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in governmental fund operation are accounted for as 
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fiind upon acquisition. 

O. Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types financial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reportecl as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Significant boncl premiums 
and discounts, are deferred and ainortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount, if significant. Bond 
issuance costs are expensed when incurred. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face ainount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 
while cliscounts on clebt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

P. Cornpensated Absences 

Employees earn vacation and sick leave annually at varying rates depending upon length of service. 
These compensated absences are allowed to accumulate from period to period if not used. 

Upon terrnination an employee is compensated for accumulated vacation time; but, employees are not 
compensated for sick tirne unless termination is due to qualified retirement. 

An accrual is inade for the amount of compensation the employees will receive in the future based upon 
services perforrned in the current year for vacation time not used. An accrual is also made for 
accumulated sick tirne estimated to be paid to employees at retirernent. Only the portion of this 
accumulated sick pay estimated to be paid to employees retiring within the next year is recorded as a 
liability within the fund to which the particular ernployees' salary is allocated, the remaining liability is 
included with long-terrn debt in the Statement of Net Position. The liability for the long-term portion of 
this accumulated sick pay, effects thirty-one employees and totals approximately $249,000 and is not 
discounted to present value. 

The Council's cunent compensated absences, by fund, are approximately as follows: 

Major funds 
General Funcl $94,000 
Road Construction and Maintenance Fund 52,000 
Reduction and Transfer Fund 81,000 

Non-major funds 
Small Animal Control Fund 22,000 

Liabilities for compensated absences by component units are approximately as follows: 

Communication District — 911 $ 19,000 
Consolidated Gravity Drainage No. 1 143,000 
St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 21,000 
Water & Sewer Commission No. 3 72,000 
Water & Sewer Commission No. 4 137,000 

 

$392,000 

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the governrnent-wide financial stateinents. For 
governmental funds financial statements, the current portion of unpaid cornpensated absences is the 
amount that is normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources. The 
noncurrent portion of the liability is not reported. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Q. Net Pension Liability or Asset and Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

The Council and several component units follow GASB pronouncements establishing the accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This guidance requires the Council 
and component units to calculate and recognize a net pension liability or asset and certain deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources and pension expense. The Council and other component units are 
members of various cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement systems. For purposes 
of measuring its net pension liability or asset, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and pension 
expense, the Council uses the same basis as their applicable PERS. 

See Note 17 for further details about this pension plan. 

R. Other Posternployment Benefits Liability and Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

The Council and a few component units have agreed to provide their employees with postemployment 
benefits. In 2018 the Council and the cornponents adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) which establishes 
standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, and expenses related to OPEB. 

See Note 18 for further details about these OPEB plans. 

S. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (not Related to Pensions or OPEBs) 

In prior years the Council and certain component units issued refunding debt which resulted in the 
defeasance of the old debt issue. The difference between the reacquisition price (amount required to 
repay the previously issued old debt) -and the net carrying arnount of the old debt should be reported as a 
deferred outflow of resources or deferred inflow of resources and recognized as a component of interest 
expense in future periods. The following shows the amount of deferred outflows of resources at year encl 
and the amount of amortization charged to interest expense for the year. 

Deferred Outflow 
Of .Resources Amortization & 

Debt Charge to 
Reduction Cost Interest Expense 

Council 

  

Reduction & Transfer Fund $255,900 $99,000 

Component Unit 

  

Consolidated Gravity Drainage #2A 215,283 43,057 
Hospital District #1 13,025 2,936 

In adclition, Atchafalaya Golf Course Commission (a non-major component) is reporting unredeemed 
gift cards, fees not yet earned for advertising on golf cart GPS systems and, deposits received on future 
tournarnents as curTent unearned revenues as Deferred Inflows of Resources totaling $78,680. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

T. Equity Classifications 

Governinent-wide Statements and Proprietary Fund Staternents 

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in the three cornponents: 

a) Net investinent in capital assets- Consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

b) Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributions, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c) Unrestricted net position - A11 other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" 
or "net investment in capital assets". 

At Deceinber 31, 2023 $1,961,649 of the Council's restricted net position was required by enabling 
legislation. 

At December 31, 2023, the Council's unrestricted net position (deficit) of ($20,218,820) includes the 
effect of the S9,383,737 of deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and $377,044 of deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, which will be recognized as a reduction of the unrestricted net 
deficit in future years. 

Fund Financial Staternents 

Goveriunental fund equity is classified by five categories: nonspendable, restricted, cornmitted, 
assigned and unassigned. 

a.) Nonspendable - represents those portions of fund equity that cannot be spent because they are 
not in spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

b.) Restricted - represents those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally 
segregated for a specific future use. 

c.) Cominitted - represents those portions of fund equity that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Council's highest level of decision-
making authority. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through formal 
actions by the Council 

d.) Assigned — represents those portions of fund equity that are constrained by the Council's intent 
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. 

e.) Unassigned — The classification is the residual fund balance for the General Fund. It represents 
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned to a specific purpose within the general fund. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The Council considers amounts to have been expended first out of committed funds, followed by 
assigned funds, and then unassigned funds when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which funds 
of any unrestricted fund balance classifications have been used. 

U. Interfund Transfers 

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of the Council are classified as interfund transfers. 
For the purpose of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental 
funds are generally eliminated. Three of the Council's non-major governniental fiinds, which are 
substantially funded by Federal grants, operate based upon the grant year which ends within the 
Council's normal December 31 year end. Occasionally transfers to or from one of these three funds or 
to or frorn another of the Council's funds will occur between their year end and Decernber 31. In this 
case, arnounts of transfers in and transfers out will differ by the amount of the interperiod transfer. 

V. Net Patient Service Revenue Less Provision for Doubtful Accounts 

Hospital Service District No. 1 reports net patient service revenue at the estimated net realizable 
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated 
retroactive adjustinents under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. 

Amounts reimbursed for services rendered to patient covered under Medicare and Medicaid programs 
are generally less than the established billing rates. The Hospital District also provide services to • 
beneficiaries of certain other third-party payor programs at amounts less than established rates based on 
contractual arrangements. Differences between the established billing rates and amounts reimbursed are 
contractual adjustments. 

Certain amounts receivable under reimbursement agreernents between the Hospital District and the 
Medicare and Medicaicl programs are subject to examination and retroactive adjustrnent. Provisions for 
estimated retroactive adjustments under such programs are provided in the period the related services are 
renclered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. 

W. Reclassification 

Certain items have been reclassified from the separately issued financial statements of the component 
units in order to make these financial statements rnore meaningful and comparative. 

X. Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accounting principles require 
management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Y.New GASB Pronouncements 

The GASB has issued it's Statement No. 101 "Compensated Absences" which updates the recognition 
and measurement guidance for compensated absences. 

This pronouncement is in effect for the Council for the year 2023. Management has determined there is 
no significant effect of these Statements on the financial statements. 

Z. Future Accounting Changes 

The GASB issued its Statement No. 102 "Certain Risk Disclosures" which provides users of 
governmental financial status with essential information about risk related to governments current 
vulnerabilities. The pronouncernent will -be effective for the Council for the year 2025. Management 
has not yet determined the effects of this statement. 

Note 2 — Prior Period Adjustrnent 

In prior years the Council operatecl Fairview Treatment Center and Claire House providing behavior 
health care services. These programs were both closed in June of 2022 where upon the Council entered 
into a cooperative endeavor agreement with a private company to take over the operations of these two 
programs. The private company entered into a lease with the Council for the facilities previously 
utilized by these two programs. This agreement provides for lease payrnents, which are recorded in the 
general fund, to be received by the parish with an option to purchase the facility at its fair market value. 

The programs ended this past fiscal year with a deficit in fund balance, which is to be transferred to the 
general fund which had advancecl funding for the programs while they were operating. 

In the current year the beginning fund balance deficit of $1,283,655 ($1,222,452 for Fairview Treatment 
Center and $61,203 for Claire House) has been transferred to the general fund as a prior period 
adjustment. 

NOTE 3 - FUND DEFICITS  

The following individual fimd of the Council had a deficit fund balance at year end: 

Fund Amount  
Nonmajor Funds: 

Jail Operating and Maintenance Fund (151,560) 
OJP Enhancement Grant (12,970) 

Major Funds: 
Road Construction & Maintenance Fund (553,924) 
Capital Improvement Fund (504,890) 

The deficits in the Road Construction & Maintenance, Capital Improvement, and Jail Operating and 
Maintenance Funcls will be funded by future revenues or transfers into the fund. 
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NOTE 4 - EXPENDITURES - EXCESS OF ACTUAL OVER APPROPRIATED 

Actual expenditures exceeded appropriated expenditures by a significant amount in the following for 2023: 

   

Unfavorable 
Special Revenue Fund Actual Budget Variance 
Jail Operating Fund $2,591,939 $2,402,500 $(189,439) 
OjP Enhancernent Grant 183,297 100,000 (83,297) 
Juror Cornpensation Fund 36,850 35,000 (1,850) 
Ilousing Program 532,651 504,800 (27,851) 

NOTE 5 - SIGNIFICANT BUDGET REVENUE SHORTFALL 

During 2023 actual revenue received by the following funds was significantly less than the actual budgeted. 

 

Budgeted Revenue Actual Revenue Shortfall 
Major Funcls 

   

Road Construction & 

   

Maintenance Fund $5,365,755 $4,254,702 $1,111,053 
16th JDC-St. Mary Parish 

   

Drug Court 244,000 183,823 60,177 

NOTE 6 - TAXES 

Sales Taxes 
The Council administers a Sales Tax Department that is responsible for the collection and distribution of various 
sales and use taxes levied within the parish. The Department has agreements with the Council, the school board 
and various municipalities, whereby they agree to reimburse the Department for the cost of collections of the 
taxes. 

The proceeds from the one per cent sales and use tax received by the Council are used for construction and 
maintenance of roads, construction and maintenance of navigation channels, and water and flood control projects, 
acquiring and improving public works and buildings, supplementing salaries of all parish employees, operation of 
recreational facilities, acquisition, maintenance and repair of vehicles and machinery, and funding bonds. The 
proceeds of the tax are deposited in the Sales Tax Bond Sinking Debt Service Fund. 

Sales Taxes  
The proceeds from the three-fourths of one per cent sales and use tax received by the Council are used 
for construction, acquisition, extension, irnprovement, operation and maintenance of solid waste 
collection and disposal facilities, sewers and sewerage disposal works, facilities for pollution control and 
abatement, and funding bonds issued for these purposes. The proceeds of the tax are deposited in the 
Sanitation Special Revenue Fund. 

The proceeds from the three-tenths of one per cent sales and use tax received by the Council arc used 
within Wards 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, and 10 of the i-)arish for acquiring and rnaintaining electric lights on 
streets, roads, alleys and public places, acquiring, improving and extending public works, including 
drainage and water control extensions, acquiring, constructing, improving and maintaining fire 
protection facilities, public safety facilities and equipment, recreational facilities, and public health 
facilities and equipment. The proceeds of the tax are deposited in the Wards 5 and 8 Special Revenue 
Fund and in the Wards 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, and 10 Special Revenue Fund. 
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NOTE 6 - TAXES (continued) 

Recreation District No. 1 located in Amelia receives the proceeds of the three-tenths of one percent sales 
and use tax which is used for the purpose of operating and maintaining recreational facilities and 
providing other services in that area of the Parish. 

Recreation District No. 2 located in the Siracusa Community receives the proceeds of the three-tenths of 
one percent sales and use tax which is used for the purpose of operating and maintaining recreational 
facilities in that area of the parish. 

The proceeds from the one-half of one percent sales and use tax received by the Council are used solely 
for the purposes of paying the cost of operating and maintaining jail facilities and minimum security 
facilities of the Parish, including the cost of feeding, transporting and clothing prisoners and providing 
medical care. The proceeds of the tax are deposited in the Jail Operating and Maintenance Special 
Revenue Fund. 

Ad Valorem Taxes  
Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis in September or October of each year. The 
taxes become due and payable by December 31 and become delinquent on January 1. Notices 
regarding seizures are sent out in April with the seizure date being May 1. The taxes are collected 011 
behalf of the Council by the Sheriff and then remitted to the Council. Most ad valorem taxes are 
received by the Council in December, January and February. 
For 2023, the Council levied the following ad valorem taxes. 

Puipose 

Parish tax for defraying the expenses of the Council 
and other legal purposes 

Criminal Justice System Tax helping to defray the expense 
of the Criminal Justice Systern 

Library — Debt Service Only 

Millage 

7.60 

3.80 

0.31 

Certain of the cornponent entities assess ad valorein taxes at various millage rates to fund operations and 
(or) debt service. 

Hotel-Motel Tax  
Proceeds from a hotel-motel tax received by the component unit, St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission, 
are used to fund the operations of the Commission. The taxes are coIlected by the Parish and the State 
and then remitted to the Cominission. 

Communications Taxes  
Proceecls from communications taxes are collected on behalf of the component entity, St. Mary Parish 
Communications District, by various telephone companies and then rernitted to the Communications 
District. The communications taxes are used for the general operation of the Communication District. 
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NOTE 7 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

The Council does not have a formal investment policy related to interest rate risk (the risk of an 
investment decreasing in value due to increasing interest rates). 

In addition, the Council does not have a formal investment policy related to credit risk (including 
concentrations of credit). However the Council does follow state law as to limitations on types of 
deposits and investments as described below. 

The Council does not invest in any investments subject to foreign currency risk. 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Under state law the Council may deposit its funds with certain state and federally chartered financial 
institutions. These deposits are required to be insured or collateralized by the financial institutions. 

At year end 2023 the carrying amount of the Council' s cash was $4,722,394 and the bank balance was 
$4,448,969. A portion of these balances was covered by federal depositoiy insurance, the uninsured 
portion of $3,448,969 is subject to custodial credit risks and was collateralized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institutions. 

COMPONENT UNITS - AGENCY FUNDS 

 

The 
Parish Sales & 
Use Tax 

St. IVIary 
Parish Clerk 
of Court 

Total 
Component 
Units-Agency 
Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents-stated value $ 2,922,546 $ 938,752 3,861,298 

Cash ancl cash equivalents-bank balance 2,974,887 748,934 3,723,821 
Portion insured by federal deposit insurance 250,000 450,000 

 

Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 
financial institution 

 

298,934 298,934 
Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 

financial institution's trust dept or agent but 
not in the Government's name 2,724,887  

 

2,724,887  

Amount unsecured            

Investments 

Under state law the Council may invest in certain federal or federally guaranteed securities, certain bank 
time certificates of deposit, mutual or trust funds, and in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
(LAMP). LAMP is a 2A7-like external investment pool operated to allow local government to pool 
their investment funds. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. LAMP is 
subject to regulatory oversight of the Louisiana State Treasurer ancl the LAMP board of directors. 
LAMP share values for the pool are valued at fair value based on quoted market rates determined on a 
weekly basis. The value of the Council's investment in LAMP is the same as the net asset values of its 
pool shares. 
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NOTE 7 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

The Council does not have a formal investrnent policy related to interest rate risk (the risk of an 
investment decreasing in value due to increasing interest rates). 

In addition, the Council does not have a formal investment policy related to credit risk (including 
concentrations of credit). However the Council does follow state law as to limitations on types of 
deposits and investments as described below. 

The Council does not invest in any investments subject to foreign currency risk. 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Under state law the Council may deposit its funds with certain state and federally chartered financial 
institutions. These deposits are required to be insured or collateralized by the financial institutions. 

At year end 2023 the carrying amount of the Council's cash was $4,722,394 and the bank balance was 
$4,448,969. A portion of these balances was covered by federal depository insurance, the uninsured 
portion of $3,448,969 is subject to custodial credit risks and was collateralized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institutions. 

Investments 

Under state law the Council may invest in certain federal or federally guaranteed securities, certain bank 
time certificates of deposit, mutual or trust funds, and in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
(LAMP). LAMP is a 2A7-like external investment pool operated to allow local government to pool 
their investment funds. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. LAMP is 
subject to regulatory oversight of the Louisiana State Treasurer and the LAMP board of directors. 
LAMP share values for the pool are valued at fair value based on quoted market rates determined on a 
weekly basis. The value of the Council's investment in LAMP is the saine as the net asset values of its 
pool shares. 
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NOTE 7 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

The following is a summary of investments held by the Council at December 31, 2023. 

Percentage of 
Total 

Arnount Investments  

U.S. Governrnent Securities $2,100,280 79% 
LAMP (rated AAAm by 

Standard & Poors) 550,068 21% 

 

$2,650,348 100% 

As of December 31, 2023, the Council had the following investrnents and maturities: 

Investment Maturities (in years) 
Fair Less 

Investment Type Value than 1 1 - 5 6-10 

U.S. Agencies $2,100,280 $1,469,526 $630,754 

LAMP deterrnines its maturities using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of 
LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 clays, and consists of no securities with a maturity in 
excess of 397 days. The WAM for LAMP' s total investments is 70 days as of December 31, 2023. 

The Council categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
GASB Statement No. 72, "Fair Value Measurement and Applicatioe. The hierarchy is basecl on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active 
rnarkets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 

The Council has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2023: 

• U.S. Governrnent securities of $2,100,280 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs) 
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NOTE 7 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS  (continued) 

Detail information on the component units cash and cash equivalents follows: 

 

Water & Sewer Water & Sewer 
Commission #1 Commission #2 

Water & Sewer 
Commission 43 

Water & Sewer 
Commission 44 

Cash and cash equivalents-stated value S 1,568,091 352,135 $ 8,493,550 438,073 

Cash and cash equivalents-bank balance 1,591,476 349,943 8,507,415 448,062 
Portion insured by federal deposit insurance 250,131 349,943 250,000 448,062 
Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 

financial institution 1,898,396 

 

8,257,415 

 

Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 
financial institution's trust dept or agent but 
not in the Government's name 

    

Amount unsecured - $ 

 

$ 

  

St. Mary Parish 
Library 

Consolidated 
Gravity Drainage 

District # l 

Consolidated 
Gravity Drainage 

District #2 

Hospita] 
Service 

District #1 

Cash and cash equivalents-stated value $ 1,791,931 $ 1,560,244 $ 2,097,631 $ 18,464,202 

Cash and cash equivalents-bank balance 2,047,974 1,569,154 2,106,951 24,587,975 
Portion insured by federal deposit insurance 250,000 500,000 383,132 250,000 
Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 

financial institution 1,797,974 1,069,154 1,723,819 24,337,975 
Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 

financial institution's trust dept or agent but 
not in the Ciovernrnent's name 

    

Amount unsecured - $ - $ 

  

Nonmajor 
Components 

Total Component 
Units 

Cash and cash equivalents-stated value $ 8,308,413 $ 43,074,270 
Cash and cash equivalents-bank balance 8,308,413 49,517,363 
Portion insured by federal deposit insurance 6,950,794 9,632,062 
Collateralized by securities helcl by the pledging 

financial institution 1,167,320 40,252,053 
Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 

financial institution's trust dept or agent but 
not in the Government's name 723,316 723,316 

Amount unsecured - $ 

Component unit cash is presented on the 
statement of net position as follows: 

Cash 
Restricted Asset: Cash 

 

$ 29,929,064 
13,145,206 

$ 43,074,270 
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NOTE 7 - CASH AND CAS1I EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Cornponent Units Investments 

Amount 

Percentage of 
Total 

lnvestinents <1 

Investment Maturities 
(in years) 

1-5 6-10 10+ 
LAMP (ratecl AAAin by Standard & Poors) 

   

Water & Sewer Commission #1 $ 150,735 

 

150,735 

  

Water & Sewer Coinmission #2 3,293,690 

 

3,293,690 

  

Consolidated Gravity Drainage A2A 1,623,367 

 

1,623,367 

  

St. Mary Parish Library 593,890 

 

593,890 

  

Nonmajor Components 12,186,516 

 

12,186,516 

  

Total LAMP 17,848,198 73% 

   

Certificates of Deposit 

     

Water & Sewer Commission #2 $ 215,029 

  

$ 215,029 

 

Total Certificates of Deposit 215,029 1% 

   

U. S. Governrnent Agencies 

     

Hospital Service District #2 2,117,604 

   

$ 2,117,604 
Total U. S. Agencies 2,117,604 9% 

   

State Government Bonds 

     

Hospital Service District #1 S 4,323,550 

  

$ 4,323,550 

 

Total State Government Bonds 4,323,550 18% 

   

Total lnvestments $ 24,504,381 _an 

   

Component unit investments are presented 
on the statement of net assets as fojlows: 

  

$ 17,848,198 $ 4,538,579 $ - $ 2,117,604 

   

Account Amount  
Investments S 23,565,561 
Restricted assets: Investments 938,820 

$ 24,504,381  

Component Units - Agency Funds 

LAMP (rated AAAin by Standard & Poors) 
St. Mary Parish Sales & Use Tax Dept $ 2,153,738  
Total LAMP $ 2,153,738 Loo!)  

The Component units have the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2023: 
• U.S. Government securities of 52,117,604 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs) 
• LAMP of $17,848,198 is valued at net assets value. 
*State Governrnent Securities of $4,323,550 are valued using quoted market prices(Level 1) 

Lainp determines its inaturities using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted 
to not more than 60 clays, ancl consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The WAM for LAMP's total 
investrnents is 70 days as of December 31, 2023 
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NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at December 31, 2023, are as follows: 

Governmental Funds 
Major 

Accounts 

Total 

Road Const. 
General & Maint. Sanitation 

Fund Fund Fund 
$ 187,703 $ 66,499 $ 198,001  

$ 187,703 $ 66,499 $ 198,001  

Capital 
Improvement 

Fund  
$ 257,626  

$ 257,626  

Total 
Nonni aj or 

Governmental 
Funds  

$ 46,375  

$ 46,375  

Total 
Governmental 

Receivables  
$ 756,204  

$ 756,204  

Nonmajor 

Accounts 
Total 

Jail 
Operating 

& Maintenance 
Fund  

2,961  
2,961 

Housing 
Program  

$ 12,350  
$ 12,350  

Fairview 
Treatment 

Center 
1,390 
1,390 

16th JDC 
St. Mary 

Parish 
Drug Court 

S 3,080 

3,080 

OJP 
Enchancement 

Grant 
$ 26,594  
$ 26,594  

Total 
Nonniaj or 

Governmental 
Funds  

$ 46,375  
$ 46,375  

Enterprise Funds 

Reduction 
and 

Transfer 
Fund 

Accounts $ 482,672  
Total $ 482,672  

Small 
An irnal 
Control 

Fund  

Kemper Total 
Williarns Enterprise 

Park Funds 
Fund Receivables 

2,435 $ 8,233 $ 493,340  
2,435 $ 8,233 $ 493,340  

All receivables are net of allowances for uncollectible accounts which are immaterial. 

Major Components 
Entity 

Accounts 
Receivable 

Other 
Receivables Total 

Water & Sewer Commission #1 $ 107,063 $ 571,200 $ 678,263 
Water & Sewer Commission 42 125,712 

 

125,712 
Water & Sewer Commission :83 238,449 

 

238,449 
Water & Sewer Cornmission 44 171,288 19,035 190,323 
Hospital Scrvice District # I 1,475,261 8,743,370 10,218,631 
Libraty 2,591,805 

 

2,591,805 
Totals S 4,709,578 9,333,605 $ 14,043,183 

Nonmaj or Components $ 1,937,304 1,423,878 $ 3,361,182 

'rota] Components $ 6,646,882 $ 10,757,483 $ 17,404,365 



NOTE 9 - ADVANCES TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 

Advances to/frorn other funds as of December 31, 2023 consisted of the following: 

Funds 
Advance due to 

Funds Advance due from 
Reduction 

and Transfer 
Kemper Combined 

Sewer 

Non Major 
Governmental 

Funds Total Williams 

General Fund $ 61,908 S 151,629 S S 2,254,617 $ 2,468,154 
Road Construction & Maintenance 662,147 

  

21,606 683,753 
Sanitation 201,672 

   

201,672 
Capital Improvement 5345,881 

 

161,598 39,944 5,547,423 
Non Major Governmental 293,402 

  

122,742 416,144 
Subtotal S 6,565,010 $ 151,629 S 161,598 $ 2,438,909 $ 9,317,146 

Reduction and Transfer 

  

301,742 

 

301,742 
Small Animal Control 

 

141,223 

  

141,223 
Total $ 6,565,010 $ 292,852 $ 463,340 $ 2,438,909 $ 9,760,111 

Advances hetween fimds primarily arise as follows: 

The Council maintains a comingled cash account and periodically one fund temporarily bormws amounts 

from the other funds to cover expenditures. 



NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS  

Interfund transfers in for the year ended December 31, 2023, consisted of the following: 

TRANSFER TO 

Major Governmental Funds: 

TRANSF£R FROM 

  

General Fund San tati on Fund 50,000 

  

Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund 1,400,000 

  

Gaming Receipt Fund 500,000 

  

Juror Cornpensation Fund 50,000 

 

Total General Fund 

  

2,000,000 

Combined Sewer Construction Fund Sanitation Fund 

 

200,000 

Road Construction & Maintenance Sales Tax Wards 1,2,3,4,7, & 10 50,000 

  

Sanitation Fund 350,000 

 

Total Road Construction & Maintenance 

  

400,000 

Total Transfers In - Major Governmental Funds 

  

2,600,000 

Non Major Governmental Funds: 

   

Jail Operating K. Maintenance Fund Gaming Receipt Fund 845,000 

  

General Fund 350,000 

 

Total Jail Operating & Maintenance Fund 

  

1,195,000 

3/4% Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund Sanitation Fund 

 

705,000 

Certificate of indebtedness Sinking Fund Road Construction & Maintenance 1,375,000 

  

Sanitation Fund 131,000 

 

Total Certificate of lndcbtedness Sinking Fund 

  

1,506,000 

GOMESA Debt Service Fund Road Construction & Maintenance 

 

1,120,490 

Total Transfers In -Non Major Governmental Funds 

  

4,526,490 

Total Transfers In - Governmental Funds 

  

$ 7,126,490 

Business-type Activities: 

   

Reduction and Transfer Fund Sanitation Fund 

 

$ 1,200,000 

Small Animal Control Fund General Fund 

 

265,000 

Ketnper Williams Park Fund General Fund 

 

250,000 

Total Transfers In - Business-type Activities 

  

$ 1,715,000 

Total Transfers In 

  

$ 8,841,490 
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NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS (continued) 

Interfund transfers out for the year ended December 31, 2023, consisted of the following: 

TRANSFER FROM 

Major Governmental Funds: 

TRANSFER TO 

  

General Fund Small Animal Control Fund 265,000 

  

Jait Operating and Maintenance Fund 350,000 

  

Kemper Williams 250,000 

 

Total General Fund 

  

865,000 

Road Construction & Maintenance Fund Excess Revenue 13ond Sinking Fund 1,375,000 

  

GOMESA Debt Service Fund 1,014,037 

 

Total Road Construction & Maintenance Fund 

  

2,389,037 

Sanitation Fund 3/4% Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund 705,000 

  

Combined Sewer Construction Fund 200,000 

  

General Fund 50,000 

  

Road Construction Fund 350,000 

  

Excess Revenue Bond Sinking Fund 131,000 

  

Reduction and Transfer Fund 1,200,000 

 

Total Sanitation Fund 

  

2,636,000 

Capital Improvement Fund GOMESA Debt Service Fund 

 

106,453 

Total Transfers Oul - Major Governmental Funds 

  

5,996,490 

Non Major Governmental Funds: 

   

Juror Compensation Fund General Fund 

 

50,000 

Gaining Receipt Funcl Jail Operating & Maintenance Fund 845,000 

  

General Fund 500,000 

 

Total Gaming Receipt Fund 

  

1,345,000 

Sales Tax Wards 1,2,3,4,7, & 10 Road Construction & Maintenance 

 

50,000 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund General Fund 

 

1,400,000 

Total Transfers Out- Non Major Governmental Funds 

  

2,845,000 

Total Transfers Out 

  

$ 8,841,490 

'fransfers ate used to: 

lvlove revenues from Me fund, that the budget ordinance requires to collect them to the fund that the budget ordinance 
recluires to expend them, 

Move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debl service 
payments become due, and 

Use excess unrestricted revenues collected in one fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in 
accordance vvith budgetary authorizations. 

To transfer any assets and liabilities remaining in a fund which has ceased operations to a fund continuing to operate. 
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NOTE 11 - DUE TO/FROM COMPONENT UNITS  

Due frorn cornponent units at Decernber 31, 2023 consists of the following: 

Payable to Due From Amount 

Major Funds: 

General Fund Atchafalaya Golf Course Commission $ 666,556  * 
666,556 

Combhied Sewer Construction Fund St. Mary Parish Water & Sewer Comm. No. 5 
St. Mary Parish Water & Sewer Comrn. No. 4 

216,891 * 
118,053 * 

 334,944     

Total due frorn component units $ 1,001,500  

*The portion not expected to be repaid currently is shown as non-spendable portion of fund balance in the 
General Fund and Combined Sewer Construction Fund balance sheets. 
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NOTE 11 - DUE TO/FROM COMPONENT UNITS (continued) 

Due frorn Other Component Units 

Payable To 

Wards 5 and 8 Joint Sewerage Commission 

Wards 5 and 8 Joint Sewerage Commission 

Due From  

Water and Sewer Cornmission No. 2 

Water and Sewer Commission No. 3 

Amount  

31,614 

19,195 
  

  50,809    

Due to Other Component Units 

Payable To 

Wards 5 and 8 Joint Sewerage Commission 

Due From  

Water and Sewer Commission No. 2 

Amount 

31,614   
  $ 31,614    

Due to/frorn the Primary Government by the Component Units at year end: 

Payable by the Component Units to the Council 

Payable To 

St. Mary Parish Council 

St. Mary Parish Council 
St. Mary Parish Council 

Due From 

Water and Sewer Commission No. 1 

Water and Sewer Commission No. 2 
Water and Sewer Commission No. 5  

Amount 

$ 47,589 

64,998 
20,371 

$ 132,958 

$ 528,620  
Payable by the Component Units to the Council (long term)  

St. Mary Parish Council Atchafalaya Golf Course (long-term) 



NOTE 12 -  FIXED ASSETS 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capita] asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2023, is as follows: 

Beginning 

 

Governmental activities: Balance Increases Deergis Transfers EndIng Balance 

Capital assets not heing depreciated 

    

Land 1,919,874 

  

$ 1,919,874 

Construction in progress 3,790,870 $ 2,454,269 $ (22,858) $ (2,488,254) 3,754,027 

Total capilal assets not bcing depreciated 5,710,744 2,454,269 (22,858) (2,488,254) 5,653,901 

Oilier capital assets 

    

Itoght-of-use lease - erp6pment 135,686 

 

(24,376) 111,310 

Rrght-of-use lease - land 234,565 

  

234,565 

Rigltt-of-use lease - improvemeols 1,346 

  

1,346 

14ln-of-use leas.e - vehicles 357,395 

  

157,395 

Infrastructure 157,493,275 

  

1,184,638 158,677,913 

Building 20, l 00,401 

  

20,100,401 

Hquipinent anti furnitin e 15,416,513 1,038,249 

 

16,454,762 

improvements 38,391,697 

  

1,303,616 39,695,313 

Total other capilal assets at hislorieal cost 232,130,878 1,038,249 (24,376) 2,466,254 235,633,005 

Lem accumulated depreciation and amortization for 

    

Right-of-use tease - equipment (56,390) (47,841) 24,376 (79,655) 

Right-of-use lease - land (34,290) (34,290) - (68,580) 

Right-of-use lease - improvements (379) (378) - (757) 

Righl-of-use lease - vehicles (46,257) (90,328) 

 

(136,585) 

Infrastruclure (84,453,62,5) (4,112,911) 

 

(89,576,537) 

Building (12,657,605) (778,866) 

 

(13,636,473) 

Equipment and furniture (13,927,651) (591,255) 

 

(14,518,906) 

Improvements (20,253,121) (1,581,696) 

 

(21,634,617) 

Total accumulated depreciation (131,639,319) (7,237,567) 24,376 (138,852,510) 

Other capital assets, nel 100,491,559 (6,199,316) - 2,488,254 96,780,495 

Oovernmental capital assets, net $ 106,202,303 $ (3,745,049) $ (22,858) $ - $ 102,434,396 

Businessgype activities: 

    

Capital assets not being deprecialed 

    

Censtruclicit in progress - $ - - $ 

Land 2,052,372 

  

2,052,372 

Land Improvements 1,710,164 

  

1,710,164 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,762,536 

  

3t2Nt536 

Other -capital assets' 

    

Right-of-use lease - equipmenl 21,446 

  

21,446 

Righl-of-use lease - vehicles 226,185 33,304 

 

259,489 

Buildings 5,571,364 

  

5,571,364 

EtlUipnceul 8,820,230 I,087,837 

 

9,908,067 
Improvements 24,019,924 

  

24 019,924 

Total other capital assets at historical cost 38,659,149 1,121,141 

 

39,780,290 

Lesn accumulaled depreciation and amortization fni 

    

Right-or-use lease - equipmenl (6,653) (6,997) 

 

(13,650) 

Right-of-use lease - vehicles (51,503) (55,807) 

 

(107,310) 

Buildings (4,682,193) (52,939) 

 

(4,735,132) 
Il.ortipment (8,255,415) (469,161) 

 

(8,724,576) 
Improvements (9,015,280) (765,250) 

 

(9,7110,530) 

Total accumulated depreciation (22,011.044) (1,350,154) 

 

(23,361,198) 

Other capital nssels, net le 648,105 (229,013) 

 

16,419,092 

Busincss-type activities capital asseta, nel $ 20,410,641 $ (229,013)  

 

$ 20,181,628  

Depreciation and amortization expenses wet e chat uctl to function as follows: 

Oover mitenlal activities: 

 

General government $ 1,132,114 
Public safety 1.,435,700 
Public works 3,078,967 
Health and welfare 413,859 
Culture and recreation 1,176,928 

Total nowt [internal activities depreciation expense 7,237,567 

Business type activities-

  

Reduction and Transfer $ 1,202,062 
Kemper William Park 72,950 
Small Animal Control 75, t 22 

Total business-type activities depreciation expense $ 1,350,154 



NOTE 12 -  FIXED ASSETS  

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capi₹al asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2023, is as follows: 

 

Beginning 

    

Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreoses Transfers Enclitic Balmier 
Capital assets nol being depreciated 

     

Land $ 1,919,874 

   

$ 1,919,874 
Construction in progress 7,790,870 $ 2,454,269 (22,858) $ (2,488,254) 3,734,027 

Total capital assets nol being depreciated 5,710,744 2,454,269 (22,858) (2,488,259 5,653,201 

Other capilal assels: 

     

Right-of-use lease equipment 135,685 

 

(24,376) 

 

111,510 
Right-or-use lease - land 234,565 

   

234,565 
Right-or-use lease - improvements 1,346 

   

1,346 
Right-or-use lease - vehicles 357,395 

   

357,395 

infrastructure 157,493,275 

  

1,184,638 158,677,913 
Building 20, l 00,401 

   

20,100,401 
F.quipment and tlarniture 15,416,513 1,038,249 

  

16,454,762 
Improvemenls 38,391,697 

  

1,303,616 39,695,313 

Total other capital assets at Idatorical cost 232,130,878 1,038,249 (24,376) 2,488 254 235,633,005 

Less accumulated deprecialion and amortization rot 

     

Riglii-of-uso lease - equipment (56,390) (47,841) 24,376 

 

(79,855) 

Right-of-use lease - land (34,290) (34,290) 

  

(08,580) 

Righl-of-use lease - improvenienis (379) (378) 

  

(757) 
Right-ef-use lease - vehicles (46,257) (90,328) 

  

(136,585) 

Intiastructure (84,463,626) (4,112,911) 

  

(38,576,537) 

Building (12,857,605) (778,868) 

  

(13,636,473) 

Equipment and ltirniture (13,927,651) (591,255) 

  

(14,518,906) 

Improvements (20,253,121) (1,581,696 

  

(21,834,817) 

Total accumulated depreciation (131,639,319) (7,237,567) 24,376 

 

(178,852,510) 

Olher capital assets, net 100,491,559 (6,199,318) 

 

2,488,234 96,780,495 

Governmental cavilsl assets, net $ 106,202,303 (3,745,049) $ (22,858) $ $ 102,434,396 

Business-type activities: 

     

Capital assets not being depreciated 

    

ConStrliciiOI1 in progr ess 5 - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Land 2,052,372 

  

2,052,372 
Land Improvements 710 154 

  

1,710,I64 

Total cavil al assets not being depreciated 3,762,536 

  

3,762,536 

Oilier capital assets: 

    

Right-or-use lease - equipment 21,446 

  

21,446 

Right-of-use lease - vehicles 226,185 33,304 

 

259,489 

Buildings 5,571,364 

  

5,571,364 

Erpdpment 6,820,230 1,087,837 

 

9,908,067 
improvements 24,019,924 

  

24,019,924 

Total other capital assets al hisiorical cost 38,659,149 1,121,141 

 

39,780,290 

Less accumulated depreciaiion and amortization tbr 

    

Right-of-use lease - equipment (6,653) (6,997) 

 

(13,650) 

Righi-of-use lease - vehicles (51,503) (55,807) 

 

(107,310) 

Buildings (4,682,193) (52,939) 

 

(4,735,132) 
Equipment (8,255,415) (469,161) 

 

(8,724,576) 
Improvements (9,015,280) (765,250) 

 

(9,780,530) 

Total accumulated depreciation (22,011,044) (1,350,154) 

 

(23,361;198) 

Other capital assets, net 16,648,105 J220,013) 

 

16,4119 092 

Business-type activilies capital assets, net $ 20,410,641 (229,013) $3 - $ $ 20,181,628 

Depreeintinn nnd mot tixatiun extremes were charged to function as follows: 

Governmental activities; 

 

Genet al government $ 1,132,114 
Public safety 1,435,700 
Public works 1,078,957 
Health and welfare. 413,859 
Culture and reereatron 1,176,928 

Total governmentat tavities depreciation expense 7,237,567 

Business lype activities: 

 

Reduction and Ti ansrer $ 1,202,082 
Kemper William Palk 72,953 
Small Animal Control 75,122 

Tolal business-type activities depreciation expense $ 1,350,154 



NOTE 12- FIXED ASSETS (continued) 

Capital asset and depreciation nativity for the component units is as follows: 

Major Components 

Water & Sewer COMMIsnloil Nn. 1 

Capital Assets not being depreciated 

Reg lAagt 

Balance lneveases Decrenses 

Reclass- Ending 

Ifications Balance 

  

Land $ 205,726 $ - $ - $ - $ 205,726 

Construction in progress 881,337 1,094,586 (34,756) 1,941,167 

Total capital assels not being depreciated 1,087,063 1,094,586 (34,756) - 2,146,893 

Olher Capital Assets 

  

Buildings 4,474,713 4,474,713 

Equipment and furniture 942,348 - 942,348 

Improvements 13,061,891 22,254 13,084,145 

Tolal other assets at histotical cost 18,478,952 22,254 18,501,206 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

  

Buildings (3,071,686) (I 00,673) (3,172,359) 

Equipment and furniture (633,914) (60,531) (694,445) 

Improvements (10,053,617) (219,888) (10,273,505) 

Infrastructure 

1 otal accumulated depreciation $ (13,759,217) $ (381,092) $ •• $ - $ (14,140,309) 

Tolal Capital Assets, net $ 5,806,798 $ 735,748 $ 134,756) $ - $ 6,507,790 

Water & Sewer Commission No.2 

Capilal Assets not being depreciated 

  

Land $ 51,709 $ - $ - $ - $ 51,709 

Consti notion in progress 31,059 31,059 

Total capita/ assets not being depreciated 82,768 82,768 

Other :Capital Assets 

  

Buildings 76,133 76,133 

Equipment and furniture 137,270 - 137,270 

hnprovernents 12,539,277 84,364 12,623,641 

Total other assets at historical cost 12,752,680 84,364 12,837,044 

Less accumulnteci depreciation foil 

  

Buildings (55,278) (1,380) (56,658) 

Equipment and funritule (109,046) (5,134) (114,180) 

Improvements (8,503,370) (344,718) (8,848,088) 

Total accumulated depreciation (8,667,694) (351,232) (9,018,926) 

Total Capital Assets, net $ 4,1671754 $ (266,868) $ - $ 3,900,886 

Water & Sewcr Commission No.3 

Capital Assets not being deprecialed 

  

Land $ 22,155 $ - $ - $ - $ 22,155 

Coastruction in progress 69,322 140,121 209,443 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 91,477 140,121 231,598 

Other Capital Assets 

  

Buildings 333,496 - 333,496 

Equipment and fimnitme 845,805 92,037 937,842 

Improvements 13,751,020 41,100 13,792,120 

Total other assets at historical cost 14,930,321 133,137 15,063,451 

Less accumulated depreciation for; 

  

Buildings (85,233) (30,705) (115,938) 

Equipment and iiirai tore (625,011) (43,988) (668,999) 

Impioveinctits (9,171,460) (312,056) (9,483,5L0) 

Total accumulated depreciation (9,881,721) (386,743) (70,268,447) 

Total Capital Assets, net $ 5,140,094 $ (113,485) $ - 11 $ 5.026,609 

Water & Sewer Commission No.4 

Capital Assets not being depreciated 

  

Land $ 6,926 $ - $ - 11 - $ 6,926 

Coast:int:lion in pi ogress 165,384 770,467 (133,055) - $ 802,796 

Total capital assets nol being depreciated 172,310 770,467 (133,055) 809,722 

Other Capital Assets 

  

Buildings 254,025 258,270 512,295 

Equipinent and funiitiwc 2,086,044 46,385 2,132,429 

Infrasuncl tire 24,767,774 368,080 25,135,854 

Improventents 3,522,272 27,771 - 3,550,043 

Total other capital assets 30,630 115 700,506 31,330,621 

Less accumulated depreciation for-

   

Buildings (64,288) (4,626) (68,914) 

Equipment and furniture (876,622) (33,660) (910,282) 

In frasii not Ure (20,626,90 i ) (637,856) (21,264,757) 

Improvements (350,424) (81,157) (431,581) 

Total accumulated depreciation (21,918,235) (757,299) (22,675,534) 

Total Capital Assels $ 8,884,190 $ 713,674 $ (133,055) $ - $ 9,464,809 
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NOTE 12- FiXED ASSETS (continued) 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 1 

Capitol Assets not being depreciated 

Ileeinnine 

Balance hicreases Decreases 

Reclass- Enting 

ifications MANIOC 

  

Land $ 8,600 $ - $ - $ - $ 8,600 

Construction io pi ogress $ 748,336 $ 15,607 $ (744,890) $ - $ 19,053 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 756,936 15,607 (744,890) 27,653 

Other Capital Assets 

  

Buildings 194,216 - - 

 

Equipment and furnitute 3,261,338 326,135 (272,898) 3,3

19

1

4

4„5

2

7

1

5

6 

Inn ['structure 5,835,197 - 744,890 6,580,087 

Total odic, assets at historical cost 9,290,751 326,135 471,992 10,088,878 

- Less accumulated depreciation for: 

  

Buildings (161,030) (4,855) - (165,885) 

Equipinent and funnture (2,919,628) (82,811) 272,898 (2,729,541) 

Infrasinicture (4,166,653) (250,987) (4,417,640) 

Total accumulated depreciation (7,247,311) (338,653) 272,898 (7,313,066) 

Total Capital Assets $ 2,800,376 $ 3,089 $ - $ - $ 2,803,465 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 2 
Capital Assets not being depreciated 

  

Land $ 2,789,972 $ - S - $ - $ 2,789,972 

Construction in progress 9,475,432 3,336,830 (711,361) 12,100,901 

Total capital assets not be ng depreciated 12,265,404 3,336,830 (711,361) 14,890,873 

Other Capital Assets 

  

Buildings 294,227 - 294,227 

Equipment and fimiture 3,674,139 12,293 3,886,432 

Infrastructure 22,254,268 6711,920 22,931,188 

Total other assets at historical cost 26,422,634 6139,213 - 27,111,847 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

  

Buiidings (285,346) (916) (286,262) 

Equipment and furniture (2,922,253) (79,146) (3,001,399) 

Infrastructure (7,562,335) (703,977) (8,266,312) 

Total accumulaied depreciation (10,769,934) (784,039) (11,553,973) 

Total Capital Assgts, net $ 27,918,104 $ 3,242,004 $ (711,361) $ 30,448,747 

Hospital District No. 1 
Capital Assets not being depreciated 

  

Land $ 1,374,125 $ 261,633 $ - $ - $ 1,635,758 

C011011Clioll in progress 13,715,994 - (13,448,588) 267,406 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 15,090,119 261,633 (13,448,588) 1,903,164 

Other Capital Assets 

  

Buildings 19,235,559 20,227,023 39,462,582 

Equipment and furnitme 20,781,530 2,618,822 23,400,452 

Improvements 1,012,485 1,786,466 2,800,951 

Total other assels nk hisloricul cost 41,029,674 24,634,311 65,663,985 

Less accunntlated depreciation for; 

  

Buildings (12,857,087) (758,820) (13,615,907) 

Equipment and fumitare (16,809,278) (1,083,873) (17,893,151) 

Impooveincats (892,530) (42,292) (934,822) 

Total accumulated depreriation (30,558,895) (1,884,965) (32,443,880) 

Total Capitai Assets, net $ 25,560,898 $ 23,010,959 $(13,448,588) $ $ 35.123,269  
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NOTE 12- FIXED ASSETS (continued) 

St. Mary Parisi] Library 

Capital Assets not being depreciated 

Beninnint 

Increases Decreoses 

Bathos- Ending 

Balance ificntions Balance 

   

Laud $ 320,891 $ - $ - $ - $ 320,891 

Consliuction in progress 3,055,650 636,677 (3,456,561) 235,766 

Total capilal assols rat being depreciated 3,376,541 636,677 (3,456,561) 556,657 

Other Capital Assels 

   

Buildings 6,498,192 3,456,561 (294,970) 9,659,783 

Equipment and furniture 2,100,884 108,835 (674,132) 1,535,587 

Total other assets at historical cost 8,599,076 3,565,396 (969,102) 11,195,370 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

   

Buildings (2,524,541) (297,571) 222,212 (2,599,900) 

Equipment mid furniture (1,230,766) (182,843) 67.1,132 (739,477) 

Total accumulated depreciation (3,755,307) (480,414) 896,344 (3,339,377) 

Total Capital Assets 8,220,310 $ 3 ,721,659 $ (3,529,319) $ - $ 8,412,650 

Major Components Total 

Capital Assets not being depreciated 

   

Land $ 4,780,104 $ 261,633 $ - $ - $ 5,041,737 

Construction in progress 28,142,514 5,994,288 (18,529,211) 15,607,591 

Tolal capital assets not being depreciated 32,922,618 6,255,921 (l8,529,2IL) 20,649,328 

Othec Capital Assets 

   

Buildings 31,360,561 23,941,854 (294,970) 55,007,445 

Equipment and fundture 34,029,458 3,204,507 (947,030) 36,286,935 

lunnovernents 43,886,945 1,963,955 45,850,900 

infrastnietwe 52,857,239 1,045,000 744,890 54,647,129 

Total other assets at historical cosi 162,134,203 30,155,316 (497,110) 191,792,409 

Leas accumulated depreciation far: 

   

Buildings (19,104,489) (1,199,546) 222,212 (20,081,823) 

Equipment and furniture (26,126,518) (1,571,986) 947,030 (26,751,474) 

Improvements (28,971,401) (1,000,105) (29,971,506) 

Infrastructure (32,355,889) (1,592,820) (33,)48,709) 

Total accumulated depiecialian (106,558,297) (5,364,457) 1,169,242 (110,753,512) 

Total Capital Assets, net $ 88,498,524 $ 31,046,780 $(17,857,079) $ - $ 101 688,225 

Nanmajor Components Total 

Capital Assets not being depreciated 

   

Land $ 1,236,245 $ 2,700 $ - $ - $ 1,238,945 

Improvements 120,680 

 

120,680 

Construction in progress 345,030 205,020 550,050 

Total capitol assets not being depreciated 1,701,955 207,720 1,909,675 

Other Capital Assets 

   

Buildings 64,996,287 352,238 (11,533) 65,336,992 

Equipinent mid finniture 24,340,002 1,382,467 (650,763) 55,680 25,127,386 

Improvements 8,102,186 92,451 (138,670) (55,680) 8,000,287 

Tool other assets al historical cost 97,438,475 1,827,156 (800,966) 98,464,665 

Less accuithilaled deprecialion foi; 

   

Buildings (46,624,405) (1,150,135) 9,150 (47,765,390) 

Equipinent and fat nitui c (17,611,534) (1,075,971) 617,805 (18,069,610) 

Improvements (5,512,288) (208,929) 105,844 (5,615,373) 

Total accumulated depreciation (69,748,227) (2,435,035) 732,889 (71,450,373) 

Thud Capital Assets, net 29,392,203 $ (400,159) $ (68,077) $  - $ 28,923,967  
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NOTE 12 - FIXED ASSETS (continued) 

Tutal Components 

Capital Assets not being depreciated 

1t 

Balance litcceases Decreases 

 

Red1185- 

ifieations 

EllAkl 
Balance 

     

Land $ 6,016,349 $ 264,333 $ 

  

$ 6,280,682 

lnipi oveinents 120,680 

 

- 

  

120,680 

CO1151111C11O11 in progress 28,487,544 6,199,308 (18,529,211) 

  

16,157,641 

Total capital assets 1101 being depreciated 34,624,573 6,463,641 (18,529,211) 

  

22,559,003 

Other Capital Assets 

      

Buildings 96,356,848 24,294,092 (306,503) 

  

120,344,437 

Equipment and furniture 58,369,460 4,586,974 (1,597,793) 

 

55,680 61,414,321 

linprovements 51,989,131 2,056,406 (138,670) 

 

(55,680) 53,851,187 

Infrastructure 52,857,239 1,045,000 744,890 

  

54,647,129 

Total other assets at historical cost 259,572,678 31,982,472 (1,298,076) 

  

290,257,074 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

      

Buildings (65,728,894) (2,349,681) 231,362 

  

(67,847,213) 

Equipment and furniture (43,738,052) (2,647,957) 1,564,925 

  

(44,821,084) 

1111proveillelll$ (34,483,689) (1,209,034) 105,844 

  

(35,586,879) 

Infrastructure (32,355,889) (1,592,820) 

   

(31,948,709) 

Total accumulated depreciation (176,306,524) (7,799,492) 1,902,131 

  

(182,203,885) 

Total Capitat Assets, net 117,090,727  9 30,646,621  9(17,925,15D 9 

 

130,612,192 

Reclassifications of certain Capital Assets have been made so that the categories of capital assets as reported by the Discretely Presented 

Component units are the sante as those used by the Council, 

Depreciation expense for the eomponent units were charged to functions as follows: 

Govenunental activities: 

 

General government $ 44,753 

Drainage 1,356,789 
Public safety 53,691 
Fire Protection 481,828 
Library 480,414 
Culture and recreation 988,894 
Tourism 175,444 

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 3,581,813 

Business-type activities: 

 

Water 8c sewer S 2,332,694 

Medical care 1,884,985 

Total busincss-type activities depreciation expense $ 4,217,679 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT 

As of December 31, 2023, the governmental long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be 
repaid frorn governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities. 

Governmental Activities: 

As of Decernber 31, 2023, the governmental long-term debt of the Council consisted of the following: 

Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds 

$2,500,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009, were issued March 1, 
2009, to irnprove, construct and acquire buildings, equipnlent, and books for 
the parish libraries, outside the City of Morgan City. The bonds bear interest at 
3.8 to 4.0 percent and are payable through the year 2029. These bonds are to 
be retired from ad valorem taxes. Although the Council is servicing these 
bonds, the St. Mary Parish Library Fund will be expending the proceeds and 
will also be transferring ad valorem taxes to the Council to service the debt. 
These bonds are being paid from the St. Mary Parish Library General 
Obligation '96 Sinking Fund 

$600,000 of Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 2020 were issues June 30, 
2020 for the purpose of (1) acquiring, constructing, extending, or improving 
works of public improvement within the Issuer (2) paying the cost of issuance 
of the Certificates. The bonds bear interest at 3.250 percent being retired frorn 
the Certificate of Indebtedness 
Sinking Fund, 

$1,030,000 

250,000 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

S3,960,000 Taxable Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 
2020 proceeds were issued February 27, 2020, The proceeds along with 
$633,803 from the Debt Service Reserve Fund and $29,299 from the Debt 
Service Fund was used to partially advance refund $4,325,000 of outstanding 
Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2011. The bonds bear interest 
of 1.80% to 2.54% and are 
payable through 2031 are being retired from the Sales Tax Bond 
Sinking Fund. $3,570,000 

Plus original issue premium, amortized on a straight line basis 106,800 

S1,500,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2020A was issued 
February 27, 2020 for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, 
maintaining and repairing roads, capital improvements, public works and 
buildings, including the acquisition of necessary fixtures, equiprnent, 
furnishings and appurtenances bonds bear interest at 2.07 percent being retired 
from the Sales Tax Bond 
Sinking Fund and are payable through 2031. 

$I,000,000 of Taxable Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2021 was 
issued July 1, 2021 for the purpose of improving, equipping and furnishing the 
Parish jail facilities. The bonds bear interest of 2.28% and are payable 
through 2031 and are being retired frorn the 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund. 

REVENUE BONDS 

$2,190,000 Sewerage Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2015, were issued 
April 17, 2015, to repay $2,135,000 of Sewerage Sales Tax Bonds Series 2006. 
The bonds bear interest of 2.09% and are payable through 2025. The bonds 
are to be retired from the Three-fourths Percent Sales Tax and are paid from 
the Three-fourths Percent Sales 
Tax Bond Sinking Fund. 

1,075,000 

835,000 

525,000 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

S3,890,000 of Sewerage Sales Tax refunding bonds, Series 2012, were issued 
on October 1, 2012, for the purpose of refunding $3,810,000 of. Sewerage 
Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2004 and paying the cost of issuance of the bonds. 
The bonds bear interest of 2.0 to 2.75 percent and are payable through the 
year 2024. The bonds are to be retired from the Three-fourths percent Sales 
Tax and are paid from the 
Three-fourths Percent Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund. $410,000 

Plus original issue premium, amortized on straight-line basis 3,376 

$19,500,000 of Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 were issued on April 
16, 2021 to provide debt service savings the purpose of refunding the Series 
2018 and 2019 Bonds The bonds bear interest at 2.95% and are payable 
through 2039. These bonds are being retired 
from the Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund. 17,440,000 

$11,500,000 Louisiana Local Governrnent Environmental Facilities and 
Community Developrnent Authority Revenue Bonds (St, Maly Parish 
GOMESA Project) Series 2019 Bonds were issued on July 23, 2019. These 
bonds were issued for the purpose of coastal restoration and other activities 
and endeavors permitted under the provisions of GOMESA. The bonds bear 
interest at 4.40% and are payable through 2045. These bonds are being retired 
frorn GOMESA Debt Service 
Fund with GOMESA revenues received each year. $10,560,000 

Accrued conipensated absences-all noncurrent 249,000 

Total Governmental Activity Debt $36,054,176 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

Business-type Activities: 

As of Decernber 31, 2023, the long-term debt payable from proprietary fund resources consisted of 
the following: 

$6,010,000 of Solid Waste Sales Refunding Tax Bonds, Series 2017, were 
issued on July 13, 2017 for the purpose of constructing and acquiring 
improvements at the parish landfill. The certificates bear interest of 1.75 to 5 
percent and are payable through the year 2028. The bonds are to be retired 
from the three-fourths percent sales tax and excess operating revenues from the 
landfill and are to be paid from the 
Reduction and Transfer Fund $4,830,000 

Plus original issue premium 225,124 

$4,945,000 of Solid Waste Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2013, were issued on April 
9, 2013 for the partial refunding of Solicl Waste Bonds, Series 2008. The 
Certificates bear interest of 2.0 to 3.25 percent and payable through the year 
2024. The bonds are to be retired from the three-fourths percent sales tax and 
excess operating revenues from the 
landfill and are to be paid from the Reduction and Transfer Fund 550,000 

Total Enterprise Indebtedness $5,605,124 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT  (continued) 

At December 31, 2023, $27,795,000 of outstanding bonds are considered defeased. 

The Council is subject to certain affirmative and negative covenants pursuant to its bond and debt agreernents. 
These covenants include but are not limited to: 

1 Establishment and funding of certain debt service funds 
2 Preparation and adoption of budgets 
3 Preparation and independent audit of financial statements 
4 Restriction as to additional debt issuance 
5 Restriction as to investments 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended Deceniber 31, 2023, was as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Bonds payable: 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Amounts 
Due within 
One Year 

     

General obligation Debt $ 7,630,000 

 

$ (870,000) $ 6,760,000 $ 895,000 
Revenue bonds 31,085,000 

 

(1,815,000) 29,270,000 1,860,000 
Original issue premium 133,976 

 

(23,800) 110,176 23,800 

Total bonds payable 38,848,976 

 

(2,708,800) 36,140,176 2,778,800 
Othcr liabilities: 

     

Compensated absences 330,000 

 

(81,000) 249,000 

 

Lease obligation payable 708,158 627,364 (305,732) 1,029,790 297,974 
Total other liabilities 1,038,158 627,364 (386,732) 1,278,790 297,974 

Governmental activities long-term 
liabilities $ 39,887,134 $ 627,364 $ (3,095,532) $ 37,418,966 $ 3,076,774 

Business-type Activities 

     

Bonds payable: 

     

Landfill debt $ 6,310,000 $ $ (930,000) $ 5,380,000 $ 955,000 
Original issue premium 289,124 

 

(64,000) 225,124 64,000 

Total bonds payable 6,599,124 

 

(994,000) 5,605,124 1,019,000 

Other liabilities: 

     

Lease obligation payable 190,196 697,333 (153,823) 733,706 163,519 

Business-type activities long-term 
liabilities $ 6,789,320 $ 697,333 $ (1,147,823) S 6,338,830 $ 1,182,519 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT  (continued) 

Debt Maturity 

Debt service requirements (excluding compensated absences and premiums or discounts) at 
December 31, 2023 were as follows: 

Governmental Activities - Bonds 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

General Obligation 
Principal Interest 

Revenue Bonds 
Principal Interest 

2024 895,000 163,398 1,860,000 1,003,349 
2025 920,000 141,349 1,490,000 946,453 
2026 820,000 120,298 1,270,000 899,551 
2027 845,000 99,806 1,315,000 856,496 
2028 875,000 78,262 1,355,000 811,970 

2029-2031 2,405,000 109,452 4,350,000 2,153,525 
2032-2044 

  

17,630,000 3,836,774 
Total $ 6,760,000 $ 712,565 $ 29,270,000 $ 10,508,118 

 

Business-type Activities 
Solid Waste 

 

Council's Total Debt 

 

Landfill Debt 

Principal lnterest Principal Interest Total 
2024 955,000 213,613 3,710,000 1,380,360 5,090,360 
2025 1,030,000 172,850 3,440,000 1,260,652 4,700,652 
2026 1,080,000 125,500 3,170,000 1,145,349 4,315,349 
2027 1,130,000 75,650 3,290,000 1,031,952 4,321,952 
2028 1,185,000 23,700 3,415,000 913,932 4,328,932 

2029-2031 

  

6,755,000 2,262,977 9,017,977 
2032-2044 

  

17,630,000 3,836,774 21,466,774 

 

$ 5,380,000 $ 611,313 41,410,000 $ 11,831,996 $ 53,241,996 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE BY COMPONENT ENTITIES ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

MAJOR COMPONENTS  

Water & Sewer Commission No, 3 formally Sewerage District No. 5  
Compensated absences $72 187 

Total for Water & Sewerage Commission No. 3 $72 187 

Water & Sewer Commission No. 4  
$1,200,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2008 were issued in 2008. The 
bonds bear interest at 3.94 percent and are payable in annual installments of 
$35,000-$95,000 through March 2028. 425,000 

$3,000,000 General Obligation Bond Series 2014, issued July 2014 for 
construction improvernents to the waterworks plant and system, payable 
in annual installments of $175,000 to $260,000 through 2028; semi-annual 
interest payable at 0.25% to 3.00% per annum. 

$900,000 Water Revenue Notes Payable Bonds, due in monthly installments of 
$4,230 beginning January 27, 2003; payable over 40 years; interest rate of 4.75% 
per annum 

1,230,000 

617,284 

$655,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, dated June 22, 2016; due 
in annual installments of $75,000 to $90,000 through March 1, 2024; semi-annual 
interest payable at 1.875 percent to 2.125 percent 90,000 

Compensated absences 136,959 

(Formally Sewerage District No. 9)  
$1,100,000 on Sewerage Revenue Bonds were issued in 2000 for the purpose of 
constructing and acquiring improvements to the sewerage systern. The bonds 
bear interest at 4.50 percent and are payable through 
the year 2042. 

Total Water & Sewer Commission No. 4 
716,237 

$3,215,480 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

$180,116 Capital Lease Payable with payment due rnonthly collateralized by 
equipment. Lease includes provisions for additional incremental payments in 
the event the equipment is used rnore than certain amounts. These additional 
payments have not been included in the lease liability 31,749 

$83,897 Capital Lease Payable with payment due monthly collateralized by 
equipment. Lease includes provisions for additional incremental payments in 
the event the equipment is used more than certain amounts. These additional 
payrnents have not been included in the lease liability 31,229 

Coinpensated absences 143,388 

Total for Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 1 $206,366 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage No. 2  
$3,280,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, payable in 
annual installrnents of $285,000 to $505,000 through March 1, 2025,with an 
interest rate of 2.39% 

$3,130,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017, payable in 
annual installments of $360,000 to $535,000 with interest at 3.00 to 4.00 
percent payable through March 1, 2029 

465,000 

2,770,000 

$6,115,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017, payable in aruival 
installments of $65,000 to $565,000 with interest at 2.00 to 4.00 percent 
payable through March 1, 2037 5,710,000 

Plus original issue premium 383,331 

Future lease agreement 256,531 

Total for Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 2 $9,584,862 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

Hospital Service District No. 1  

$5,000,000 of revenue bonds were issued in 2007. The bonds bear interest at 
4.25 percent and are payable through the year 2047. $3,479,007 

Right of Use Obligation 389,681  

Total for Hospital Service District No. 1 $3,868,688 

Total for Major Components $16,947,583  

NONMAJOR COMPONENTS 

Atchafalaya Golf Course Commission 

In prior years, the Commission entered into two long-term leasing 
arrangements for tlie acquisition of golf course equipment and 
beverage cart totaling $436,000. In the current year, the Commission 
entered into iiew long-term leasing arrangement for the acquisition 
of golf carts totaling $304,000 $284,978 

Total for Atchafalaya Golf Course Commission $248 978 

Fire Protection District No. 2  
The District entered into two capital lease agreements for financing the 
acquisition of fire trucks. Annual payments due on January 15 of each year for 
seven years beginning January 15, 2014, in the amount of $27,340 at a fixed 
interest rate of 2.79%. Annual payments due on September 22 of each year with 
an initial lease payinent of $50,000 due September 22, 2016 and seven payments 
in the amount of $38,099 at a fixed Interest rate of 3.20% beginning September 
22, 2017. $214,183  

Total for Fire Protection District No. 2 $214,183  
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

Fire Protection District No. 7  
51,250,000 of General Obligation Bonds were issued on August 30, 2012 for the 
purpose of acquiring, constructing, and irnproving fire protection facilities, 
machinery, and equipment. The bonds bear interest at a rate of 3.15 percent and 
are payable through the year 2032. The bonds are to be retired with ad valorem 
taxes by the debt service fund. $660 000   

Total Fire Protection District No. 7 $660,000 

St. Maiy Parish Communications District 
The District recognizes a 41 month subscription for the use of a telephone 
communications system as of January 1, 2023. The subscription has an interest 
rate of 1.70%. The intangible right of use asset is reported with capital assets on 
the Statement of Net Position. The asset and accurnulated amortization is 
outlined 
in Note 5. S258,988 

Total St. Mary Parish Communications District $258,988 

Recreation District No. 2  
$2,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2.023 issued March 1, 2023. The 
bonds bear interest at a rate of 2.19% and are payable through the year 2032. The 
bonds are being retired from ad valorem taxes by the Debt Service Fund. $1,836,000 

Total Recreation District No. 2 $1,836,000 

St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission 
At the commencement of a lease, the Commission initially measures the lease 
liability at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease 
terrn. For purposes of discounting future payments on the lease, the Commission 
used the incremental borrowing rate (IBR) of 2.7% and 2.4%. Subsequently, the 
lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease payrnents made. The 
lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted 
for lease payments made at or before the lease cornmenceinent date, plus certain 
initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of its useful life or the lease term. $15,117 

Total for St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission $15,117 

St. Maiy Parish Assessor 
Equipment — A lease agreement with Pitney Bowes for a postage machine. The 
agreement began March 13, 2022 for a term of 5 years and is cancellable, by any 
party, at any time. The Assessor will not acquire the equipment at the end of the 
term. $23,650 

Total for St. Maiy Parish Assessor $23 650 

73 



NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

$812,000 Lirnited Tax Refilnding Bonds, Series 2018, due in annual installnlents 
of 8127,000 to $145,000 through March 1, 2024, interest fixed at 3.12% payable 
from ad valorern taxes of the District. Issued to redeem its outstanding Series 
2013 
Limited Tax Bonds and Series 2014 Certificate of Indebtedness 

Total for Recreation District No. 3 

145,000 

$145,000 

St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 
Lease Liability 
Cornpensated Absences 

Total for the St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 

Total Nonniajor Components 

Total Component Units 

$16,269 
20,680 

$36,949 

$3,474,865  

$20,422,448 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

Long-term liability activity for the component units for 2023 was as follows: 

Major Components 

Water and Sewer Commission No. 4 
Bonds Payable: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Amounts 
Due within 

One Year 

    

General Obligation Debt $ 2,130,000 - $ (385,000) $ 1,745,000 $ 395,000 
Revenue Bonds 1,381,457 (47,936) 1,333,521 49,635 
Compensated Absenses 106,155 33,644 (2,840) 136,959 

 

Total 3,617,612 33,644 (435,776) 3,215,480 444,635 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 1 

    

Bonds Payable: 

    

Capital Leases Payable 62,978 (48,535) - 62,978 48,535 
Compensated Absences 140,439 2,949 143,388 

 

Total 203,417 (45,5146) - 206,366 48,535 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 2 
13onds Payable: 

    

General Obligation Debt 10,096,876 (768,545) 9,328,331 795,877 
Lease Liability 256,531 - 256,531 58,927 

Total Bonds Payable 10,096,876 (768,545) 9,584,862 854,804 

Water flnd ,Sewer Commission No. 3 

    

Other Liabilities 

    

Compensated Absences 13,232 86,068 (27,113) 72,187 

 

Totul other liabilities 13,232 86,068 (27,1 I 3) 72,187 

 

Hospital Service District No, 1 

    

Bonds Payable: 

    

Revenue Bonds . 3,591,469 (112,462) 3,479,007 320,497 

Other Liabilities 

    

Capital Leases Payable 624,366 3,131 (237,816) 389,681 

 

Provider Relict' Funds 542,285 (542,285) 

  

'rota] debt 4,758,120 3,131 (892,563) 3,868,688 320,497 

Total Major Components $ 18,689,257 $ 77,257 $ (2,123,997) $ 16,947,583 $ 1,668,471 

Nonmajor Components 

    

WiiX Lake East Draiimge District 

    

Bonds Payable: 

    

General Obligation Debt 210,000 (21.0,aoc9 

  

Total Bonds Payable 210,000 (210,000) 

  

Fire Protection District No. 2 

    

Capital Leases Payable 304,950 (90,767) 214,183 52,898 

Total other liabilities 304,950 (90,767) 214,183  52,898 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

Fire Protection District No. 7 
Bonds Payable: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Amounts 
Due willtin 
One Year 

     

General Obligation Debt 722,000 

 

(62,000) 660,000 64,000 

Total Bonds Payable 722,000 

 

(62,000) 660,000 64,000 

Recreation District No. 2 

     

Bonds Payable: 

     

General Obligation Debt 2,000,000 

 

(164,000) 1,836,000 167,000 

Total Bonds Payable 2,000,000 

 

(164,000) 1,836,000 167,000 

Recreation District No. 3 

     

Bonds Payable: 

     

General Obligalion Debt 403,000 

 

(258,000) 145,000 145,000 

Total Bonds Payable 403,000 

 

(258,000) 145,900 145,000 

Atchafalaya Golf Course 

     

Bonds Payable: 

     

Capital Leases Payable 284,978 

  

284,978 72,732 

Total Bonds Payable 284,978 

  

284,978 72,732 

St. Mary Parish Conimunications District 

     

Compensated Absences Payable 19,482 3,927 (3,927) 19,482 

 

SB1TA 185,354 

 

(53,328) 132,026 53,975 

Direct Borrowings - 107,480 - 107,480 19,143 

Total other liabililies 204,836 111,407 (57,255) 258,988 73,118 

St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission 

     

General Obligation Debl 

 

16,142 (1,025) 15,117 3,045 

Total Bonds Payable 

 

16,142 (1,025) 15,117 3,045 

St. Mary Parish Asscssor 

     

Capital Leases Payable 33,021 

 

(9,371) 23,650 9,868 

Total other liabilities 33,021 

 

(9,371) 23,650 9,868 

St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 

     

Lease Liability 29,837 - (13,568) 16,269 13,916 

Compensated Absences Payable 

 

20,680 

 

20,680 - 

Total other liabilities 29,837 20,680 (13,568) 36,949 13,916 

Total Nonmajor Components S 4,213,601 $ 36,822 $ (910,615) $ 3,474,865 601,577 

Total Component Units $ 22,902,858  $ 114,079 $ (3,034,6.11 $ 20,422,448  $ 2,270,048 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT  (continued) 

Debt Maturity 

Debt Service Requirements (excluding compensated absences and premiums or discounts) at the component's 2023 year ends, are as follows: 

Major components General Obligation Revenue Bonds Capital Leases 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

Water and Sewer Cominission No. 4 

2024 395,000 48,782 49,635 61,053 

  

2025 320,000 37,509 51,989 58,699 

  

2026 330,000 27,588 54,45z1 56,234 

  

2027 345,000 17,013 57,037 53,651 

  

2028 355,000 5,772 59,742 50,946 

  

2029-2033 

  

344,010 209,430 

  

2034-2038 

  

433,746 119,694 

  

2039-2043 

  

282,908 20,294 

  

Total $ 1,745,000 $ 136,664 $ 1,333,521 $ 630,001  $  - $  

Consolidnted Cravity 

Drainage District No. 1 

2024 

 

48,535 1,331 
2025 

 

14,443 232 

Total $ 62,978 $ 1,563 

Consolidated Gravity 

Drainage District No. 2A 

Unammortized premium on debt 383,331 

     

2024 735,000 316,028 58,927 9,396 

  

2025 765,000 293,046 61,383 6,940 

  

2026 805,000 268,988 63,941 4,382 

  

2027 845,000 248,688 66,606 1,717 

  

2028 885,000 209,038 5,674 / 9 

  

2029-2033 2,770,000 691,500 256,531 22,454 

  

2034-2037 2,140,000 218,000 

    

Total $ 9,328,331 $ 2,245,288 

    

Hospital Seivire District No. 1 

      

2024 

  

320,497 158,717 

  

2025 

  

232,008 146,018 

  

2026 

  

190,277 137,629 

  

2027 

  

147,095 130,222 

  

2028 

  

138,885 123,915 

  

2029-2033 

  

790,100 523,900 

  

2034-2038 

  

976,803 337,197 

  

2039-2043 

  

1,073,023 107,589 

  

Total 

  

$ 3,868,688 S 1,665,187 

  

Total Major Components $ 11,073 331 $ 2,381,952 $ 5,458,740 $ 2,317,642 $ 62,978 $ 1,563 
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

Nonmajor Components 

General Obligation Revenue Bonds Capital Leases 

Principal leteal Principal Interest Prim Interest 

St. Mary Parish Assesar 

2024 9,868 l ,256 

2025 10,392 732 

2026 3,200 180 

2027 190 10 

Total $ 23,650 S 2,178 

St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 

2024 13,916 
2025 2,353  

Total 16,269 $ 

Fire Protection District No. 2 

2024 52.898 6,596 

2025 54,585 4,909 

2026 25,516 3,169 

2027 26,274 2,411 

2028 27,054 1,631 

2029 27,856 827 

rotal $ 214,183 $ 19,543 

Fire Protection District No. 7 

  

2024 64,000 19,782 
2025 67,000 17,719 
2026 69,000 15,577 
2027 71,000 13,372 
2028 73,000 11,104 

2029.2032 316,000 20,318 

Total $ 660,000 $ 97,872 



NOTE 13 - LONG TERM DEBT (continued) 

Recreation District No, 2 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

General Obligation 

Principal 

 

Revenue Bonds Capital Leases 

Interest Principal interest Principal Interest 

187,000 

191,000 

195,000 

199,000 

204,000 

38,161 

34,022 

29,795 

25,481 
21,068 

2029-2032 860,000 

 

38,171 

Total $ 1,836,000 5 186,698 

Recreation District No. 3 

   

2024 145,000 

  

Total $ 145,000 $ 

 

Atchafalaya Golf Course 

   

2024 72,732 

 

8,775 
2025 60,040 

 

5,165 
2026 61,739 

 

3,466 
2027 63,487 

 

1,718 
2028 26,980 

 

189 

Total 284,978 

 

19,313 

St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission 

2024 

    

3,045 368 

2025 

    

3,127 286 

2026 

    

3,211 202 

2027 

    

3,298 115 

2028 

    

2,436 30 

Total 

    

$ 15,117 $ 1,001 

St. Mary Parish Communications District 

      

2024 19,143 6,233 

  

53,975 1,825 

2025 20,253 5,123 

  

54,900 900 

2026 21,428 3,948 

  

23,151 99 

2027 22,670 2,706 

  

132,026 2,824 
2028 23,986 1,391 

    

'I'otaI $ 107,480 19,401 

    

Total Nonmajor Components 3,049,727 $ 323,284 $ 23,650 $ 2,178 $ 361,326 $ 5,456 

Total Component Units $ 14,123,058 $ 2,705,236 5 482,390 $ 2,319,820 $ 424,304 $ 7,019 
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NOTE 14- CAPITAL LEASE 

In a prior year, the Council entered into a long-terrn, 5 year, lease purchase agreement for construction 
equipment totaling $186,506. The Council is to pay 541,249 beginning June 1, 2021 and ending June 1, 
2025. 

In the current year, the Council entered into 3 long-terrn, 5 year, lease purchase agreements for 
construction equipment totaling $1,291,391. 

These agreements qualify as contracts that transfer ownership for accounting purposes and therefore do 
not qualify as GASB 87 Leases. The obligation was recorded at the present value of the future 
minimum lease payments as of the lease inception. 

As of December 31, 2023, the equipment acquired with these lease purchase agreements is reported at 
$625,595 (5794,900 less $169,305 for accumulated arnortization) for Governmental Activities and 
$616,597 ($664,027) less 547,430 for accumulated amortization) for Business-Type Activities in the 
Statement of Net Position as equipment and furthture. 

In the year 2023, $99,363 and $47,430 of arnortization was taken on the equipment. 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of the minimum lease payments as of 
December 31, 2023 is as follows: 

 

Governmental Business-Type 

 

Year ending December 31 Activities Activities Total 
2024 $186,770 $138,720 $325,490 
2025 186,770 138,720 325,490 
2026 145,523 138,720 284,243 
2027 145,523 263,745 409,268 
2028 22,035 -- 22,035 
Total minimum lease payments $686,621 $679,905 $1,366,526 
Less: Interest portion (80,472) (107,617) (188,089) 
Present value of minimum lease payments $606,149  $572,288  $1,178_,437  
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NOTE 14 - CAPITAL LEASE (continued) 

Leases Payable 

For the year ended 12/31/2023, the financial statements include the adoplion of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The primary objective of this statement 
is to enhance the re]evance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. This statement establishes a single model for lease 
accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize 
a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable arid a deferred inflow of resources For 
additional information, refer to the disclosures below. 

As of 12/31/2023, St. Mary Parish, LA had 31  active leases The leases have payinents that range froin S250 to $51,900 and interest rates that range 
from 0,2580% to 3.4450%. As of 12/31/2023, the total combined value of the lease liability is 8585,059, the total combined value of the short-term lease 
liability Is $208,009 The combined value of the right to use asset, as of 12/31/2023 of $985,551 with accumulated amortization of $406,737 is included 
within the Lease Class activities table found below. The leases had $0 of Variable Payinents and $0 of Other Payments, not included in the Lease 
Liability, within the Fiscal Year. 

Amount of Lease Assets by Major Classes of UnderIying Asset 

Asset C]ass 

 

As of Fiscal Year-end 

  

Lease Asset Value Accumulated Amorlization 
Equipment $ 132,756 $ 93,505 
Vehicles 

 

616,884 243,895 
Land 

 

234,565 68,580 
Land linprovements 

 

1,346 757 
Total Leases $ 985,551 $ 406,737 

Principal and Interest Requirements to Maturity 

Fiscal Year 

   

Business-Type Activities 

   

Principal Payments Interest Payments 

 

Total Payments 
2024 

 

$ 64,613 $ 1,372 $ 65,985 
2025 

  

58,790 

 

862 

 

59,652 
2026 

  

28,253 

 

411 

 

28,664 
2027 

  

6,852 

 

187 

 

7,039 
2028 

  

2,912 

 

21 

 

2,933 

 

Total $ 161,420 $ 2,853 $ 164,273 

Fiscal Year 

         

Governmental Activities 

   

Principal Payinents Interest Payments 

 

Total Payinonts 
2024 

 

$ 143,396 $ 7,084 $ 150,480 
2025 

  

107,279 

 

4,659 

 

111,938 
2026 

  

87,756 

 

2,406 

 

90,162 
2027 

  

51,211 

 

952 

 

52,163 
2028 

  

33,997 

 

355 

 

34,352 

 

Total $ 423,639 $ 15,456 $ 439,095 
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NOTE 14 • CAPITAL LEASE (continued) 

Leases Receivable 

As of 12/31/2023, St. Mtay parish, LA had 6 active leases. The Ieases havc receipts that range from $3,267 to $212,205 and interest rates that range 
from 0.3800% to 2,5360%. As of 12/31/2023, the. total combined value of the lease receivable is $1,097,285, the total combined vulue of the short-
term lease receivable is $146,94 , and the combined value of the deferred inflow of resources is $843,698. The leases had $0 of Variable Receipts 
and $0 of Other Receipts, not included in the Lease Receivable, within the Fiscal Year. 

Principal and interest Expected to Maturity 

Fiscal Year 

         

Governmental Activities 

   

Principal Payments Interest Payments 

 

Total Payments 
2024 

 

$ 146,941 $ 25,297 $ 172,238 
2025 

  

269,401 

 

20,352 

 

289,753 
2026 

  

273,838 

 

13,877 

 

287,715 
2027 

  

407,105 

 

8,431 

 

415,536 

 

Total $ 1,097,285 $ 67,957 $ 1,165,242 
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NOTE 14 - CAPTIAL LEASE (continued) 

Leases Payable 

As of 12/31/2023, the Component Units had 9 active leases. The lenses have payments that range from 83 l 4 to 890,087 and interest rates that range from 0 59% to 5.3 % As of 1213112023,  the 
total combined value of the lease liability is $429,600. Thc combined value of the right to uso asset, as of 12/31/2023 of 5544,427 will) accumulated amortization af $313,949 is included within 
the Lease Class activities table found below. The leases had $0 of Variable Paynents and S0 of Other Payments, not included in the Lease Liability, within the Fiscal Yost. 

Amount of Lease Assets by WM" Classes of Underlying Asset 

' Component Unit 

 

As of Fiscal Year-end 

  

Lease As.set Value Accumulated Amortization 
Hospital District 4 l 

 

459,595 266,834 
St Mao,  Perish Assessor 

 

40,584 18,690 
St Wry parish Clerk of Court 

 

44,245 28,375 
Total Leases 

 

544.427 313,949 

Principal and Interest Requirements to Maturity 

         

hospital District #1 

   

Principal Payments interest Payments 

 

Total Payments 
2024 

 

31,251 7,498 38,749 
2025 

 

167,638 1,593 169,231 
2026 

 

137.306 327 137,633 

  

336,195 9,418 345,613 

  

St. Mary Parish Assesor 

   

Principal Payments Interest Payments 

 

Total Payments 
2024 

 

9,868 I 256 11,124 
2025 

 

10,392 732 11,124 
2026 

 

3,200 180 3,380 
2027 

 

I 90 10 200 

  

23,650 2,178 25,828 

  

St. Mary Peri.sh Clerk of Court 

   

Principal Payments lnterest Payments 

 

Total Payments 
2024 

 

13,916 251 14,167 
2025 

 

2 353 7 2,360 

  

16,269 258 16,527 
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NOTE 15 - VENTURES WITH OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

The Council is participating in an agreement with the City of Franklin (City) for the operation of 
sewerage facilities for the City and surrounding Parish areas. The City government operates the system 
including budgetary and financial matters and the Council does not participate in the operation or 
management of the system. The Council reimburses the City for thirty percent of the operating costs. 
The Council, in turn, is reimbursed for 33% of its share by St. Mary Parish Water and Sewer 
Commission No. 4. The fiscal year for the project ends April 30, 2023. 

Total revenues for the year ended April 30, 2023, were approximately $169,000; total expenditures were 
approximately $440,000. Separate balance sheet amounts are not readily available at year end. 

The City maintains separate financial information for this project, which is included in its financial 
report for the year ended April 30, 2023, which is available from the Chief Financial Officer of the City 
of Franklin. 

The City, Parish, and the St. Mary Parish Consolidated Drainage District No. 1 (District) have agreed to 
set up a fund for maintenance of the Yokely Pumping Station. Each of the three is to place in a Capital 
Maintenance Fund money in the amount of $3,333 per year until the amount reaches the sum of 
$50,000. At any time the fund falls below $50,000 each entity is to replenish the fund on the same equal 
basis up to $50,000. The District is in charge of overseeing the Capital Maintenance Fund. The District 
maintains separate financial information for this project, which is included in its fmancial report for the 
year ended September 30, 2023, which is available from the Clerk of the St. Mary Parish Council. Total 
revenues for the year ended September 30, 2023, were approximately $7,000; total expenditures were 
approximately $7,000. At September 30, 2023, total assets were approximately $22,000 and the total 
fund balance was approximately $19,000. 

In 2009 the City, the Council, and the District entered into intergovernmental agreement with the State 
of Louisiana to fund Phase II of the Yokely Project. The total estimated cost of engineering and 
construction of this phase of the project is $1,723,494, with the State's share being 90% of the cost or 
$1,551,145 and the local share of the project being 10% or $172.350. The City, the Council, and the 
District are each responsible for one-third of the local share. The Council has made payments totaling 
approximately $497,000 through 2023, which includes construction, engineering, legal, and right of way 
costs incurred prior to beginning construction. The City is in charge of overseeing the project until 
completion and will maintain fmancial information on the project which will be available from the 
City's Chief Financial Officer. 

The Council entered into an agreement with Franklin City Court to provide 34% of the operation 
expenses for the Court and Marshal's office. The Council's share totaled approximately $146,000 in 
2023. 
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NOTE 15 - VENTLIRES WITH OTHER GOVERNMENTS  (continued) 

Water and Sewer Commission No. 2 

All of the water sold by St. Mary Parish Water and Sewer Comxnission No. 2 (Commission) is 
obtained from Berwick-Bayou Vista Joint Waterworks Commission. The Berwick-Bayou 
Vista Joint Waterworks Con-mission was created and established with the sole responsibility 
and duty to maintain, operate, and administer the joint water treatment plant for the 
Commission and Town of Berwick. The water treatment plant was constructed and is owned 
by the Commission and the Town of Berwick, Louisiana. The Cornmission and the Town of 
Berwick appoint the members of the Board of Commissioners for the Joint Waterworks 
Commission. The Commission's portion of the cost of the plant is carried in property, plant 
and equipment. Amounts reported as an investment in joint water works represents the 
Commission's equity in the joint venture. The following is a summary of selected financial 
information of the Berwick-Bayou Vista Joint Waterworks Commissions: 

 

Year Ended 
9/30/23 

Total assets & deferred outflows $900,253 
Total liabilities & deferred inflows 140,906 
Total net position 759,347 
Total revenues 777,638 
Total expenditures 927,573 
Total capital contributions 14,000 
Change in net position (135,935) 

The Commission purchased $352,817 of water from the Joint Waterworks Conimission during 
the year. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN  

PAROCHIAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description 

The Council and seven component units contribute to the Parochial Eniployees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana (Plan A), and two component units contribution to Parochial Employees' Retirement System 
of Louisiana (Plan B). The Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. A (PERS-A) is a 
cost sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system administered by a Board of Trustees. 
The System was established and provided for by the Louisiana Revised Statutes (LRS). 

Benefits Provided 

PERS-A provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits 
to plan members and beneficiaries. All permanent employees who work at least 28 hours a week may 
become members on the date of employment. New employees meeting the age and Social Security 
criteria have up to 90 days from the date of hire to elect to participate. 

Retirement Benefits  
Members can retire providing he/she meets one of the following criteria: 

For employees hired prior to January 1, 2007: 
1. Any age with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service. 
2. Age 55 with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service. 
3. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years of creditable service. 
4. Age 65 with a minimum of seven (7) years of creditable service. 

For employees hired after January 1, 2007: 
L Age 55 with 30 years of service. 
2. Age 62 with 10 years of service. 
3. Age 67 with 7 years of service. 

The monthly retirement allowance consists of an amount equal to three percent (Plan A) and two percent 
(Plan B) of the member's fmal average compensation multiplied by hislher years of creditable service. 
However, under certain conditions, as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified 
amounts. 

Survivor Benefits  
Upon the death of any member with five or more years of creditable service who is not eligible for 
retirement, the Plan A provides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children, as outlined in 
the statutes. Any Plan A mernber who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death, the surviving 
spouse shall receive benefits, as outlined in the statutes. A surviving spouse of a Plan A member who is 
not eligible for Social Security survivorship or retirement benefits, and married not less than twelve 
months immediately preceding death of the member, shall be paid benefits beginning at age 50. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Survivor Benefits (continued)  
Plan B members need ten (10) years of service credit to be eligible for survivor benefits. Upon the death 
of any member of Plan B with twenty (20) or more years of creditable service who is not eligible for 
normal retirement, the plan provides for an automatic Option 2 benefit for the surviving spouse when 
he/she reaches age 50 and until remarriage, if the remarriage occurs before age 55. A surviving spouse 
who is not eligible for Social Security survivorship or retirement benefits, and married not less than 
twelve {12) months immediately preceding death of the member, shall be paid an Option 2 benefit 
beginning at age 50. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan.  
Act 338 of 1990 established the Deferred Retirement Option Plan {DROP) for the Retirement System. 
DROP is an option for members who are eligible for noimal retirement. In lieu of terminating 
employment and accepting a service retirement, members who are eligible to retire may elect to 
participate in DROP in which they are enrolled for three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During 
participation in the plan, employer contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The 
monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and 
receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a 
participant in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the DROP account equal to the 
payments into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or roll over the 
fund to an Individual Retirement Account. 

Interest is accrued on the DROP benefits for the period between the end of DROP participation and the 
member's retirement date. 

For individuals who become eligible to participate in DROP on or after January 1, 2004, all amounts 
which remain credited to the individual's subaccount after termination in the Plan will be placed in 
liquid asset money market investments at the discretion of the board of trustees. These subaccounts may 
be credited with interest based on money market rates of return or, at the option of the System, the funds 
may be credited to self-directed subaccounts. The participant in the self-directed portion of this Plan 
must agree that the benefits payable to the participant are not the obligations of the state or PERS-A, and 
that any returns and other rights of the Plan are the sole liability and responsibility of the participant and 
the designated provider to which contributions have been made. 

Disability Benefits.  
Members shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if they were hired prior to January 1, 
2007, and have at least five years of creditable service or if hired after January 1, 2007, have seven years 
of creditable service, and are not eligible for normal retirement and have been officially certified as 
disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member shall be 

paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of an amount equal to three percent (Plan A) and two percent 
(Plan B) of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years of service, not to be less 
than fifteen years, or three percent multiplied by years of service assuming continued service to age 
sixty (Plan A) and or an amount equal to what the member's normal benefit would be based on the 
member's current final compensation but assuming the member remained in continuous service until his 
earliest noimal retirement age (Plan B). 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Cost of Living Increases.  
The Board is authorized to provide a cost of living allowance for those retirees who retired prior to July 
1973. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each full calendar year since 
retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of 
normal requirements. In addition, the Board may provide an additional cost of living increase to all 
retirees and beneficiaries who are over age sixty-five equal to 2% of the member's benefit paid on 
October 1, 1977, (or the member's retirement date, if later). Also, the Board may provide a cost of living 
increase up to 2.5% for retirees 62 and older (RS 11:1937). Lastly, Act 270 of 2009 provided for further 
reduced actuarial payments to provide an annual 2.5% cost of living adjustment commencing at age 55. 

Contributions 

According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the 
year ended December 31, 2022, the actuarially determined contribution rate was 7.1% of member's 
compensation for Plan A and 4.93% for Plan B. However, the actual rate for the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2022 was 11.50% for Plan A and 7.50% for Plan B. The following table consists of 
contributions that the Primary Government and Component Units made as of December 31, 2023: 

Plan A 
Primary Government 
Component Unit 

Contributions 

$539,085 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 1 53,270 
St. Mary Parish Library 115,702 
Sales & Use Tax Dept 50,311 
Atchafalaya Golf Course 14,009 
Water and Sewer Commission No. 3 39,020 
Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewerage 6,887 
Communications District 54,215 

Plan B 
Component Unit 

 

Water & Sewer No. 4 $ 46,915 
Waterworks District No. 5 6,969 

According to state statute, the System also receives 1/4  of 1% of ad valorem taxes collected within the 
respective parishes. The System also receives revenue sharing funds each year as appropriated by the 
Legislature. Tax monies and revenue sharing monies are apportioned between Plan A and Plan B in 
proportion to the member's compensation. These additional sources of income are used as additional 
employer contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Wows of 
Resources Relate to Pensions 

The following table consists of the net pension liability, the proportionate share, the change in 
proportionate share, the pension expense, and the revenue that the Primary Government and Cotnponent 
Units recognized as of December 31, 2023: 

Plan A 

Net Pension 

Liability 
(Asset) 

Proportionate 
Share 

Change in 
Proporti onate 

Share 

Pension 
Expense 
(Benefit) 

Non-Employer 

Contributions 

     

Primary Government $ 2,963,321 0.76994% 0.42004% $ (1,227,278) $ 71,743 

Component Unit 
Consolidated Gravity Drainage 

     

District No. 1 291,269 0.075678% 0.003247% 129,833 7,052 

St. Mary Parish Library 465,673 0.120992% -0.049969% 192,000 15,353 

Sales & Use Tax Dept 269,296 0.069969% -0.002462% 115,010 6,520 

Atchafalaya Golf Commission 78,478 0.020390% -0.01 1495% (32,502) 1,900 

Water & Sewer Commission No. 3 248,651 0.064605% 0.016249% 111,I60 6,020 

Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewerage 36,059 0.009369% -0.002753% 15,748 873 

Communication District 247,724 0.064364% 0.003216% 100,576 5,977 

Plan B 

Component Unit 

     

Water & Sewer No. 4 $ 157,775 0.662671% 0.120231% $ 106,636 $ 16,373 

Waterworks District No. 5 48,650 0.204337% -0.139659% 34,179 3,257 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

At December 31, 2023, the Council and nine component units reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
frorn the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

Diff. Contributions DIM 
Between Diff. Subsequent to Total Between Diff. 

Expected and Projected and the Deferred Expected and Projected Totai Deferred 
Changes of Actual Actual Changes in Measurement Outflows of Actual and Actual Change in Inflows of 

Assumptions Experience Earnings P roportion Date Resources Experience Earnings Proportion Resources  

Plan A 

          

Primary Government S 94,570 S 109,561 $ 3,128,316 $ 25,265 $ 472,516 $ 3,830,228 $ 326,486 $ - S 50,558 $ 377,044 

Cornponent Unit 

   

- 

      

Consolidated Gravity Drainage 

District 4 1 9,295 10,769 307,486 7,906 50,31 i 385,767 32,091 

 

- 628 32,719 

D SMP Library 14,861 23,497 491,601 10,806 

 

656,467 51,306 

  

66,358 
CD Sales & Use Dept. 8,594 9,957 - 284,290 15135,277002 

 

29,670 

 

- 15

1:7

0

4

5

0

2 

31,410 

Atchafalaya Golf Commission 2,505 2,902 82,848 669 12,513 

3

10

56

1:4

1

3

1

7

1 

8,646 

 

1,339 9,985 

Water and Sewer District 4 3 7,935 9,193 262,496 4,893 39,020

 

323,537 27,395 

 

1,165 28,560 

Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewerage 1,151 1,333 38,067 1,617 6887

 

49,055 3,973 

 

- 174 4,147 

Comtnunications District 7,906 9,159 261,517 6,474 54,215 339,271 27,293 

 

- 10,553 37,846 

Plan B 

          

Component Unit 

          

Water & Sewer Commission 4 4 7,438 3,282 248,147 - 46,915 305,782 31,651 

 

8,187 39,838 

Waterworks District No. 5 2294 994 76,517 5,244 6,969 92,018 9,760 

 

580 10,340 



NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense 
as follows: 

 

December 31, 
2024 

December 31, 
2025 

Deemer 31, 
2026 

Decrner 31, 
2027 

Plan A 

    

Primary Government $ 65,225 $ 505,759 $1,007,276 $1,402,408 

Component Unit 

Consolidated Gravity .Drainage 

    

District No. 1 12,620 53,306 98,966 137,845 

St. Mary Parish Library 8,560 81,757 162,138 221,952 

Sales & Use Tax Dept 7,656 45,740 90,589 127,446 

Atchafalaya Golf Commission 1,727 13,394 26,676 37,142 
Water & Sewer Comrnission No. 3 11,009 43,848 83,425 117,675 

Wards 5 & 8 Joint. Sewerage 1,924 6,482 12,563 17,052 

Communications District 2,165 43,443 84,363 117,239 

Plan B 
Component Unit 

Water & Sewer No. 4 32,650 79,232 109,578 

 

Waterworks District No. 5 1,306 12,656 26,971 33,776 



NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN  (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions  

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of December 31, 2023, are as follows: 

December 31, 2022 

Entry Age Normal 

6.40% (Net of investment expense), including inflation 

4 years 

4.75% (2.45% Merit/2.30% Inflation) (Plan A) 
4.25% (Plan B) 

The present value of future retirement benefits is 
based on benefits currently being paid by the System 
and includes previously granted cost of living 
increases. The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increase not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
Health Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% 
for females using MP2018 scale for annuitant and bene-

 

ficiary mortality. For employees the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality table for General Employees 
multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females 
using MP2018 scale. Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for General Disabled Retirees 
multiplied by130% for males and 125% for females 
using MP2018 scale for disabled annuitants. 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Investment Rate of Return 

Expected Remaining 
Service fives 

Projected Salary Increases 

Cost of I,iving Adjustments 

Mortality 

Inflation Rate 2.30% 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed on plan data for the period 
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2017. The data was assigned credibility weighting and combined with a 
standard table to produce current levels of mortality. As a result of this study, mortality for employees was se₹ 
equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Employees multiplied by 130% for 
males and 125% for females, each with full generational projection using the MP2018 scale. In addition, 
mortality for annuitants and beneficiaries was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table 
for Healthy Retirees multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females each with full generational projection 

using the MP 2018 scale. For Disabled annuitants mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
P1ans Mortality Table for General Disabled Retirees rnultiplied by 130% for males and 125% £or females, each 
with full generational projection using the MP2018 scale. 

The investment rate of return was 6.40% for Plan A, at December 31, 2022_ The long-term expected rate of return 

on pension plan investments was determined using a triangulation method which integrated the Capital Asset 
Pricing Model, (CAPM) (top-down), a treasury yield curve approach (bottom-up) and an equity building-block 
model (bottom-up). Risk return and correlations are projected on a forward looking basis in equilibrium, in which 
best-estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense 
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These rates are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.10% and an adjustment for the effect of 
rebalaneing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return is 7.00% for the year ended December 
31, 2022. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued)  
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
asset allocation as of December 31, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Target Asset 
Allocation 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate of Return 

Fixed Income 33% 1.17% 
Equity 51% 3.58% 
Alternatives 14% 0.73% 
Real Assets 2% 0.12% 

Totals 100% 5.60% 

Inflation 

 

2.10% 
Expected Arithrnetic Nominal Return 7.0% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.40%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers and non-employer 
contributing entities will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates, which are calculated 
in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivitv of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.40%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 5.40% or one percentage point higher 
7.40% than the current rate: 

 

1% Decrease 
(5.40%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(6.40%) 
1% increase 

(7.40%) 

Plan A 

   

Primary Government $ 7,328,392 $ 2,963,321 $ (696,232) 

Component Unit 

   

Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 1 720,318 291,269 (68,434) 

St. Mary Parish Library 1,151,625 465,673 (109,410) 

Sales & Use Tax Dept 665,978 269,296 (63,27I) 

Atchafalaya Goff Commission 194,080 78,478 (18,439) 

Water & Sewer Commission No. 3 614,923 248,651 (58,421) 

Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewerage 89,176 36,059 (8,472) 

Communications District 612,629 247,724 (58,203) 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Discount Rate (continued)  

Plan B 
Component Unit 

Water & Sewer No. 4 
Waterworks District No. 5  

$ 510,533 $ 157,775 
157,425 48,650  

1% Increase 
(7.40%)  

$ (137,516) 
(42,404) 

Current 
Discount 

1% Decrease Rate 
(5.40%) (6.40%)  

Pavables to the Pension Plan  
Of the above listed Council and Component Units the following reported accrued liabilities payable to 
the System at year end: 

Water & Sewer No. 4 in the amount of $16,373 
Waterworks District No. 5 in the amount of $2,664 

The Council and remaining Component Units did not report any accrued liabilities payable to the 
System at year end. 

The Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana issued a stand-alone audit report on its 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. Access to the audit report can be found on 
the System's website: www.persla.org or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official 
w eb site: w ww.11a.state.la.us. 

LOUISIANA ASSESSOWS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description 

The St. Mary Parish Assessor contributes to the Louisiana Assessor's Retirement System, a cost sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees (LARS). 
The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 

Benefits Provided 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. LARS provides pension, death, disability, back-deferred retirement option (Back-
DROP), and excess benefits. Participants should refer to the Plan Agreement for more complete 
information. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Retirement Benefits  
Employees who were hired before October 1, 2013, will be eligible for pension benefits once they have 

either reached the age of 55 and have at least 12 years of service or have at least 30 years of service, 

regardless of age. Employees who were hired on or after October 1, 2013, will be eligible for pension 

benefits once they have either reached the age of 60 and have at least 12 years of service or have reached 

the age of 55 and have at least 30 years of service. 

Employees who became members prior to October 1, 2006, are entitled to annual pension benefits equal 

to three and one-third percent of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of 

highest pay, multiplied by their total years of service, not to exceed 100% of final compensation. 

Employees who become members on or after October 1, 2006 will have 

their benefit based on the highest 60 months of consecutive service. Employees may elect to receive 

their pension benefits in the form of a joint and survivor annuity. 

If employees terminate before rendering 12 years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion 

of their accumulated plan benefits attributable to the employer's contributions. Benefits are payable over 

the employees' lives in the form of a monthly annuity. Employees may elect a reduced benefit or any of 

four options at retirement: 

a. If the member dies before he has received in annuity payments the present value of the member's annuity, 

as it was at the time of retirement, the balance is paid to his beneficiary. 

b. Upon retirement, the member receives a reduced benefit. Upon the meinber's death, the surviving spouse 

will continue to receive the same reduced benefit. 
c. Upon retirement, the member receives a reduced benefit. Upon the member's death, the surviving spouse 

will receive one-half of the member's reduced benefit. 
d. Upon retirement, the member may elect to receive a board-approved benefit that is actuarially equivalent 

to the maximum benefit. 

Death Benefits  
As set forth in R.S. 11 .1441, benefits for members who die in service are as follows: 

a. If a member of LARS dies in service with less than 12 years of creditable service and leaves a surviving 

spouse, their accumulated contributions shall be paid to the surviving spouse. 

b. lf a member dies and has 12 or more years of creditable service and is not eligible for retirement, the 

surviving spouse shall receive an automatic optional benefit which is equal to the joint and survivorship 

amounts provided in Option 2 as provided for in R.S. 11:1423, which shall cease upon a subsequent 

remarriage, or a refund of the member's accumulated contributions, whichever the spouse elects to 

receive. 
c. If a member dies and is eligible for retirement, the surviving spouse shall receive an automatic optional 

benefit which is equal to the Option 2 benefits provided for in R.S. 11:1423, which shall not terminate 

upon a subsequent remarriage. 
d. Benefits set forth in item number 2 above, shall cease upon remarriage and shall resume upon a 

subsequent divorce or death of a new spouse. The spouse shall be entitled to receive a monthly benefit 

equal to the amount being received prior to remarriage. 
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NO E 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Disabilitv Benefits  
The Board of Trustees shall award disability benefits to eligible members who have been officially 
certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. The disability benefit shall be the lesser of 
(a) or (b) as set forth below: 

a. A sum equal to the greater of forty-five percent (45%) of final average compensation, or the 
member's accrued retirement benefit at the time of termination of employment due to disability; 
or 

b. The retirement benefit which would be payable assuming accrued creditable service plus 
additional accrued service, if any, to the earliest normal retirement age based on fmal average 
cornpensation at the time of termination of employment due to disability. 

Upon approval for disability benefits, the member shall exercise an optional retirement allowance as 
provided in R.S. 11:1423 and no change in the option selected shall be permitted after it has been filed 
with the board. The retirement option factors shsll be the same as those utilized for regular retirement 
based on the age of the retiree and that of the spouse, had the retiree continued in active service until the 
earliest normal retirement date. 

Back-Deferred Retirement Option Plan (Back-DROP)  
In lieu of receiving a normal retirement benefit pursuant to R.S. 11:1421 through 1423, an eligible 
member of LARS may elect to retire and have their benefits structured, calculated, and paid as provided 
in this section. 

An active, contributing rnember of LARS shall be eligible for Back-DROP only if all of the following 
apply: 

a. The member has accrued more service credit than the minimum required for eligibility for a 

normal retirement benefit. 
b. The member has attained an age that is greater than the minimum required for eligibility for a 

normal retirement benefit, if applicable. 
c. The member has revoked their participation, if any, in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan. 

At the time of retirement, a member who elects to receive a Back-DROP benefit shall select a Back-
DROP period to be specified in whole months. The duration of the Back-DROP period shall not exceed 
the lesser of thirty-six months or the nurnber of months of creditable service accrued after the member 
first attained eligibility for normal retirement. The Back-DROP period shall be comprised of the most 
recent calendar days corresponding to the member's employment for which service credit in LARS 
accrued. 

The Back-DROP benefit shall have two portions: a lump-sum portion and a monthly benefit portion. 
The member's Back-DROP monthly benefit shall be calculated pursuant to the provisions applicable for 
service retirement set forth in R.S. 11:1421 through 1423, subject to the following conditions: 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Back-Deferred Retirement Option PlanYBack-DROP)(continue)  

a. Creditable service shall not include service credit reciprocally recognized pursuant to R.S. 
11:142. 

b. Accrued service at retirement shall be reduced by the Back-DROP. 
c. Final average compensation shall be calculated by excluding all earnings during the Back-DROP 

period. 
d. Contributions received by LARS during the Back-DROP period and any interest that has accrued 

on employer and employee contributions received during the period shall remain with LARS and 

shall not be refunded to the employee or to the employer. 
e. The member's Back-DROP monthly benefit shall be caleulated based upon the member's age and 

service and LARS provisions in effect on the last day of creditable service before the Back-

DROP period. 
f. At retirement, the member's maximum monthly retirement benefit payable as a life annuity shall 

be equal to the Back-DROP monthly benefit. 
g. The member may elect to receive a reduced monthly benefit in accordance with the options 

provided in R.S. 11:1423 based upon the member's age and the age of the member's beneficiary 

as of the actual effective date of retirement. No change in the option selected or beneficiary shall 

be permitted after the option is filed with the Board of Trustees. 

In addition to the monthly benefit received, the member shall be paid a lump-sum benefit equal to the 
Back-DROP maximum monthly retirement benefit multiplied by the number of months selected as the 
Back-DROP period. Cost-of-living adjustments shall not be payable on the member's Back-DROP lump 
sum. 

Upon the death of a member who selected the maximum option pursuant to R.S. 11:1423, the member's 
named beneficiary or, if none, the member's estate shall receive the deceased member's remaining 
contributions, less the Back-DROP benefit amount. Upon the death of a member who selected Option 1 

pursuant to R.S. 11:1423, the member's named beneficiary or, if none, the member's estate, shall receive 
the member's annuity savings find balance as of the member's date of retirement reduced by the portion 
of the Back-DROP account balance and previously paid retirement benefits that are attributable to the 
member's annuity payments as provided by the anriuity savings fund. 

Excess Benefit Plan  
Under the provisions of this excess benefit plan, a member may receive a benefit equal to the amount by 
which the member's monthly benefit from LARS has been reduced because of the limitations of Section 

415 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Contributions 

Contributions for all members are established by statute at 8.0% of earned compensation. The 

contributions are deducted from the member's salary and remitted by the participating agency. 

97 



NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Contributions (continued) 

Administrative costs of LARS are financed through employer contributions. According to state statute, 
contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. Employer contributions were 
3.50% of members' earnings for the year ended September 30, 2023. 

LARS also receives one-fourth of one percent of the property taxes assessed in each parish of the state 
as well as a state revenue sharing appropriation. According to state statute, in the event that 
contributions for ad valorem taxes and revenue sharing funds are insufficient to provide for the gross 
employer actuarially required contribution, the employer is required to make direct contributions as 
determined by the Public Retirement System's Actuarial Committee. Although the direct employer 
actuarially required contribution for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 was 2.99%, the actual 
employer contribution rate for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 was 2.11%. The actual rate 
differs from the actuarially required rate due to state statutes that require the contribution rate be 
calculated and set one year prior to the year effective. 

The Assessor's contributions to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021 were 
$90,605; $89,392; and $105,778; respectively. In 2023, 2021, and 2020, the Assessor elected to make 
the required contributions of plan members in lieu of a pay raise. The contributions made on behalf of 
eligible employees in 2023, 2022, and 2021 were $29,566, $32,747 and $50,234 respectively, and were 
equal to the required contributions for each year. 

The Assessor recognized revenue of $245,270 equal to the amount of contributions made by non-
employer contributing entities. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Ouiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2023, the Assessor reported a liability of $746,366 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2023 and the total pension 
assets used to calculate the net pension obligation was determined by an actuarial valuation performed 
as of that date. The Assessor's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Assessor's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially determined. At September 30, 2023, the Assessor's proportion 
was 1.52332%, which was an increase of 0.040352% from its proportion measured as of September 30, 
2022. 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Assessor recognized a net pension expense of $467,765. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred OW"lows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Relate to Pensions (continued) 

At December 31, 2023, the Assessor reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between 

employer contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date  

Deferred Deferred 
Outflow Inflow 

of Resources of Resources 
$ 24,035 82,063 

196,367 

389,941 

1,749 6,953 
9,537 

$ 621,629 $ 89,016 

The 59,537 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Assessor's 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended December 31, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ending December 31, 

2024 $ 123,552 
2025 161,592 
2026 307,369 
2027 (64,775) 
2028 (4,662) 
Total $523.076  
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions  

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of September 30, 2023 as follows: 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Amortization Approach Closed 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Expected Remaining 

Service Lives 6 years 

Investment Rate of Return 5.50%, net of pension plan 
investment expense, including inflation 

Inflation Rate 2.10% 

Salary Increases 5.25% 

Annuitant and beneficiary Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for 
mortality General Healthy Retirees multiplied by 120% with 

full generational projection using the appropriate 
MP-2019 improvement scale. 

Active Members mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General 
Healthy Retirees multiplied by 120% with 
full generational projection using the appropriate 
MP-2019 improvement scale. 

Disabled Lives Mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General 
Healthy Retirees multiplied by 120% with 
full generational projection using the appropriate 
MP-2019 improvement scale. 

Retiree Cost of Living The present value of future retirement benefits is based 
Increases on benefits currently being paid by the Fund includes 

previously granted cost of living increases. The present 
values do not include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

With the exception of mortality, the actuarial assumptions used in the September 30, 2023 valuation 
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2014 through 
September 30, 2019, unless otherwise specified. In cases where benefit structures were changed after the 
study period, assumptions were based on estimates of future experience. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Discount Rate  

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of retarn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 
2023, are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Real Rate of Return 

Domestic equity 
International equity 
Domestic bonds 
International bonds 
Real estate 

7.50% 
8.50% 
2.50% 
3.50% 
4.50% 

The long-term expected rate of return selected by LARS for the measurement period ended September 
30, 2023 was 5.50%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions 
from the participating employers and non-employer contributing entities will be made at actuarily 
determined contribution rates calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board 
of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on these assumptions and 
the other assumptions and methods as specified, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payrnents to determine the total pension liability. Thus, the discount rate used to measure the 
total pension liability was 5.50%. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the Assessor's proportionate share of the net pension liability using the discount 
rate 5.50%, as well as what the Assessor's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (4. 5%) or one percentage point 
higher (6.5%) than the current rate (assuming all other assumptions remain the same): 

1% C urrent 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
(4.50%) (5.50%) (6_50%)  

Assessor's proportionate share 
Of the net pension liability $1,676,602 $746,366 $(44,615) 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

The Assessor did not report any accrued liabilities payable to the System at year end. 

The Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary has issued a stAnd-alone audit report on their 
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2023. Access to the report can be found on the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website, www.11a.la.gov, or by contacting the Louisiana Assessors' 
Retirement Fund, Post Office Box 14699, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898. 

LOUISIANA CLERK OF COURT RETIREMENT AND RELIEF FUND 

Pen.sion Plan 

The St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court contributes to the Louisiana Clerks of Court Retirement and Relief 
Fund, a cost sharing multiple-employer de€ined benefit pension plan controlled and administered by a 
separate board of trustees (LCCRRF). LCCRRF was established for the purpose of providing retirement 
allowances and other benefits as stated under the provisions of R.S. Title 11:1501 for eligible employees 
of the clerk of the supreme court, each of the district courts, each of the courts of appeal, each of the city 
and traffic courts in cities having a population in excess of four hundred thousand at the time of entrance 
into LCCRRF, the Louisiana Clerks' of Court Association, the Louisiana Clerks of Court Insurance 
Fund, and the employees of LCCRRF. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Retirement Benefits  

A member or former member shall be eligible for regular retirement benefits upon attaining 12 or more 
years of credited service, attaining the age of 55 years (age 60 if hired on or after January 1, 2011), and 
terminating employrnent. Regular retirement benefits, payable monthly for life, is equal to 3% percent 
of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of credited 
service, not to exceed 100% of the monthly average final compensation. The retirement benefit accrual 
rate is increased to 3'/3% for all service credit accrued after June 30, 1999 (for members hired prior to 
January 1, 2011). For members hired before July 1, 2006 and who retire prior to January 1, 2011, 
monthly average final compensation is based on the highest 36 consecutive months, with a limit increase 
of 10% in each of the last three years of measurement. For members hired after July 1, 2006, monthly 
average final compensation is based on the highest compensated 60 consecutive months, or successive 
joined months if service was interrupted, with a limit increase of 10% in each of the last five years of 
measurement. For members who were employed prior to July 1, 2006 and who retire after December 
31, 2010, the period of final average compensation is 36 months plus the number of whole months 
elapsed since Ja.nuary 1, 2011, not to exceed 60 months. 

Disabili0; Benefits  

Disability benefits are awarded to active members who are totally and permanently disabled as a result 
of injuries sustained in the line of duty or to active members with 10 or more years of credible service 
who are totally disabled due to any cause. A member who is officially certified as totally or 
permanently disabled by the State Medical Disability Board will be paid monthly disability retirement 
benefits equal to the greater of forty percent of their monthly average final compensation or 75% of their 
monthly regular retirement benefit computed as per R.S. 11:1521 (C). 

Survivor Benefits  

If a member who has less than five years of credited service dies, his accumulated contributions are paid 
to his designated beneficiary. If the member has five or more years of credited service, automatic Option 
2 benefits are payable to the surviving spouse. These benefits are based on the retirement benefits 
accrued at the member's date of death with option factors used as if the member had continued in service 
to earliest normal retirement age. Benefit payments are to commence on the date a member would have 
first become eligible for normal retirement assuming continued service until that time_ In lieu of a 
deferred survivor benefit, the surviving spouse may elect benefits payable immediately with benefits 
reduced 1/4 of 1% for each month by which payments commence in advance of member's earliest 
nonnal retirement age. If a member has no surviving spouse, the surviving minor children under 18 or 
disabled children shall be paid 1/2 of the member's accrued retirement benefit in equal shares. Upon the 
death of any former member with 12 or more years of service, automatic Option 2 benefits are payable 
to the surviving spouse with payments to commence on the member's retirement eligibility date_ In lieu 
of periodic payments, the surviving spouse or children may receive a refund of the member's 
accumulated contributions. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service allowance, any member of LCCRRF who is 
eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option 
Plan (DROP) for up to thirty-six months and defer the receipt of benefits. Upon commencement of 
participation in the plan, active membership in LCCRRF terminates and the participant's contributions 
cease; however, employer contribution continue. Compensation and creditable service remain as they 
existed on the effective date of commencement of participation in the plan. 

The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable, had the member elected to cease 
employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the Deferred Retirement Option 
Plan account. 

Upon termination, the member receives a lump sum payment from the DROP fund equal to the 
payments made to that fund on his behalf or a true annuity based in his account (subject to approval by 
the Board of Trustees). The monthly benefit payments that were being paid into the DROP fund are 
paid to the retiree and an additional benefit based on his additional service rendered since termination of 
DROP participation is calculated using the normal method of benefit computation. Prior to January 1, 
2011, the average compensation used to calculate the additional benefit is that used to calculate the 
original benefit unless his period of additional service is at least 36 months. Effective January 1, 2011, 
the average compensation for members whose additional service is less than 36 months is equal to the 
lessor amount used to calculate hid original benefit or the compensation earned in the period of 
additional service divided by the number of months of additional service. For former DROP participants 
who retire after December 30, 2010, the period used to determine final average compensation for post-
DROP service is 36 inonths plus the number of whole months elapsed from January 1, 2011 to the date 
of DROP entry. In no event can the entire monthly benefit arnount paid to the retiree exceed 100% of 
the average compensation used to compute the additional benefit. If a participant dies during the period 
of participation in the program, a lump sum payment equal to his account balance is paid to his named 
beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. 

Cost of Living Adjustments  
The Board of Trustees is authorized to grant retired members and widows of members who have been 
retired for at least one full calendar year an annual cost of 2.5% of their benefit (not to exceed $40 per 
month), and all retired members and widows who are 65 years of age or older a 2% increase in their 
original benefit (or their benefit as of October 1, 1977, if they retired prior to that time). In order to 
grant the 2.5% COLA, the increase in the consumer price index must have exceeded 3% since the last 
COLA granted. In order for the Board to grant either of these increases, the Fund must meet certain 
other criteria as detailed in the Louisiana statute relating to funding status. In lieu of granting the above 
cost of living increases, Louisiana statutes allow the Board to grant a cost of living increase where the 
benefits shall be calculated using the number of years of service at retirement or at death plus the 
number of years since retirement or death multiplied by the cost of living amount which cannot exceed 
$1. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Employer Contributions 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each 
year. For the year ending June 30, 2022, the actual employer contribution rate was 22.25%. 

Non-employer Contributions 

In accordance with state statute, LCCRRF receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. 
These additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support from 
non-employer contributing entities, non-employer contributions revenue for the year ended June 30, 
2023 was $83,763. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

At June 30, 2023, the Clerk of Court reported liabilities in its government-wide fmancial statements of 
$1,677,148 for its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities of LCCRRF. The net pension 
liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2022 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension obligation was determined by separate actuarial valuations performed as of that date. The Clerk 
of Court's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Clerk of Court's long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the Clerk of Court's proportional share of 
LCCRRF was 0.691960%, which was a decrease of 0_032690% from its proportion measured as of June 
30, 2021. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Clerk of Court recognized a net pension expense of $274,081 in 
its governmental activities. 

At June 30, 2023, the Clerk of Court reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflow 

of Resources 

Deferred 
Inflow 

of Resources 
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 15,902 $15,245 
Changes of assumptions 123,074 

 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 358,818 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
employer contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 

 

83,266 
Ernployer contributions subsequent to the measurernent date 161,244 

  

$ 659,038 $98,511 
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NOTE 16- PENSTON PLAN (continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources (contin ue) 

The $161,244 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Clerk of 
Court contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the following fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
20:23 $122,826 
2024 103,675 
2025 9,874 
2026 162.908  

$399,283  

Actuarial Assumptions  

A surnmary of the actuarial methods and assurnptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2022 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Investment Rate of Return. 6.55% (Net of investment expense, including 
Inflation) 

1-5 years of service — 6.2% 
5 years or more — 5% 

2.40% 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans multiplied by 
120%. Mortality Table with full generational 
Projection using the appropriate MP-2019 
Improvement scale. 

5 years 

The present value of future retirement benefits is 
based on benefits currently being paid by the Fund 
and includes previously granted cost of living 
increases. The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees as they were 
deemed not to be substantively automatic. 

Projected Salary Increases 

Inflation Rate 

Mortality Rates 

Expected Remaining 
Service lives 

Cost of Living Adjustments 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used are based on the assumptions used in the 2022 actuarial funding 
valuation which (with the exception of mortality) were based on results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30. 2019, unless otherwise specified. In cases where benefit 
structures were changed after the experience study period, assumptions were based on future 
experiences. 

The mortality rate assumption used was verified by combining data for this plan with three other 
statewide plans which have similar workforce composition in order to produce a credible experience. 
The aggregated data was collected over the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019. The data was 
then assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to produce current levels of 
mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the estirnated duration of 
the System's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were compared to those 
produced by using a setback of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated that the tables used 
would produce liability values approximating the appropriate generational mortality tables used. 

The investment rate of return was 6.5% which was the same from the rate used as of June 30, 2021. The 
long-term expected real rate of return on pension plan investments was detetrnined using a building-
block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The long 
term expected rate of return was 6.02%, for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

The best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the fund's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 is summarized in the following table: 

Asset CIass 

Target Asset 
Allocation 

Long-Term. Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate of 

Return 

Fixed Income: 

  

Domestic Bonds 25.00% 2.50% 

Domestic Equity: 38.00% 7.50% 

International Equity: 22.00% 8.50% 

Real Estate 15.00% 4.50% 

 

100.00% 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.55% which was a decrease of 0.02 
from the rate used as of June 30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that 
contributions from participafing employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by 
the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement System's Actuarial Committee (PRSAC), taking into 
consideration the recommendation of the Fund's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the Fund's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payrnents to determine to total pension liability. 

Sensitivitv to Chanzes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate 6.55%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 5.55% or one percentage point higher 7.55% 
than the current rate. 

Net Pension Liability 

Changes in Discount Rate 2021 
1% Current 1% 

Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
5.55% 6.55% 7.55%  

$ 2,393,900 $1,677,148 $1,073,276 

Payables to the Pension Plan  
The Clerk did not report any accrued liabilities payable to the System at year end. 

The Louisiana Clerks' of Court Retirement and Relief Fund of Louisiana has issued a standalone audit 
report on their financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. Access to the report can be found 
on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website, www.11a.Ia.gov. 

STATE OF LOUISIANA'S FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description 

Fire Protection Districts No. 3 and contributed to the Firefighters' Retirement System {FRS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer plan administered by a separate board of trustees. The system provides 
retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan mernbers and beneficiaries. 

Eligibility 

Membership in the System is a condition of employment for any full-thne firefighters who earn at least 
S375 per month and are employed by any municipality {except Baton Rouge), parish (except Orleans), 
or fire protection district of the State of Louisiana in addition to employees of the Firefighters' 
Retirement System. The System provides retirement benefits for their members. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in RS 11:2252 on and after January 1, 1980 shall 
become a member as a condition of employment. No person who has reached fifty or over shall become 
a member unless it is due to a merger or unless the System received an application for membership 
before turning fifty. No person who has not attained the age of eighteen years shall become a member 
of the system. 

Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund maintained 
basically for public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political subdivisions, and who is 
receiving retirement benefits therefrom may become a member of this System, provided the person 
meets all other requirements for membership. Service credit from the retirement system or pension plan 
from which the member is retired shall not be used for reciprocal recognition of service with this 
System, or for any other purpose in order to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in 
this System 

Benefits Provided 

Retirement Benefits  
Employees with 20 or more years of service who have attained age 50, or employees who have 12 years 
of service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of service at any age are entitled to annual pension 
benefits equal to 3.333% of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of 
highest pay multiplied by their total years of service, not to exceed 100%. Employees may elect to 
receive their pension benefits in the form of a joint and survivor annuity. 

If employees terminate before rendering 12 years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion 
of their accumulated benefits attributable to their employer's contributions. 

Benefits are payable over the employees' lives in the form of a monthly annuity. An employee may 
elect an unreduced benefit or any of seven options at retirement. 

Disability Benefits  
A member who acquires a disability, and who files for disability benefits while in service, and who upon 
medical examination and certification as provided for in Title 11, is found to have a total disability 
solely as the result of injuries sustained in the performance of his official duties, or for any cause, 
provided the member has at least five years of creditable service and provided that the disability was 
incurred while the member was active contributing member in active service, shall be entitled to 
disability benefits under the provisions of R.S. II:2258(B). 

Death Benefits  
Benefits shall be payable to the surviving eligible spouse or designated beneficiary of a deceased 
member as specified in R.S. 11:2256(B) & (C). 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan.  
After completing 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any age, a member may elect 
to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Upon commencement of participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer and employee 
contributions to the System cease. The monthly retirement benefit that would have been paid by the 
System is paid into the deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination of employment, a 
participant in the program shall receive, at his option, a lump-sum payment from the account or an 
annuity based on the deferred retirement option plan account balance in addition to his regular monthly 
benefit. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

If employment is not terminated at the end of the 36 months, the participant resumes regular 
contributions to the System. No payments may be made from the deferred retirement option plan 
account until the participant retires. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan.  

Effective June 16, 1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may 
elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 36 months of 
benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn or remain 
in the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the DROP account. 

Cost of LivingAdjustments (COLAs)  

The board of trustees is authorized to grant retired members and widows of members who have retired 
an annual cost of living increase of up to 3% of their current benefit, and all retired members and 
widows who are 65 years of age and older a 2% increase in their original benefit. In order for the board 
to grant either of these increases, the System must meet certain criteria detailed in the statute related to 
funding status and interest earnings_ 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Contributions 

Employer contributions a.re actuarially determined each year. For the year ended June 30, 2023, 
employer and employee contributions for members above the poverty line were 32.25% and 10.0%, 
respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for those members below the poverty line 
were 33.25% and 8.00%, respectively. 

Non-Emplover Contributions 
The System receives insurance premium assessments from the State of Louisiana. The assessment is 
considered support from a non-employer contribution entity and appropriated by the legislature each 
year based on an actuarial study. Non-employer contributions were recognized as revenue during the 
year ended June 30, 2023 and were excluded from pension expense. Non-employer contributions 
received by the District during the year ended June 30, 2023 was 5316,518, District 7 received none. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Relate to Pensions 

At September 30, 2023, the District 3 and 7 reported a liability of $299,287 and $0, respectively, for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The Districts proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Districts long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, District 3's and 7's 
proportion was 0.045855% and 0%, which was an decrease of 0.012173% and 0% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2021, respectively. 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, District 7 recognized a pension benefit of $0 whiie District 3 

recognized a pension expense of $37,089. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Relate to Pensions(continue) 

At September 30, 2023, Districts 3 and 7 reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions are estimated to be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN  (continued) 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
lnflows of 
Resources 

Difference between expected 

  

and actual experience 9,344 $ 10,254 

Change of assumptions 18,110 

 

Net difference between 
projected and actual 
investment earnings on pension 
plan investments 40,565 

 

Change in proportion and differences 
between the Districts contributions 

and proportionate share of contributions 9,224 176,603 

Districts contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date 10,232 

  

87,475 $ 186,857 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending June 30: 
Fire District 3 

 

2023 13,352 

2024 (9,190) 

2025 (21,072) 

2026 29,797 

2027 (21,278) 

2028 (8,714) 
Total (17,105) 

Actuarial Assumptions  

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the assumptions used in 
the June 30, 2019 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2019. In cases where benefit structures were changed after the 
study period, assumptions were based on estimates of fitture experience. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of June 30, 2023, are as follows: 

Valuation. Date June 30, 2023 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Estimated Remaining Service Life 7 years 

Investment Rate of Return 6.90% per annum (net of fees) 

Inflation Rate 2.500% per annum 

Salary Increases Vary from 14.10% in the first two years of service 
to 5.20 after 3 years or more service 

Cost of Living Adjustments Only those previously granted 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed on plan data for 
the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014. The data was then assigned credibility weighting and 
combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected 
forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of the System's liabilities. The RP-2000 
Combined Healthy with Blue Collar Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables projected to 2031 using Scale AA 
were selected for employee, annuitant, and beneficiary mortality. The RP-2000 Disabled Lives 
Mortality Table set back five years for males and set back three years for females was selected for 
disabled annuitants. Setbacks in these tables were used to approximate mortality improvement. 

The estimated long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
long term expected nominal rate of return was 2.50% as of June 30, 2023. 
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NOTE 16- PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in FRS' target asset allocation as 
ofJune 30, 2023 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Asset Expected Real 

Asset Class A 11 ocati on Rates of Return 
Equity: 

U.S. Equity 29.50% 6.24% 
Non-U.S. Equity 11.50% 6.49% 
Global Equity 10.00% 6.49% 
Emerging Market Equity 5.00% 8.37% 

Fixed Income 
US Cored Fixed Income 20.00% 1.89% 
US Tips 2.00% 1.72% 
Emerging Debt 2.00% 4.30% 

A lternatives: 
Real Estate 6.00% 4.41% 
Private Equity 9.00% 9.57% 
Real Assets 3.00% 5.62% 

Multi-Asset Strategies: 
Global Tactical Asset .00% 4.02% 

100.00% 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%, a decrease from 0.10%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating 
employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by Public Retirement Systems' 
Actuarial Committee taking into consideration the recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on 
those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investrnents was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one pereentsge point lower 6.00% or one percentage point higher 
8.00% than the current rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%)  

District 3 $461,710 $299.287 $163,819  
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NOTE 17 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

Pavables to the Pension Plan  
Fire Protection District No. 3 reported accrued liabilities in the amount of $1,054 payable to the System 
at year end. 

Firefighters' Retirement System issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2020. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: 
www_lafirefightersret.com or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: 
www.ila.state.1a.us. 

Plan Descriptions. The Council and three component units have other postemployment benefit plans 
which provide certain continuing health care or life insurance benefits for its retired employees. 

The Council's OPEB plan (St. Mary Parish's OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB 
plan administered by the Council for the benefit of its retirees. The authority to establish and/or amend 
the obligation of the employer, employees, and retirees rests with the Council. 

The St. Mary Assessor's (Assessor) plan is a single-employer defmed benefit healthcare plan 
administered by the Insurance Committee of the Assessors' Fund dba Louisiana Assessors' Association. 
The Insurance Committee of the Assessor's Insurance Fund has the authority to establish and amend the 
benefit provisions of the plan. This plan issues a publicly available Fmancial report. 

The St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court's (Clerk of Court) OPER Plan is provided through the Louisiana 
Clerks of Court Insurance Trust ("LCCIT"), a multiple-employer healthcare plan administered by the 
Louisiana Clerks of Court Association. Louisiana Revised Statute §13:783 punts the authority to 
establish and amend the benefit terms and fmancing requirements. The premium rates are established 
and may be amended by the LCCIT board of trustees, with the Clerk of Court determining the 
contribution requirements of the retirees. 

The St. Mary Sales and Use Tax Department's (Sales Tax Dept.) OPEB plan (the Sales Tax Department 
OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the Sales Tax Dept. The 
authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees, and retirees rests with 
both the Sales Tax Dept_ and the Council. 

None of these plans have accumulated assets in a trust that meets the criteria in Paragraph 4 of GASB 75 
— Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 

Benefits Provided. Benefit terms of the OPEB Plans provide payment of retirees' health insurance 
premiums or supplemental health insurance premiums for Medicare eligible retirees. 

The Council and Sales Tax Dept.'s OPEB plans provide for 100% of retiree premiums as well as 60% of 
health insurance premiums or supplemental health insurance premiums for the spouses of living and 
deceased retirees 

The Assessor's OPEB plan provides for 50% of retiree premiums for medical and dental benefits. 
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NOTE 17 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

Plan Descriptions. The Council and three component units have other postemployment benefit plans 
which provide certain continuing health care or life insurance benefits for its retired employment 
entities. 

The Council's OPEB plan (St. Mary Parish's OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defmed benefit OPEB 
plan administered by the Council for the benefit of its retirees. The authority to establish and/or amend 
the obligation of the employer, employees, and retirees rests with the Council. 

The St. Mary Assessor's (Assessor) plan is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare .plan 
administered by the Insurance Committee of the Assessors' Fund dba Louisiana Assessors' Association. 
The Insurance Committee of the Assessor's Insurance Fund has the authority to establish and amend the 
benefit provisions of the plan. This plan issues a publicly available fmancial report. 

The St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court's (Clerk of Court) OPEB Plan is provided through the Louisiana 
Clerks of Court Insurance Trust ("LCCIT”), a multiple-employer healthcare plan administered by the 
Louisiana Clerks of Court Association. Louisiana Revised Statute §13:783 grants the authority to 
establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements. The premium rates are established 
and may be amended by the LCCIT board of trustees, with the Clerk of Court determining the 
contribution requirements of the retirees. 

The St. Mary Sales and Use Tax Department's (Sales Tax Dept.) OPEB plan (the Sales Tax Department 
OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the Sales Tax Dept. The 
authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the employer, employees, and retirees rests with 
both the Sales Tax Dept. and the Council_ 

None of these plans have accumulated assets in a trust that meets the criteria in Paragraph 4 of GASB 75 
— Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. 

Benefits Provided. Benefit terms of the OPEB Plans provide payment of retirees' health insurance 
premiums or supplemental health insurance premiums for Medicare eligible retirees. 

The Council arid Sales Tax Dept.'s OPEB plans provide for 100% of retiree premiums as well as 60% of 
health insurance premiums or supplemental health insurance premiums for the spouses of living and 
deceased retirees 

The Assessor's OPEB plan provides for 50% of retiree preniiums for medical and dental benefits. 
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NOTE 17 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPER) 
(continued) 

The Clerk of Court provides medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits for retirees and 
their dependents. The benefit terms provide for payment of 100% of retiree pre-Medicare 
health. Medicare Supplement, vision, and dental insurance premiums. The plan also provides 
for payment of 100% of retiree life insurance payments. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At December 31, 2023, the following employees were 
covered by benefit terms: 

 

Council Assessor 

Clerk of 

Court 

Sales Tax 

Dept. 

inactive employees or beneficiaries 

    

currently receiving benefit payments 
inactive employees entitled do but 

yet receiving benefit payments 

65 

- 

11 

- 

16 

- 

4 

- 
Active employees 136 10 13 6 

Total 201 21 29 10 

Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB Liability. 
The total OPEB liabilities at year end are as follows: 

Council Assessor Clerk of Court Sales Tax Dept 
$11,093,008 $5,254,980 $2,789,275 $1,554,245 

Assumptions and other inputs — The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied 
to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

 

Council Assessor Clerk of Court Sales Tax Dept 

lnflation 2.0% 2.30% 2.40% 2% 

Salary lncreases 4.75% 3% 3.25% 4.75% 

Discount Rate 3.72% 3.26% 3.86% 3.72% 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

    

Medical 3.26% flat 6.1% 6.25% decreasing to 5% 5.5% flat 

Dental 

Vision 

- 

- 

 

4.25% decreasing to 3% 

2.5% 

- 

- 

Valuation date December January 1, 2023 June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023 
31, 2023 

117 



NOTE 17 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued) 

Discount rate—The discount rates for the Council, Sales Tax Dept., and Assessor are based 
on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 year General Obligation Municipal bond index as of 
December 31, 2023. The discount rate for the Clerk of Court is based on the Fidelity General 
Obligation AA 20-Year Yield at June 30, 2023. 

Mortality—Mortality rates for the Council and were based on the Pub-2010 Table with 
projection with 50%/50% unisex blend. Mortality rates for the Assessor for healthy retirement 
were based on Sex distinct Pub-2010 General Mortality, projected generationally using Scale 
MP-2021. Mortality rates for the Clerk of Court were based on the PubG.H-2010 Healthy 
Annuitant mortality table, Generational with Projection Scale MP-2021 for males or females, as 
appropriate. Life expectancies for the Sales Tax Dept. were based on the 2015 United States 
Life Tables for Males and for Female mortality tables from the United States of America's 
Social Security Administration. 

Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

 

Council Assessor Court Dept 
Balance at December 31, 2022 $10,175,953 $4,886,778 $3,124,956 $1,406,006 
Changes for the year 

    

Service cost 408,525 74,331 26,256 61,144 
Interest 384,541 182,718 113,776 56,240 
Differences between expected 
And actual experience 

  

(17,466) (90,237) 
Changes in assumptions 623,282 (210,715) (322,584) (144,239) 
Benefit payments (499,293) (99,562) (135,663) (27,147) 

Net changes 917,055 (368,202) (335,681) (148,239) 
Balance at December 31, 2023 $11,093, $5.254.980 $2.789.275 $1,554.245 

Changes of Assumptions. Changes of assumptions for the Council reflect a change in 
discount rate from 3.72% at December 31, 2022 to a rate of 3.26% at December 31, 2023. 
Changes in assumptions for the Sales Tax Dept. reflect a change in discount rate from 2.06% 
at December 31, 2022 to a rate of 3.72% at December 31, 2023, in addition to other actuarial 
assumptions detailed in the Sales Tax Dept.'s separately-issued report. Changes of 
assumptions for the Clerk of Court reflect a change in discount rate from 3.69% at June 30, 
2022 to a rate of 3.86% at June 30, 2023. Changes of assumptions for the Assessor reflect 
changes of actuarial assumptions detailed in the plan's publicly-available financial report. 
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NOTE 17 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

(continued) 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate — The following presents 
the OPEB liabilities of the Council and its component units, as well as what these OPEB 
liabilities would be if they were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

 

1% Decrease 
(2.26%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(3.26%) 
1% Increase 

(4.26%) 

Cou ncil $ 12,667,037 $ 10,175,953 $ 9,036,397 
Sales Tax Dept. 1,728,914 1,554,245 1,399,416 

Assessor 6,119,352 5,254,980 4,568,683 

Current 
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 

(2.86%) (3.86%1 (4.86%) 

Clerk of Court $ 3,129,140 $ 2,789,275 $ 2,408,247 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in healthcare cost trend rates - The following 
presents the OPEB liabilities of the primary government and its component units, as well as 
what these OPEB liabilities would be if they were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates 
that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare 
trend rates: 

. 

$ 9,582,131 $ 10,175,953 $ 11,745,864 Council 

Sales Tax Dept. 

Clerk of Court 

Assessor  

1% Decrease 
(4.50%)  

1,373,663 

1% Decrease 
(5.55%)  

2,535,270 

1% Decrease 
(4.50% )  

4,622,308  

Current Trend Rate 
(5.50%)  

1,554,245 

Current Trend Rate 
(6.55%)  

2,789,275 

Current Trend Rate 
(5.50%)  

5,254,980  

1% Increase 
(6.50%)  

1,766,241 

1% Increase 
(7.55%)  

$ 3,099,961 

1% Increase 
(6.50%)  

6,059,833 
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NOTE 17 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)  
(continued) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Council the entities recognized OPEB expense as 
follows. 

Council Assessor Clerk of Court Sales Tax Dept 
($1,565,277) $179,710 ($106,394) $148,239 

At December 31, 2023, the Council reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Sales Tax Clerk of 

Council Dept. Court Assessor 

Deferred Outflows 
Difference between expected and 

   

actual experience 1,725,483 179,850 $ 480,261 
Changes in assumptions 3,006,891 123,140 273,552 
Contributions subsequent to the m - $ 29,505 

  

Total $ 4,732,374 $ 29,505 $ 302,990 $ 753,813 

Deferred Inflows 
Difference between expected and 

actual experience $ (1,042,856) $ 51,463 

 

Changes in Assumptions (8,340,881) - 1,204,737 1,677,765 

Total $ (9,383,737) $ - $ 1,256,200 $ 1,677,765 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending December 31: 

Sales Tax 

Council Dept. 

Clerk of 

Court Assessor 

   

2024 (2, 358, 342) (246,427) (309, 855) 

2025 (1,705,990) (278,217) (394,473) 

2026 (1,292,773) (278,217) (249,079) 

2027 (487,967) (150,349) 29,455 

2028 363,309 

  

Thereafter (145,532) 
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NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS 

In late 2016, the Council renewed an agreement with the Belle of Orleans, LLC (Belle), a riverboat 
casino approved by parish voters to be berthed in and operate in Amelia, Louisiana, as the An-ielia Belle. 
In lieu of the Council irnposing an admission fee upon the Belle's patrons, the Belle has agreed to pay 
fees to the Council based upon a percentage of its net gaming proceeds for a period of ten years. 
Presently, the fee is $1,400,000 annually. 

In 2011, the Council was awarded a federal grant for approximately $19,500,000 to be funded and 
expended over ten years for various infrastructure and housing redevelopment and rehabilitation projects 
throughout the parish. The total amount spent on the projects through 2023 is approximately 
$19,443,000. The Council will continue to conduct these projects in future years. 

In 2021, the Council issued Revenue Bonds totaling $20,000,000. The proceeds of these bonds are 
being used for improving roads, streets and bridges, and other improvements associated therewith. 
Through 2023 the Council has entered into approximately S20 miIlion in contracts for work related to 
these projects. A11 funds were spent on these projects through 2023. 

In 2019, the Council issued $11,500,000 of GOMESA Revenue Bonds. The proceeds of the bond will 
be used for coastal restoration and other activities and endeavors permitted under the provisions of 
GOMESA. Through 2023 the Council has entered into approximately $11.3 million in contracts for 
work related to fourteen projects. Approximately $10 million was spent on these projects through 2023. 

In 2020, the Council issued $1.5 million of Sales Tax Bonds. The proceeds are being used to repair, 
waterproof and improvements Fairview Treatment Center building. Through 2023, the Council has 
entered into contracts for the $1.5 million. All funds were spent on this project through 2023. 

In 2021, the Council issued $1 million in taxable public improvement bonds for renovations and 
equipment purchases to improve the Parish's jail facilities. Through 2023, the Council has contracted 
for the $1 million of these improvements. All funds were spent on these projects through 2023. 
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NOTE 19 - SOLID WASTE LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE CARE 
COSTS  

The Council provides for the collection and disposal of garbage through the operation of the Reduction 
and Transfer Fund, an enterprise fund. As part of this operation, a landfill composed of five areas is 
maintained. The operation of the landfill is subject to certain federal and state regulations. In 1989, the 
Council ceased operating and closed approximately 40 acres of the landfill which composed areas one 
and two. 

Area 4 was permitted in 2002 and began operations in 2008, it includes approximately 65 acres and is 
the niain portion of the Parish landfill currently in operation. Area 3A which totals approximately 7 
acres is restricted to receiving construction waste and debris and has been used primarily for debris from 
storms. Area 3 covers approximately 40 acres, in 2008 it reached capacity and was capped on an interim 
basis, it is now available for additional use. 

Since the Council accepted solid wastes at the landfill site after October 1993, the Council will be 
responsible for meeting state and federal requirements on the portions of the landfill which operate after 
that time. Those requirements mandate not only rigid landfill closure requirements but also monitoring, 
remediation and contaimnent requirements for thirty years after closure. For 2023 management, with 
the assistance of consulting engineers, has updated costs for closure of the landfill to be approxinnately 
$18,000,000. In 2023 the costs for postclosure care, monitoring, and containment have been updated to 
be approximately $4,290,000 (over thirty years). These updated costs for the current year are based 
upon inflationary factors. 

GASB statement No. 18, which specifies the accounting method to be utilized by governments that 
operate landfills, became applicable to the Council's operations effective January 1, 1994. GASB No. 
18 requires that landfills estimate the total cost of closure and post closure care. Further that the landfill 
recognize a portion of these estimated closure and postclosure costs over the operating life of the 
landfill. These closure and postclosure costs should be recognized as a liability and charged as an 
expense of operations of the landfill each year based upon the amount of landfill space utilized in that 
year as compared to the total available landfill space. 

GASB No. 18 also requires that current costs be adjusted when changes in closure or post closure care 
plans or landfill operating conditions increase or decrease the estimated costs. In addition changes in 
estimated cost should also account for inflationary factors. The current year estimates are based upon the 
inflationary changes and resulted an estimated increase in landfill closure costs of approximately 
$220,000 and in landfill post closure care costs of approximately $60,000 for a total increase of 
approximately $280,000 in ultimate landfill closure and post closure care costs over the life of the 
landfill. The Council recognized $667,000 in landfill closure costs during the current year based upon 
the amount of landfill space used. 
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NOTE 19 - SOLID WASTE LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE CARE 
COSTS (continued) 

As of December 31, 2023, the Council has recognized $11,290,000 as the total estimated closure and 
postclosure care costs based upon the actual utilization through yearend compared to estimated total 
available usable landfill space as follows: Area 3 - 88%, Area 3A - 36%, and Area 4 - 38%. This leaves 
approximately $11,003,000 of estimated closure and postclosure care costs remaining to be recognized 
in future years. It is estimated that the landfill will reach its capacity in approximately 30 years at the 
current rate of use. 

Estimated costs for closure and post closure are based on estimated costs at the current time and under 
the current regulations. Future changes in inflation, technology, or regulating requirements could cause 
these estimated costs to increase or decrease. 

The Council meets the federal and state financial assurance requirements for operations of landfills, 
under the fmancial test or "self-insurance" method. The Council has set aside approximately $5,500,000 
in restricted assets for closure or post closure care costs, which is reported with restricted assets on the 
balance sheet of the Reduction and Transfer Fund. 

NOTE 20 - RELATED PARTY 

The Council received payment from the St. Mary Parish Sales Tax Department of approximately 
$10,000 for office rental payments in 2023. 

The Council made the following payments from the Wards 5 & 8 Sales Tax Fund during the year: 

St. Mary Parish Recreation District No. 3 $66,000 
St. Mary Parish Recreation District No. 4 40,000 
Wax Lake East Drainage District 2,452 

The Council made a $30,000 payment to St. Mary Parish Recreation No. 7, from the Wards 1,2,3,4,7 & 
10 Sales Tax Fund during the year. 

The Council made grant payments of $250,000 to the Atchafalaya Golf Course during the year. 

See Note 11 for the amounts payable to and receivable from Components at Decernber 31, 2023. 

NOTE 21 - RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTINGENCIES  

The Council is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or damage to assets, errors and 
omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. The Council has purchased commercial 
insurance to protect against loss from most of these perils. In addition, the Council provides certain 
medical and health care to parish prisoners. The Council has entered into a "Health Services 
Agreemenr with a Commercial Health Care provider to provide certain medical care to prisoners on an 
ongoing basis for a monthly fee (a portion of which is reimbursed to the Council by the Sheriff). 
However the Council is still responsible for the hospitalization and certain other serious medical 
problems of the prisoners. During 2023 the Council paid S961,000 and was reimbursed $332,000 by the 
Sheriff under this agreement. In 2023, the Council paid an additional $40,000 for hospitalization or 
other serious medical care. 
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NOTE 21 - RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)  

There are no significant reductions in insurance coverages from prior y ears in the Council's insurance. 

Settlements in the prior three years have not exceeded insurance coverages_ 

The Council participates in a number of federally assisted programs. These programs are audited in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1996. Audits of prior years have not resulted in any significant 
disallowed costs; however, grantor agencies may provide for further examinations. 

The Council is subject to several lawsuits. The Council intends to vigorously defend itself against these 
claims. Management and its legal counsel cannot yet predict the outcome of these matters. However 
management believes the Council's ultimate liability, if any, after insurance company and third party 
reimbursements would be immaterial. Accordingly, no liability is recorded in these financial statements 
for these claims. 

NOTE 22 - CONCENTRATIONS - Component Units 

Hospital Service District No. 1 grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local 
residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables (net of 
allowances) from patients and third-party payors is as follows at year end: 

Medicare 12% 
Medicaid 25% 
Commercial and other third -party payors 63% 

100% 

The Hospital participates in the Medicare and Medicaid programs as a provider of medical services to 
program beneficiaries. The Hospital derived approximately 58% of its gross patient services revenue in 
2023 from patients covered by the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Hospital received total grant 
revenue, including operating and non-operating, of $14,780,726 for 2023. 

Receivables from the Medicare and Medicaid programs represent a concentrated credit risk for the 
Hospital District. The Hospital's management does not believe that there is a significant risk of loss 
associated with these programs. Various other payors, subject to differing economic conditions, do 
represent significant concentrated credit risks to the Hospital District. The Hospital's management 
continually monitors and adjusts its reserves and allowances associated with these receivables. 

The Communication District's revenues are in the form of communications and cellular tax. The 
communications and cellular taxes accounted for approximately 89% of the District's total revenues. 

The St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission receives 53% of its revenues from the Hotel-motel tax. 

A substantial number of the remaining components rely upon ad valorem taxes to fund a significant 
portion of their operations. 
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St. Mary Parish Council 

SC IIEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 'THE NET PENSION HAI-Mary (ASSET) 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

as of Deceniber 31, 2014 (The Plan Measurement Date) 

Entity's proportion of thc nct 

pension liability (asset) 

Amount of Entity's proportionate 

share of the net pension IiabiIity 

Primary 

Government 

Consolida!ed 

Gravity Drainage 

District No 1 

St. Mary 

Parish 

Library 

 

Sales & Use 

TeX Dept 

Atchafalaya 

Golf 

Course 

. . Sewerage 

District 

No. 5 

 

Sewerage 

District 
No. 8 

Wards 

5 & 8 

Joint Sewerage 

Communications 

District 

1.101947% 0.056614% 0,180284% 

 

0.069040% 0.033060% 

 

0.033032% 

 

0 011699% 0,013888% 0,051340% 

(asset) $ 301,282 $ 15,479 $ 49,291 $ 18,876 $ 9,038 $ 9,031 $ 3,199 $ 3,797 $ 14,037 

Entity's covercd-employee payroll $ 6,035,133 $ 337,035 $ 1,027,210 $ 404,647 $ 234,563 $ 180,864 $ 66,446 $ 73,940 $ 280.314 

Entity's proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of iis covered-

employee payroll 4.99% 4.59% 4 80% 

 

4.66% 3.85% 

 

4.99% 

 

4.81% 5.14% 5.01% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total pension 

liability 99.15% 99.15% 99.15% 

 

99.15% 99 15% 

 

99.15% 

 

99.15% 99.15% 99.15% 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

r—r, as of December 31, 207 5 (The Plan Measurement Date) 

b.) 
a \ Consolidated St. Mary Atchafalaya Sewerage Sewerage Wards 

Primary Gravity Drainage Parish Sales & Use Golf District District 5 & 8 Communications 

Government District No. l Library Tax Dept Course No, 5 No. 8 Joint Sewerage District 

Entity's proportion of the net 

            

pension liability (asset) 1.106930% 0.061322% 0 019039% 

 

0.071476% 0,034240% 

 

0,029362% 

 

0.015524% 0 009329% 0.054.509% 

Anmunt of Entity's proportionate 

share of the net pension habilky 

(asset) $ 2,913,768 $ 161,417 $ 501,172 $ 188,145 $ 90,117 $ 77,289 $ 40,864 $ 24,557 $ 143.483 

Entity's eavered-emptoyee payroll $ 6,343,977 $ 351,590 $ 1,089,096 $ 407,905 $ 206,928 $ 160,357 $ 88,294 $ 71,745 $ 312,503 

Entitys proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered-

employee payroll 45.93% 45,91% 46.02% 

 

46.12% 43.55% 

 

48.20% 

 

46.28% 34.23% 45.91% 

Plan fiduciary net position as FL 

percentage of the total pension 

lisbility 92.23% 9223% 92.23% 

 

92.23% 92.23% 

 

92 23% 

 

92.23% 92.23% 92.23% 

Unaudited 



St. Mary Parish Council 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) (contimied) 

Parochial Employees R.etirernent System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

as of December 31, 2016 (The l'lan Measurement Date) 

Entity's proportion of the net 

pension Iiahility (asset) 

Amount of Entity's proportionate 

share of th c net pension liability 

Primary 

Government 

Consolidated 

Gravity Drainage 

District No i 

St. Mary 

Parish 

Library 

 

Sales & Use 

Tax Dept 

 

Atchafalaya 

Golf 

Course 

Wards 

5 & S 

Joint Sewerage 

Coimnunications 

District 

1.025232% 0.059870% 0.174292% 

 

0.074065% 

 

0.0/8758% 0.011712% 0.059151% 

(asset) $ 2,041,589 $ 123,203 $ 358,957 $ 152,538 $ 69,890 $ 24,121 $ 121,822 

Filthy's covered-employee payroll $ 6,080,187 $ 353,605 $ 1,033,649 $ 439,244 $ 170,897 $ 69,458 $ 349,834 

Entity's moportionste shore of the 

net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered-

employee payroll 33.53% 34.87% 34.73% 

 

34.73% 

 

40 90% 34.73% 24.82% 

Plan fiduriaiy net position as a 

percentage of the total pension 

liability 94.15% 94.15% 94.I5% 

 

94.15% 

 

94 15% 94.15% 94.15% 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

i—, as of December 31, 2017 (Tile Plan Measurement Date) 

I, ..) 
---I 

Entity's proportion of the net 

Primary 

Government 

Consolidated 

Gravity Drainage 

District No. 1 

St. Mary 

Parish 

Library 

 

Sales & Use 

Tax Dopt 

 

Atchafalaya 

Golf 

Course 

Water and Sewer 

Commission No 3 

Wards 

5 & 8 

Joint Sewerage 

Commonications 

District 

           

pension liability (asset) 0.918222% 0.059651% 0.170961% 

 

0 072431% 

 

0 021885% 

 

0 048756% 0012122% 0 061480% 

Amount of Entity's proportionate 

share of the net pension liability 

(asset) $ (681,547) $ (44,276) $ (126,895) $ (53,762) S (21,876) $ (35,195) $ (8,993) $ (45,387) 

Entity's covered-employee payroll $ 5,724,217 $ 370,690 $ 1,050,608 $ 445,821 $ 184,210 $ 281,661 $ 71,859 $ 410,361 

Entity's proportionate shore of the 

net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered-

employee payroll -1191% -11.94% -12,08% 

 

-12.06% 

 

-11.88% 

 

-12.74% -12 52% -1 1.06% 

Plan fiduciary net position os FL 

percentage of the total pension 

liability 101.98% 101,93% 101 98% 

 

101.98% 

 

101.98% 

 

l 01.98% 101.98% 10 l .98% 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

Unaudited 



St. Mary Parish Council 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SIIARE OF TIIE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

as of December 3 l , 2018 (The Plan Measurement Date) 

Entitys proportion of the net 

Primary 

Government 

Consolidated 

Gravity Diainage 

District No. 1 

Si. Mary 

Parish 

Library 

Sales & Use 

Tax Dept 

 

Atchafalaya 

Golf 

Couise 

Water and Sewer 

Commission No. 3 

Wards 

5 & 8 

Joint Sewerage 

Communications 

District 

         

pension liability (asset) 0.940278% 0.061646% 0.172357% 0.074332% 

 

0.032792% 0 045057% 0.011763% 0 082447% 

Âilloillit of Entity's proportionate 
share of the net pension liability 
(asset) $ 4,173,289 $ 273,607 $ 764,982 $ 329,912 $ 145,545 $ 199,979 $ 52,208 $ 365,929 

Entity's covered-employee payioll $ 5,724,217 $ 377,329 $ 1,059,209 $ 456,966 $ 177,922 $ 276,994 $ 70,415 $ 469,901 

Entity's propoitionate share of the 
nct pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered-

 

employee payroll 72.91% 72.51% 72.22% 72,20% 

 

81.80% 72.20% 74.14% 77,87% 

Plan £iduoisry nct position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability 88.86% 88 86% 88,86% 88.86% 

 

88.86% 88.86% 88.86% 88.36% 

Pal cchial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

as of Deeember 31, 2019 (The Plan Meastnemetit Date) 

Entity's proportion of the net 
pension liability (asset) 

Amount of Entity's proportionate 
share a f the net peusion liability 

Pnrnary 

Government 

Consolidated 

Gravity Drainage 

District No. 1 

St. Mary 
Parish 

Libraiy 
Sales & Use 

Tax Dept 

Atchafalaya 

Golf 

Comse 

Water and Sewcr 
Conunission No. 3 

Wirds 

5 & 8 

Joint Sewerage 

Communications 

Disirici 

0.092632% 0.068450% 0.175143% 0.072068% 0.033001% 0.051212% 0.010720% 0.087462% 

(asset) $ 43,606 '3 3,222 $ 3,245 $ 3,393 $ 1,554 $ 2,410 $ 505 $ 4,117 

Entity's covered-employee payroll $ 5,434,112 $ 434,030 $ 1,110,543 $ 456,966 $ 189,979 $ 324,719 $ 68,013 $ 520,557 

Entity's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-

 

employee payroll 0.80% 0.74% 0.74% 0.74% 0.82% 0,74% 0.74% 0.79% 

Plan fiduciary rot position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability 99.89% 99.89% 99.39% 99.89% 99.89% 99.89% 99.89% 99.89% 

Unaudited 



Entity's proportion of the net 

pension liability (asset) 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

as of December 31, 2020 (The Plan Measurement Date) 

Consolidated St. Mary Atchafalaya Wards 

Prinsary Otavity Drainage Parish SDICS & Use Golf Water and Sewer 5 & 8 Communications 

Goveriunent District No. 1 Library Tax Depl Course Commission No. 3 Joint Sewerage District  

0.877335% 0.068540% 0.151905% 0.069410% 0.029607% 0.054663% 0.011748% 0.069430% 

Amount of Entity's proportionate 

share of the net pension liability 

(asset) $ (1,479,436) $ (117,223) $ (266,352) $ (121,704) $ (51,913) $ (95,847) $ (20,599) $ (121,740) 

Entity's eovered-employee payroll $ 5,144,082 $ 446.062 $ 1.022,831 $ 463,588 $ 170,807 $ 365,095 $ 78,469 $ 490,600 

proportiouate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage dila c.overcd-

 

employee payroll -28.76% -26.28% -26.04% -26.25% -30.39% -26.25% -26.25% -24.81% 

Plan 1-Mucha),  net position as a 

percentage ef the total pension 

96,16% 104.00% 96.16% 164.00% 104.00% 104.00% 104 00% 104.00% 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plats A) 

as of December 31, 2021 (The Plan Measurernent Date) 

Consolidated St. Maiy Atchafalaya Wards 

Pi imary Gravity Drainage Parish Sales & Use Golf Water and Sewer 5 & 8 Communications 

Government District No. 1 Library Tax Dept Course Commission No. 3 Joint Sewerage District 

Emily's proportion of the net 

         

pension liability (asset) 0.832247% 0 079494% 0.138460% 0.069082% 

 

0,029607% 0.062722% 6 011358% 0.063203% 

Amount of Entity's proportionate 

shale of the net pension liability 

(asset) $ (3,824,591) $ (374,451) $ (652,207) $ (325,406) $ (51,913) $ (295,448) $ (53,501) $ (297,714) 

Entity's covered-employee payroll $ 5,416,484 $ 529,438 S 920.689 S 463,494 $ 170,807 $ 420,627 $ 76,203 $ 477,859 

Entity's proportionate share of die 

net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered-

employee payroll -7061% -70.73% -70.84% -70.21% 

 

-30 39% -70.21% -70.21% -62,30% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total pension 

liability 110.46% 110.46% 110.46% 110.46% 

 

110,46% I 10 46% 110.46% 110.46% 

Unaudited 



Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 

as of December 31, 2022 (The Plan Measurement Date) 

Entity's proportion cf the net 

pension liability (asset) 

Amount cif Entity's proportionate 

share of the net pension liability 

Primary 

Government 

Consolidated 

Gravity Drainage 

District No. 1 

St. Mary 

Parish 

Library 

Sales & Use 

Tax Dept 

 

Atchafalaya 

Golf 

Course 

Water and Sewer 

Commission No. 3 

Wards 

5 & 8 

Joint Sewerage 

Communications 

Distnet 

0.769936% 0.075678% -0,120992% 0.069969% 

 

0.020390% 0.064650% 0009369% 0.064364% 

(asset) S 2,963,321 $ 291,269 $ 465,673 $ 269,296 $ 78.748 $ 248,651 $ 36,059 $ 247,724 

Entity's covered-empioyee payroll $ 4,704,844 $ 513,395 $ 883,913 $ 474,665 $ 108,647 $ 438,273 $ 63,555 $ 475,518 

Entity's proportionate share t)f the 

nct pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered-

 

employee payroll 62.98% 56.73% 52.68% 56.73% 

 

72.48% 56.73% 56.74% 52.10% 

Plan fiduaimy net position as a 

peicentage of the kind pension 

liability 91.7.4% 91.74% 91.74% 91 74% 

 

91.74% 91 74% 91.74% 91.32% 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

Unaudited 



SI. Mary Parish Council 

SCHEDULE OP PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF TIIE NET PENSION LIABILITY (4.58111) 

Parochial lholployers Rcliromoni S!,,sleun of Louisiana (Ph, B) 

ns of (The Eno Mcasnr001245 Enao) 

Llocciabcr 31.2014 Decunbor 31.2015 1342.3mlwr 3 I . 20Iei Dexcinbor 31, 201) 

 

[3253415129,31.n.11 

Wokonni3.4 

llisiriol Nu 5 

EnAtraln r 31.20/ 9 Docanbcr 31.2020 

C003,03.4'00 

125roonillcr 31, 2021 Occoulscr 31, 2022 

Water 7,/ Son:, 

Corrnianasn No 4 

Weir( & Sums 

Cnounission Ho 4 

Wolorwarha 

District No 5 

Wurcr 

Crum/mon No. I 

Wxlear9hiks 

DirInut No. 5 

%Valor 24. Semr 

Cray/IP/sic. hlo 4 

Welorworks 

Birth, No. 5 

W444 

Connoisoro 

dr, %ewer 

No. 4 

W4,43 &Rm. 

ConTli3ron No 4 

Wo.0,30:344.3 

FAA-Id No. 5 

003.3.7 '1,1arr 

Como-435Ln No 4 

, VVICKU,[1.9. 

Diairiol Nu. 5 No 4 Disuall No. 5 Conarlhuion No. 4 

33204PfrrP45 

DislriclNo.5 
Putrh's prow:En/I of thc inalsico hnhility (3,392 9.5292339% 

AillOirilt of Fulity's In.,Farl i one to shur of 11/4 !ler 

055099045) 057730296 0.5954565A 0.331375% 0 542440.3 0.34199(s% 

 

0.0310723: 0 53 109133 (3.54793 I 46 6.2520413% 0 5355/6% 0 2515795) 

 

D.500594.3 0 245635% 06727I% 0.02043.1.3 

ysallsion (assel.) 5 1621 S 105,59! 5 57.177 S 77,354 S 43,548 S 158.2320 S 0322821 R 120,491 89.419 $ (391,1/5 S (21,010) S (138,2511 S (535.357) I 9335,518) 3 ( I 32,2031 3 157,775 $ 11,650 

unlý's arvosloirplurco parr OH S 513,227 S 512,135 .$ 372,905 S 595,188 S 358,201 S 631.655 S 345,587 1 6533637 $ 336,371 $ 595,801 S 325,369 S 516,772 S 291.570 S 695.984 $ 285,565 S 771,944 S 1313220 

Strul5's propol-liornue sharc of lllc ncl rcasion liahilily 
fusser, al pereellIrSe nf ils counred-omplo:. cc 

uurroll 0.32% 212046 18.01% 13 045i 12.02M -1(7 8.0% -12.5246 

 

25 8355 )5.821h .5.5555 .6.4014 -22.42% -22.425S 

 

-18,935A -11.92% 25.14% 20./111 

Flan ahlriary Frol ponrlioll Ur ri Fro onlqu nfOte WW1 

312.8,9% 953 4894. 93 ltSO 955095 95.5050 104 02% 104.025) 

 

91.9314/ 91.93% 102.65% 102.0535 106.7651 105.7616 

 

114.2055 114.20% 105.59% 94.26% 

This schcaulo is rracarla nu sliory inform:4i./ for tO yrai a. Add idoual )curf )551.144displayo3 as 'dry betoille 

Unaudited 



St Mary Parish Coaxal 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBU11ONS 

Louisiana CIct6s' of Coon Rollos:ma trod Relief Fund 

ot 

, 

June 10. 2015 

SC Mars Palish 
Clank of Cetnt 

June 30. 2016 

St. Mar; P.ish 
Clerk o5Court • 

June 39/ 2017 

SI. Mires Parisi, 

Clerk of Com 

June30, 20:8 

Ss. Mary Parish 
Clerk of Court 

 

June 30., 2019 

St. 5.1ary Parish 

clash of Court 

June 30, 202,9 

St. Ms.ry Parish 

Clort. el CACTI 

 

Juice 39. 2021 

Sr Mary Pansh 

Clad. of CCAIIS 

 

lime 30, 2022. 

St Mary Pulse 

Clerk. of COLIII 

Anse 30,2022 

St. Mary P.ish 

Clerl. of Court 

Crab-actually required contribution S 144,217 5 107,l6a S 136713 S 142121 S 136.761 S l.40,828 S 153.594 S 157.621 161,244 

Contributions in relation to the 
consainnally requital coornIsetion (144.2171 1147.104) (136,713, 1142.1217 

 

,159.7617 (1408281 

 

1153,5947 

 

1157.62I1 O61,2441 

Corin Huron d eferendy (messy, - 5 S - 5 - 5 - $ - S 

 

$ - 5 

 

Clerlfs ors ortvisatrployer payroll 719_553 5 771.548 5 719,541 S 748,004 5 730,701 S 7.11.199 $ 731,399 5 708,400 5 724.693 

Corm burner's as a rtnveranc ot• 

oeseel-employ co payroll 18.50% 19.9056 19.00% 19.00% 

 

19.0058 19.00% 

 

21 C(0./s 

 

22.23% 72 25% 

Fristighass• Reurescrat Sys.. of LOLOSISIM 

ef 

 

Scolombor 90 2015  

Fes District Fire testiol 

No, 3 No 7 

 

beptenber 30.,. 2016 

 

41.(-corpbor 00 2017 

 

Scoteerber 7D 3010 Sopternher 10 2019 Seotenisor 30. 20.7.1.1 

 

September 10 2021 Septa-tab. 30. 20;12 

Fire District FireDisniel. 
No 7 No 7 

Firs-DEL-rot 
No 7 

Fire Disonot 

No 3 

Fre Dishial 

No. 3 

Firo District 

No 3 

Firs District 

No. 3 

Fire Clot:riot 
No 1 

Contractually repaired contribulion 5 461317 S 4.048 $ 36,500 5 

 

5 68.649 S 59,888 5 55,500 5 62,968 5 54,603 5 42,166 

Centribstions in relation to the 

contractually required osuotribunoa 146,3371 15,0487 

 

746.5007 

  

158.6191 

 

150,88,37 155.560 l 

 

r 62.94.11 

 

14-1,6031 0111661 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

 

- 5 - $ 

    

• 5 - 5 - 5 5 

 

Diapers ccherod-anploytx psyroll 161,172 37.648 5 1721345 5 - 

 

229,384 3 225,992 S 7,17,174 S 217,963 5 156_719 S 125,5'70 

Contributions us a paccolsge of 

covered-orapl000t payroll 28.7551 29.11% 

 

26.90% 0.00% 

 

25 5745 

 

26 5051 26.8215 

 

28 SO% 

 

34.84% 33.5054 

10,,,si sun Assessors' Fettrommt Fund and SubsrdlaD,  

as of 

 

iterernber 31 7015 rietem ber 3/, 7010 

 

December 31,7017 nes:ember 01 2020 pecarnbar 31.2013 

 

Gewalt,. sa sit%) 

 

Dererrther31, 2022 

 

Deem.. 31 3155 

 

December 31. 2023 

Si Mary PUlill 

Assashor 
St Kay Parish 

Assess. 

St Mary Parish 

Assessor 

51, Mary Parish 

Assessor 

Sr Mary Pena St. Mare Purist 

Assossor 

St. Mary Palish 

Assessor 

St Mary Pansh 

Assesses 

SL Mary Parish 

Assessor 

Contractually required mamba.. 3 

Contributions ir relation lo Ihe 

oordroctually requivol sectriburion 

96,226 S 

(.96,2261. 

94,611 

t94,6317 

5 70806 S 

(770,606) 

60,124 5 

(60,1245 

60,496 

0104961 

5 95124 

755,3241 

5 50,234 

(90:0141 

5 37.747 

(32.7471 

5 29,566 

(2%3661 

Contribution do5oloso5 tessessl 3 

  

s 

S 

- 5 5 

 

s 

 

s 

S 

. s 

 

$ 

 

Assessor's oenared-calployee payroll 5 

Contributions as it porcealage of 

covered-employ. pnonoll 

71 782 5 

13560l£ 

749,555 

12.62% 

743,888 5 

91.3215 

751,551 5 

SDO% 

256.203 

800% 

5 729,033 

8.001,1 

694_103 

7,24% 

S 708,053 

4.62% 

 

762,990 

3.138% 

lbus setedule rc inranded to show inlOrniation for 10 years Additional years xill be displayed ss they become available. 

Unaudited 
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ST. MARY Pit RI CRNal, 
SCHEDULE. OF CONTRISITTPONS 

Parerbial Employees Reenement System ef Lou2sima (Plan A) 
For the Year Faded December 31, 2015 

  

Frinsay 
Government 

St May 
Parish 

1.3:vary 

 

Sees& Use 
Tax Dept 

Corronmications 
District 

Dairs2cnally required castrihrtica S 919,381 5 144,5'92 S 59,146 S 32350 

Coorrinti6ons in rdation to the 
contract-sally reezoire contebudon 

 

(9I9,881) (144,8921 

 

(75,029) (32,3501 

Corw`elation deficiency (coma) S - $ - S

 

.........
S12/231 S 

Entity's covered-erepioyee pxyroll 3 5,343.977 $ I,001,567 $ 407,905 $ 123,1 GS 

Contrlutions as a peneentam of 
covened-eanoloyee .-pwra 

 

14.50% 14A7% 

 

18.39% 1450% 

Parcel-del Employew Retirement System of Lout 'siarra (p1an A) 
For the Year Ended Sept:relic-30,2015 

 

ConqoPdatei 
Comity °mien., 

Disrdot No. 1 

Ainl, ..Felaya 

 

Scweav 
Distia 
No. 5 

Sewwast 
Dismict 
No. 8 

Wards 
5 & 8 

Join' t SeWenge 
Golf 

Crease 

Connecta:2y required c....irt_1,..ibution $ 

Coutctleerions in relation to tin 
count-Wally require north-pinion 

48,SI1 

(48,811) 

S 25,539 

(23,339) 

S 25,346 

(23,346) 

S 13,1 

(13.123) 

5 10,677 

(10,677) 

ContrIation deffniency (excess) S 

 

S - - S 

 

S $ 

Tority's covered-employe* payroll S 

Contributions as a percentage of 
peyroll 

3-L7,1314 

14 8.9% 

S I93,651 

14.39% 

9 160,337 

14.87% 

S 88,294 

14.87% 

S 71,745 

14.83% 

ParocIrlal Employees eat System of Louisiana (Plan A) 
For dm Yrar Ended Deeecaber 31_, 2016 

St. May 
Primary _ Parish Sales &Use Ccanramicadons 

Gave= Library Tax Dept District  

Cantrar•rnlly rquired coma-IL:an $ 767,Z8 $ 134,374 S 57„1 C2 S 45,729 

Cant-lutions in rthcion tra the 
erratrzonally rectiL^e cantribuaz,. (767.Z 51 (134,374) (57.102)  

Cothi'ne.Man deficiexy (exams) S S S _ S 

Entity's covered-employee Dayton S 6,080,I87 S 1,033,649 3 439,244 S 350,802 

Corthbations as a mcentage of 
e.ovwed-arepiwee fwyroll 12.62% I3.00% 13.00% 13.04% 

aup.tvi cx5 Refireeie”. Sysie.ta of Louisiana (Plan A) 
For the Yez Ended September 30,2016 

 

Consolidated 
Gravity Drainage 

District No. 1 

.Atchafalaya 
Golf 

Cctrse 

 

Sewerage 
DisMim 
Nu. 5 

 

Sewerage 
District 
IQo.8 

Wads 
5 

kat 5.7mm-rig!: 

Coltman* r•-uire,ri ca=ihriica $ 

Camillo:ions in relation tc the 
contrictceily requizecortribaticri 

49,637 

(49,637) 

t 27,505 

(27,505) 

$ 22,550 

122.5601 

5 11,982 

(11,9182) 

5 9,616 

(9.616) 

Corthbotion deficiency (excess) $ 

 

S $ 

 

$ - S 

 

Entity's covered-employee payioll $ 

Corsrlezes as a- percent:up of 
covarei-eniploy payroll 

369,715 

13.43% 

$ 206,312 

15-33% 

5 163,039 

13.43% 

S 89,582 

13_33% 

5 71,957 

13_36% 

Llratirremd 

(45;729) 

1 3:3 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
SOICDUL.E. OF CONTR031MONS 

Parochial Employoss Retienant System of Laairlara (Plan A) (cratinnecl) 
For the Year Ended Denembc St, 2017 

 

Primary 
Government 

. St Mary 
Fattish 
litany 

 

Secs & 1.1in 
Tam Dant 

Commimicetiens 
Dismict 

Ccuracrarlyregnired contrilaition S 698,309 S 131,326 S 55,728 S 51,296 

Coraribtrions fit rela6on -co the 
corare-trially reldre coarribudon (698_309) (14326) 

 

(55,723) (51,296) 

Coot:1mM= defcciency (excess) s S 5 - s - 

Fanny's covered-employee payroll S 5,584519 S 1,050,608 S 445,821 S 410,368 
. _ . 

Corularticias ss a percentage o£ 
covered-empleyce payroll 12.50% 12.53% 

 

1250% 12_5015 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Ler 'mime (Plan A) 

 

For the-Yen-Ended Septa:or:cc 30, 2017 

Consolidated Atchafalaya 
Gravity Drabsage Golf 

District No. 1 Coarse 

Wards 
5 & 8 

!aim Sewerage 

Contactually recr:rod corstribution S 

O:arias:ions in :dation to the 
eassMaauclly require corm-Intim 

45,503 

(45,503) 

S 23,205 

(23,2951 

9 9,295 

(9,2051 

Cont-ibtarion deficiency (mcoess) S 

 

S - S - 

Enrity's coverad-erngeoyee payroll S 

Coaxibajons as a poreeorne of 
coat:red-employee payroll 

360,439 

12 62% 

S 183,689 

12.63% 

9 72,990 

12.61% 

PamminiPlEmployees Retirement System ofLomisiana (Plan A) (continued) 
For the Year E-mia,i  December 31, 2018 

Contact] ally required caratautiort 

Contributions in relation t. te 
=tactually recoMe coveribmion 

Primary 
Goverammt 

 

St. Mary 
Parish 
Laarsr 

 

Sales & Use 
Ta-c Deot 

Communications 
Distict 

S 658,284 

(658.284) 

£ 121,808 

(121,808) 

S 52,551 

(-V,551) 

S 54,039 

(54.239) 

Contribution def.ciency (excess) 5 S - s - S 

Enticys covered-employee payroll S 5.724,217 9 1,059,209 $ 456,966 $ 469,991 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-omplcryee payroll 11.50% 

 

1 L50% 

 

11.50% 11.SO% 

Parochial Employees Re&eirsarit System of (Plan A) 
For the Year Faded September 30, 2018 

 

Consolirktn,4 
Gravity Draioage 

Disaict No, 7 

Aulefalaya 
Golf 

CM-se 

 

Water and Sewer 
Coaanissice No.1 

Wards 
5 ec 8, 

Ioint Sevecra 

Contraeto2ny required mutilation S 43,593 S 21,681 S 33,248 S 8.442 

Contributions in relation to Cue 
curtireaMily c:actrIbution • (43,593) (21,681) 

 

(33,248) (9,442) 

Cm-rd.-am:ion deraiency (—ro.ts) 

     

art.Eys coymed-orapioyee payroll 370,690 S 184,210 S 281,668 S 71,859 

Contaarions as a perceatage of 
coccrecl-employx paymoll 11.76% I1.77'la 

 

11.8C% 11.75% 

This sche,inT.• is intended to sham,  infromarEon for I0 years. Acklitional years win be diapLayed as lacy hnerrrn r  amiable 

Lleaucatel 



 

sr. MARY 
SCECEDULE 

Parochial Employe= Re 
For the'r 

Primary 
Government 

PARISH COUNCIL 
OP CONYRLSZYTIONs 

A) (continutd) 

Sales & Use 
Dont 

Cornemniaszions 
Maim' 

am System of Louisiana (Men 
EadeilJeex-31, 2019 

St. ',Way 
Parish 
Librari 

Contractually requirei contrarian 5 624,921 S 127,762 5 52,551 S 59,864 

Contributions in relation to the 
carra-s.ctettly mire contribution (624,921) (127,7621 

 

(525511, (59,864) 

 

S $ - s 

 

s Contribation deficiency (moms* 

;%-e-ry's covm- -arcAoyee payroll S 5,434,112 S 1,110,543 S 456,966 S 520,557 

Com-anions as a percentage of 
er'",:d4. ,131*: Par oil 11.50% 11_50% 

 

11.50% 1/.50% 

Parochial Employees R.4.zeoenc System ofT-ouisians (PIan A) 
Porthe Year Ended September 30, 2019 

 

Consolidated 
Cravity Drainage 

Distrirl. No. 1 

A.Mhafalaya 
Goif 

Coarse 
Wa and Sewer 
Conmisnor. No. 3 

Wards 
5 a.' g 

Joint Se-ormage 

Coaa'acrlay required co=itador. .5 51,705 S 20,962 S 36,584 S 7,845 

Cod/avian in relm:on to the 

 

•. 

  

cmally require oomainrion (51,7051 (20,965) (36,584) (7,845 

C=trItreon decitaxy (access) S 

 

s 

  

an6tis covered-employee payroll 5 415,381 5 182,327 S 318,126 $ 68,221 

Contralti= as a percentage of 
cavered-mployee pzyroll 1236% 11.50% 11.50% 11.50% 

Parochial Employees ReiMement System caoLisiana (Plan A) (cord:hand) 
Forthe Year Elm:led Deem:ha-  31, 2020 

  

Primary 
Gov,&matut 

St. Mary 
£zxish 
Library 

 

Sales& Use 
Tax Dept 

Commmicatioas 
District 

Contractuany monied contribution $ 630,150 S I25,297 $ 5Q790 S 56,4I9 

Connations M. releioo to the 
orrutrer:tuary recorke ourdsirsthrst 

 

(S0,150) (125297) 

 

(56,790) (56,419) 

Conttatioa deficiency (excess) S 

 

5 S - S 

Entity's coverecl.eroployee payrala 5 5,144,082 S 1,022,831 S 463,588 S 490,600 

Cora:random as agmcentage of 
covered-employee payroll 

 

12.25% 1225% 

 

1L25% 11.50% 

 

Parochial FeTloyees ReEressent System of Lori-sr:arca (Pim A) 
Poo the Year Ended September 30, 2020 

Consolidated A:thafthiya 
Gravity Dratiarie Goff Water ancl.Sewer 

District No. l Course Cormisiola No. 3 

Vimds 
5 & S 

Joint Sewerage 

CoccaLtually rocrEredcontnlardon S 53,773 S 23,349 S 41,063 S 8,865 

ConnIair:cios in relation to the 
contracrually n391E-a oozmiinzion (53,7731 (r,349) 

 

{41.003) (8,8631 

Coarribution demiency (excem) 

     

Entity's cover-employee payroll 5 432,146 S !90,607 S 346,072 S 73,378 

Conrad:anus es a per.entose of 
covered-employee payroll 1244% 1225% 

 

I2.06% 12.09% 

Utauditial 



Parocliar Employees Reamer= System of Lotrisisna plan (coraroued) 
Forfat Year Ended December 31,2021 

  

Primary 
St May 
Peish 
Laary 

 

Selo &Use. 
Tax.Dept 

Commonications 
Dirtier 

 

Corrmactosay rectired contra:42*m S 663,522 4 It2,734 S 56,773 S 53,533 

Coarributions in. rettion to fm 

cannactmEy req&e on=13.rion. 

 

(5S,522) (112,734) 

 

56,773 (53,533) 

Contribution de-xi:soy (r.-er-co S - $ 3 113,555 S - 

Entity's covered-ezployee payroll s 5,416,434 $ 923,589 S 463,494 S 477,859 

  

12.25% 12.2.5% 

 

-1225% 1225% 

Contibutions as a p=c=tage of 
covmed-mrapIoyee caryrall 

amloyenReicomerrt System e Louisiana (Rae A) 

 

For the YearEncledSeptccoher50,2M1 . 

Consolidated Atchafalaya 
Gravity Drainage Golf Water and Sawa 

117-srrox No. 1 Cour,* Commission No. 3 

 

Wards 
3 & 3 

Joist Seweat_5e 

Ca :m=4 regthreai cooarributiza S 

Contribmdoas iri relation to the 
ecatacmally require. outantimen 

57,544 

.F.,5441 

$ 20,496 $ 

(A496) 

52297 

(52,297) 

S 9,427 

(9,427) 

Contributioo deficiency (excess) S - S - s 

 

S 

 

Enrity's covered-employee payroll $ 

Contributions ss a p ercmtago of 

cover=1.-e=PloYez par511 

551,3V 

12_25% 

S 167,316 S 

12.:15% 

426,909 

[2_25% 

$ 76,957 

1273% 

Parcelrial Employees ]1.6th.ement System of Louisiana (Plan A) (continued) 
Fut the Year Ended December 3.1, 20M 

 

Wm rey 

Crow:nun= 

SL Mary 
Palish 

Lfbraty 

 

Sales & Use 
Tree Dept 

CoromuM.ce€curs 
District 

Contractually re•r:rL "red CAntr,1:01011. S 602.414 5 101,637 $ 54,587  5 54,685 

CohEbtrions Li reta6cco to the 

cantracutelly require ,..m.LLI=i071 (02,414) (10I,687) 

 

(54.537) 

 

(54,635) 

ContrThmion cicEeirmoy (excess) s s s 

 

S 

 

actity's co vmed-erapIoyee proroll S 4,704,544 S 883,913 S. e.74,665 

 

475,518 

Contributions ss a peromotage of 

covered..employ payroll L2.30% 1I.50% 

 

11.50% 

 

1150% 

 

ParochialEmployees 
Fyr the Year 

Carnolidted 

Retirement System &Latish= (Hatt A) 
Ended Sept:rat= 30, 20n 

kricaSaleya 

Golf View and Sewer 

Conne Commission No 3 

Wards 
5 & S 

Joint SewL—w.,e 
Gravity Drainage 

District No. 1 

CoaMactually required eeditribuded 53324 S 20,496 S 50,272 S 8,053 

CantrzlArions m relztce ter the 
contractually require cam:ram:don (58,324) (20,496) 

 

(50.272) (8,053) 

Coratibution d&cieary (xceess) 5 

   

- s 

EL--Lys covered:employee payroll 499.958 S 167,316 $ 430,207 S 68,695 

Contrarmions xs a pmrzamge ef 
covered-employee payroll 11.67% 

  

1109% 11.72% 

This sehtthile ihre31.0cd. to show inforstarion far 10 yesrs. AcKtiorta0 years will be rftplayed as they became mailable 

Unaudithe 



Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana. (Plan A) (continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 

Primary 
Government 

Si. Mary 
Parish 
Library 

 

Sales & Use 
Tax Dept 

Comenurdearions 
District 

Contractually required contribution S 539,085 $ 115,648 S 53,270 $ 54,215 

Contributions in relation to the 
comractimny require contrittort (539,085) (115,648) 

 

(53,278) (54,215) 

Comml5ntion detmeacy (excess) $ S $ 

 

S 

EntitYs covered-employee payroll S 4217,657 $ 1,005,637 S 463,2/5 S 471,436 

Contributions as a percentage of 
coVered-cmployee payroll 12.78% 11.50% 

 

/1.50% 11.50% 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (Plan A) 
For the Year Ended Septeml5er 30, 2023 

 

Consolidated 
Gravity Drainage 

District No. l 

Atchafalaya 
Golf 

Course 
Water and Sewer 

Commission No. 3 

Wards 
5 ,& 8 

Joint Sewerage 

ContractuaIly required contribution S 60,015 $ 14,009 $ 52,262 S 8,650 

Ccmtrilautions in relation to the 
contractually require contribution (60,015) (14,009) (52,262) (8,650) 

Cournbution deficiency (excess) S 

 

S S 

 

S 

Entity's covered-employee payroil $ .521,870 $ 113,404 $ 454,454 S 75,214 

Contributions as a percultage of 
covered-employee payroll 11.50% 1235% 11.50% 11.50% 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years wiTI be displayed as they become available 

Unaudited 
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ST. 01,01{Y PARISH COUNCIL, 
SCIIEDULE OP CON 1 IIII1Lnriths 

Ivrurhid limp/oras !leap:mod 0;,,kri of I ouix,n,s4 (4.1.10 41) 
For 11,1 Ywr Er.t1r4 

 

S'era,o1,,,. 30 7015 Soft:mho, 13, 201.3 8,erioedoe 10 1010 Sonleankar 30 2011 1N-446,o4. 1O Scolumbor 30. 2020 Nool.nhor 30. 2021 Seganbm 30.2023 Sootc44., 30. 2022 

 

%Valve & 6,,or Water it Smor Wokrnorks WnIerSSuwer WuknwrAx Wolor & Soya Watc,ocki WI. et Sower Waterwok. Water Sovcr Woloworks Waior Sower Walonooks MeV& Sonvcr WM.-wok. Walvr & Sower W.,Icrworkr 

 

4 C.4,-,,Misku, No 4 ll,nnrio No. 5 COVIlinifO:611 Nn 1 Ilintro No, 5 Cerlulvissirvi Ne., 4 L1O.tei,7474O 5 Coon.i.vol Nu 4 Districl No 5 Comcrii31011 No. 4 lAatrict No s C0111113..inn No 4 No. 5 CA,rolisoko No.4 DivIrct No 5 Coorri.Hion No 4 Diulckt No. 5 
rrt-puitd 53,193 5 49.703 S 30,352 S 4 1,863 S 27,357 S 48.20.1 S 26,539 S 41,060 S 25,411 $ 15.205 S 24 001 5 52.419 S 20.530 5 56.150 8 20.07) 5 60. 755 S 17.674 

CrolnInCr us In rdolinn 
ront,oulually.ruiwir, contrihafici 1:‘3,1031 149,7931 130:1521 014,316) 27,310) I48.2.03) 126,013) (46,060) ;21 41.14. (45.205) 124 0041 152 4191 00.530) 150.356) (20.0201 tíl 755) (17.S74) 

CI.Mr lofloioi.cvloy.cesn) . 

 

- S - 

 

5 - 5 - S S - S - S - 5 - S - S S - S 

21111-1, ptyroll. 512.135 8 102.042 S 350.20.2 S 560.830 S 344.532 S 131.053 8 34.5.587 S 021.130 S 3XI 10 $ 002,729 S 120 077 S 3,10 025 5 203,312 S 7J1,422 S 207.055 d 9101/65 S 233.i 50 

Coillnkulicir, es u potco,rogo of 
Drarai.ompluyoe 10 5V, 3.27, s39^e 

 

8.00•• 

 

7 36°, 7.5004 1.51.114 7.50nr 7 5014 7 501, 7.9r. 7.501. 7501a 7.301, 7 67! 

uly 1r linefeed in shov.lnfornal,rr, P r 10 5,,pr 110 OtGy 

Unaudited 



sc Mery Perish Council 
SCHEER= 0F CONTRIBUTIONS 

Louisiana Cbir15 of Court Retirement and Relief Fund. 
as of 

 

lune 30, 2015 Row 30.2016 lune 30.2017 June 36 0,18 

St Mary Parish St. Mary Proash St. Miry Parish SL Marl Arial 
Clerk of Court Clerk or Court Clerk of Cowl Clerk of Court 

Juar Mt 2010 

Si. Marti Plorich 
Clerk of Court 

lime 30. 2070 

51. Itfay Parish 
Clerk of Comm 

lune 50, 2021 

SI. Stlary Parish 
Clerk of Court 

111170 3.9, 2022 

St Mory Perish 
Clerk of Cowl 

 

lune 30, 2022 

St. Mary Parish 

Cialt of Court 

 

Conmseinally irequire6 contribution S 144,217 S 145_104 3 136,713 $ 141.151 $ 138,761 $ 140.826 $ 153.594 $ 157,621 

 

161,244 

 

Con inbruons in relation to the 
47DP4Litiallir :squired contribution 044.7171 (1454641 .436.7131 .1142,1511 1138,7611 .140.8201 1133.5941 1157.6217 

 

(161.144) 

 

Contrarotion doficicory (48.55) - $ - R - 

  

5 

  

Clerkis coverd.1-ertiployet payroll 3 779,355 S 774,54S S 710,541 S 7483564 $ 730.323 S 741,199 S 731,399 $ 708,469 3 724,693 

 

Contributions es fa perceatege of 
commed-employee payroll 18.5945 19.0019 19 00% 4 00% 10 00% 79 0.555 21 0055 22.23% 

 

22.25% 

  

Mirottphters' Rchcrepant System of Leursiana 
as of 

        

September 30, 7015 September 30, 2616 Scut:mho-  50 2017 5,64311.18.7 30 74.18 Sooternher 30. 2019 September 30. 2020 

 

Secietnher 20 7071 September 3ti, 1624 

 

Fite Dishriel Fire Almost Eire DiStriCt File DiSI.LiCI. Pile Distal Fire District Filo District Pita District 

 

Foe Drshmt Fire Districl 

 

No.3 I4o. 7 No 3 No 7 No 3 No 3 No 3 No 1 

 

No. 3 No. 3 

Corarnetually required contribatecn $ 46.337 5 8,048 3 46.603 3 

 

53,649 3 59,888 3 55,56.6 5 62,9613 S 54,607 $ 

 

Contributions in rols6on to the 
coniractually required contribution 

 

.46.3371 

 

19.040i 

 

010.5,X1) 

  

1.08,6-150 

 

[59.18887 

 

[55,5607 

 

(52 9051 

 

114.6031 

 

c_41,1061. 

Conte Ninon de56ency (atorcm) 

   

- 5 - 

  

- s - 

  

5 - s 

 

s 

 

Dion-kir oporree-employm payroll S 16I,I7? 5 27,648 $ 177844 S 

 

719,384 

 

255,992 $ 207,174 S 217.963 5 150.719 S 125,870 

Conbi Mations or a perostaage of 
covered-employee payrob 

 

28.7595 

 

?g 17% 

 

25.9050 

 

0 0955 25.5755 

 

26.00% 

 

56 6555 

 

28 8955 

 

34.84% 

 

73 50% 

Louisiana Asposom: Retirement Punt soil Suhudamy 

es of 

 

December 25 2011 December 31, 1016 December CI, MI5 December Si 1010 December C.1. 51115 

 

Dereni ber 31,8050 

 

December 3L 2.9551 

 

S7ecember3L20i2 

St. M5ry Paridt 
Aaessor 

Derminherl I, 1013 

51. Maps Parish ST_ Mary Rerish SL Mary Parish St. Mary Paris.h 
.Assecior As4555.18 P.ascren Asssseor 

St. Mary Parish 
Asustior 

S5 Mary Parish 
sseer-i8er 

St Mary Parish 
..5.481m- 

St. ?dory Parish 
Assessor 

Contractually recoMed eontriltatrinry S 

Contributions in relation M the 
contr./dually required connibulion 

94,224 $ 94,631 0 7O06 0 

c96.2261 004,6317 (70.8907 

69,124 3 

160.1247 

60,496 

100,4967 

5 58,324 

.1,53,0241 

3 50,534 

150.2341 

3 32,747 $ 

ii32.7473 

29.506 

129,3661 

Contribution deficionoy ..cuss) S - S - S - S - S 

 

S 

 

3 

  

.93.Dzsois cog.ectl-on,153.4.5 prryroll S 

Contributions us a taleentege of 
soveredrenrployee poyroll 

Thmscherhalc ie Intended lo shOW 

712.782 g 749,555 S 743,088 S 

13.59% 12.6295 9.52% 

fOr 10 years, Additional years will he displeyed as rho-, becceneasalLsble. 

7518.53 3 

5.90% 

7.56,203 

3.02% 

3 729.053 

8350% 

S 0394.303 

7 24% 

$ 70,1,f153 

4.4255 

742.990 

3.68% 

Unaudited 
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St_ Mary Parish Council 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana 

Changes of benefit terms - There were no changes of benefit terms. 

Change of assumptions-

 

Fiscal Year 
ended December 31, 

Disocount 
Rate 

hivestment Rate 
of Return 

inflation 
 ilate 

Projected Salary 
Increase 

2015 7.25% 7.25% 3_00% 5.75% 
2016 7.00% 7.00% 2_50% 5.25% 
2017 7.00% 7.00% 2_50% 5.25% 
2018 6.75% 6.75% 2.50% 5.25% 
2019 6.50% 6.50% 2.40% 4_75% 
2020 6.50% 6.50% 2.40% 4.75% 
2021 6 40% 6.40% 2.30% 4.75% 
2022 6.40% 6.40% 2_30% 4.75% 
2023 6.40% 6.40% 2.30% 4.75% 

Louisiana Assessors' Retirement Fund and Subsidiary 

Changes of benefit terms - There were no changes of benefit terms for the Pension Plan during the year presented. 

Change of assumptions- The discount rate changed from 6.00% to 5.75% for the Pension Plan during the year presented. 

Louisiana. Clerks' of Court Retirement and Relief Fund 

Changes of benefit tenns - There were no changes of benefit terms. 

Change of assumptions-

 

Plan Year 
ended on June 30, 

Disocount 
Rate 

Investment Rate 

of Return 

Inflation 
Rate 

Projected Salary 
Increase 

2015 7.25% 7.25% 2_75% 5 75% 
2016 7.00% 7.00% 2.50% 5 00% 
2017 7.00% 7.00% 2.50% 5 00% 

2018 7.00% 7.00% 2_50% 5.00% 

2019 6.75% 6.75% 2.50% 5.00% 

2020 6.75% 6.75% 2.50% 5.00% 

2021 6.55% 6.55% 2.40% 5%-6.20% 

2022 6.55% 6.55% 140% 5%-6.20% 

Firefinhters' Retirement Svstem of Louisiana 

Changes of benefit terms - There were no changes of benefit terms. 

Chanue of assumptions-

 

Plan Year 
ended on June 30, 

Disocount 
Rate 

Investment Rate 
of Return 

inflation 
Rate 

Projected Salaty 
Increase 

2015 7.500% 7 500% 2.875% 4.75% - 15 0% 

2016 7.500% 7 500% 2.875% 4.75% - 15.0% 

2017 7.400% 7 400% 2.775% 4.75% - 15.0% 

2018 7.300% 7 300% 2.700% 4.75% - 15.0% 

2019 7 150% 7.150% 2.500% 4.5% - 14.75% 

2020 7 000% 7_000% 2.500% 5.20% - 14.10% 

2021 6.900% 6.900% 2 500% 5.20% - 14.10% 

2022 6.900% 6.900% 2_500% 5.20% - 14_10% 
2023 6.900% 6.900% 2.500% 5 20%-14.10% 

Unaudited 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

By Governmental Fund Type 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special revenue fimds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
earmarked for expenditures for specified purposes. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of long-
terrn debt principal, interest and related costs. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - By Fund Type 

December 31, 2023 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

Debt 
Service 
Funds 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds          

ASSETS 

   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,288 $ 2,330,148 $ 2,365,436 
Investments 217,201 44,935 262,136 
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 44,985 

 

44,985 
Due from other governments 357,990 540,545 898,535 
Advance to other funds 1,842,438 596,471 2,438,909 

TotaI assets $ 2,497,902 $ 3,512,099 $ 6,010,001 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Advance from other funds 

Total liabilities 

FUND EQUITY 

$ 303,735 $ - $ 303,735 
6,634 6,634 

162,634 253,510 416,144 

473,003 253,510 726,513 

Deferred inflows of resources related to debt 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 

   

473,003 253,510 726,513 

Fund equity 

   

Fund balances 

   

Restricted for 

   

Use in specific geographic areas 1,762,203 

 

1,762,203 
Debt services 

 

2,351,756 2,351,756 
Assigned for 

   

General Government 181,182 

 

181,182 
Public safety 3,820 

 

3,820 
Culture & recreation 103,615 

 

103,615 
Health & welfare 11,951 

 

11,951 
Debt services 

 

608,042 608,042 
Unassigned (37,872) 298,791 260,919 

Total fund equity 2,024,899 3,258,589 5,283,488 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and 
fund equity $ 2,497,902 $ 3,512,099 $ 6,010,001 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - By Fund Type 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

Debt 
Service 
Funds 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

   

Sales and use $ 1,939,256 $ 2,235,565 $ 4,174,821 
Ad Valorem 

 

184,066 184,066 
Intergovernmental revenues 

   

Federal 544,407 

 

544,407 
State 170,691 

 

170,691 
Local 335,239 

 

335,239 
Riverboat fees 1,400,000 

 

1,400,000 
Licenses & Permits 26,518 

 

26,518 
Fees, Charges, & Commission 196,477 

 

196,477 
Investment earnings & interest 37,753 89,776 127,529 
Other revenues 142,080 

 

142,080 

Total revenues 4,792,421 2,509,407 7,301,828 

EXPENDITURES 

   

Current: 

   

GeneraI government 98,666 

 

98,666 
Public safety 2,761,462 

 

2,761,462 
Public works 251,628 

 

251,628 
Culture & Recreation 293,707 

 

293,707 
Health & welfare 426,119 

 

426,119 
Urban redevelopment & housing 532,651 

 

532,651 
Capital outlay 83,693 

 

83,693 
Debt service 

   

Principal 

 

3,020,000 3,020,000 
Interest 

 

1,210,517 1,210,517 
Fees 

 

7,900 7,900 

Total expenditures 4,447,926 4,238,417 8,686,343 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 344,495 (1,729,010) (1,384,515) 

OMER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

   

Operating transfers in 1,195,000 3,331,490 4,526,490 
Operating transfers out (1,445,000) (1,400,000) (2,845,000) 

Total other iThancing sources (uses) (250,000) 1,931,490 1,681,490 

Excess of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 94,495 202,480 296,975 

Fund balance (deficits) as previously stated 646,749 3,056,109 3,702,858 

Prior period adjustment 1,283,655 - 1,283,655 

Fund balance at beginning of year as restated 1.930,404 3.056.109 4_986.513 

Fund balance at end of year $ 2,024,899 $ 3,258,589 $ 5,283,488 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

GAMING RECEIPT FUND 

The Gaming Receipt Fund is used to account for money received under an agreement with the 
Amelia Belle Riverboat Casino. 

WITNESS FEE FUND 

The Witness Fee Fund is used to account for monies received for court costs and fines related to 
cases in St. Mary Parish. Funds are used to pay witness fees related to Parish court cases. 

JUROR COMPENSATION FUND 

The Juror Compensation Fund is used to account for monies received related to juror 
compensation fees and paid for jury costs for cases in St. Mary Parish. 

WARDS 5 & 8 SALES TAX FUND 

The Wards 5 and 8 Sales Tax Fund accounts for the proceeds of the three-tenths of one percent 
sales and use tax levied within Wards 5 and 8 to acquire and maintnin lights, public works, fire 
protection, recreationaI, and health facilities. 

WARDS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, & 10 SALES TAX FUND 

The Wards 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, and 10 Sales Tax Fund accounts for the proceeds of the three-tenths of one 
percent sales and use tax levied within these wards to acquire and maintain lights, public works, 
fire protection, recreational, and health facilities. 

JAIL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE FUND 

The Jail Operating fund is used to account for the proceeds of the one-half of one percent sales and 
use tax levied in St. Mary Parish to be used solely for the purposes of paying the cost of operating 
and maintaining jail facilities and minimum security facilities of the Parish. 

16th JDC - ST. MARY PARISH DRUG COURT FUND 

The 16th JDC - St. Mary Parish Drug Court fund accounts for the operation of the adult and 
juvenile outpatient drug court program funded by federal and state grants from the Louisiana 
Supreme Court. 
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JOB READINESS PROGRAM FUND 

The Job Readiness Program Fund is used to account for Federal and State funds received for the purpose 
of providing work readiness training and job developrnent/placement for drug court clients and ininates 
in the Sixteenth Judicial District. 

BOAT LANDING PERMITS FUND 

The Boat Landing Permits Fund accounts for funds received from the sale of permits and launch fees to 
users of the various boat landings located throughout St. Mary Parish. 

HOUSING PROGRAM 

The Housing Program administers the Section 8 Housing Program which covers all of St. Mary Parish, 
excluding Morgan City. 

DWI COURT 

The DWI Court Fund is used to increase public safety by ensuring DWI offenders are held accountable 
for their behavior. 

DWI COURT - PATIENT FEE FUND 

The DWI Court Patient Fee Fund is used to account for fees received and other expenses related to 
participants in the DWI Court Program. 

OW ENHANCEMENT GRANT 

The purpose of the Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) FY18 Adult Drug Court Discretionary Grant 
Program is to provide financial and technical assistance to implement and enhance drug courts and 
veterans treatment courts. 

FAIRVIEW TREATMENT CENTER 

The Fairview Treatment Center operated an alcohol and drug abuse, inpatient treatment facility for the 
residents of Louisiana which closed in 2022. 

CLAIRE HOUSE 

Claire House operated a long-term residential treatment facility for chemically addicted women and 
their children which closed in 2022. 
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ST, MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Noninajor Special Revenue. Funds 

December 3 I, 2023 

 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Gaming 
Receipt 
Fund 

Witness 
Fee 

Fund 

Juror 
Compensation 

Fund 

Wards 
5 & 8 

Sales Tax. 
Fund 

Wards 
1,2,3,4,7 &10 

Sales Tax 
Fund 

Jail 
Operating 
& Maint. 

Fund 

16th JDC-

 

St. Mary 
Parish 

Drug Court 

Job Readiness 
Program 

Fund  

$ 4,506 $ - S $ $ - $ - $ - $ 

 

Investments 127 

  

65,972 147,188 $ 3,676 

   

Accounts receivable 

     

2,961 $ 3,080 

  

Due from other governments 

   

65,450 91,152 190,124 11,264 

  

Advance to other funds 71,641 $ 109,315 $ 71,867 850,064 577,119 

 

62,478 

  

Total assets $ 71,768 $ 109,315 $ 71,867 $ 981,486 $ 815,459 $ 196,761 $ 76,822 $ 4,506 

 

LIABILATIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND EQUITY 

        

Liabilities 

         

Accounts payable 34 $ 

 

$ 7,262 $ 26,085 $ 200,658 $ 44,374 $ 
ea Accrued liabilities 

    

1,395 

 

5,239 

  

Advance from other funds 

     

147,663 

   

Total liabilities 34 

  

7,262 27,480 348,321 49,613 

  

Deferred inflows of resources 

         

Total liabilities and deferred intlows 34 

  

7,262 27,480 348,321 49,613 

  

Fund equity (deficit) 

         

Fund balances (deficits) 

         

Restricted for use in specific 

         

geographic areas 

   

974,224 787,979 

    

Assigned for 

         

General government 

 

109,315 . 71,867 

      

Public safety 

         

Culture & Recreation 

         

Health & Welfare 

       

4,506 

 

Unassigned 71,734 

    

(151,560) 27,209 

  

1btaI fund equity (deficit) 71,734 109,315 71,867 974,224 787,979 (151,560) 27,209 4,506 

 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and 

         

fund equity $ 71,768 $ 109,315 $ 71,867 $ 981,486 $ 815,459
.
 $ 196,761 $ 76,822 $ 4,506 

        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Cornbining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

December 31, 2023 

ASSETS 

Boat 
Landing 
Permit 
Fund 

Housing 
Program 

DWI 
Court 

DWI Court - 
Patient 

Fee 

OJP 
Enhancement 

Grant 

Total 
Nonrnajor 

Special Revenue 
Funds 

     

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,023 $ 15,494 $ 3,820 $ 7,445 $ $ 35,288 
Investments 238 

    

217,201 
Accounts receivable 

 

12,350 

  

26,594 44,985 
Due from other governments 

     

357,990 
Advance to other funds 99,954 

    

1,842,438 
Total assets $ 104,215 $ 27,844 $ 3,820 $ 7,445 S 26,594 $ 2,497,902 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND EQUITY 

    

Liabilities 

      

Accounts payable $ 600 $ 129 $ $ $ 24,593 $ 303,735 
Accrued liabilities 

     

6,634 
, Advance from other fonds 

    

14,971 162,634 

Total liabilities 600 129 

  

39,564 473,003 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 

      

600 129 

  

39,564 473,003 

Fund equity (deficit) 

      

Fund balances (deficits) 

      

Restricted for use in specific 
geographic areas 

     

1,762,203 
Assigned for 

      

General government 

     

181,182 
Public safety 

  

3,820 

  

3,820 
Culture & Recreation 103,615 

    

103,615 
IIealth & Welfare 

   

7,445 

 

11,951 
Unassigned 

 

27,715 

  

(12,970) (37,872) 

Total fund equity (deficit) 103,615 27,715 3,820 7,445 (12,970) 2,024,899 
Total 1iabilities, deferred inflows, and 

fund equity $ 104,215 $ 27,844 $ 3,820 $ 7,445 26,594 $ 2,497,902 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



ST. MARV PAIUSII COUNCIL 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

For the Year Ending Deceinber 31, 2023 

 

REVENUES 

Taxes 
Sales and use 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Gaming 
Receipt 
Fund 

Witness 
Fee 

Fund 

$ - 

Juror 
Compensation 

Fund 

Wards 
5 & 8 

Sales Tux 
Fund 

Wards 
1,2,3,4,7 &10 

Sales Tax 
Fund 

Jail 
Operating 
R. Maint, 

Fund 

l6th JDC-

 

St. Mary 
Parish 

Drug Court 

Job Readiness 
Program 

Fund 

$ - $ - $ - $ 365,532 $ 513,872 $ 1,059,8.52 $ - 

 

Federal 

      

7,090 

  

State 

      

170,691 

  

Local 

     

335,239 

   

Riverboat fees 1,400,000 

        

Licenses & Permits 

         

Fees, Charges, & Commission 

 

67,136 64,851 

  

24,696 6,042 

  

Investment earnings & interest 996 

  

19,210 15,445 1,821 

   

Other revenues 500 

   

150 

    

Total revenues 1,401,496 67,136 64,851 384,742 529,467 1,421,608 183,823 - 

 

EXPENDITURES 

         

Current: 

         

General government 1,018 60,798 36,850 . 

     

Public safety 45,000 

  

10,000 114,523 2,591,939 

  

,—... 
Public works 

   

134,439 117,189 

   

LA Culture & Recreation 

   

110,000 180,454 

   

© Health & Welfare 

    

39,716 

 

203,106 

  

Urban redevelopment & Housing 

         

Capital outlay 

    

21,868 

    

Total expenditures 46,0 I 8 60,798 36,850 254,439 473,750 2,591,939 203,106 - 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

         

over (under) expenditures 1,355,478 6,338 28,001 130,303 55,717 (1,170,331) (19,283) 

  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

         

Operating transfers in 

     

1,195,000 

   

Operating transfers out (1345,000) 

 

(50,000) 

 

(50,000) 

    

Total other financing sources (uses) ( I ,345,000) 

 

(50,000) 

 

(50,000J 1,195,000 

   

E=s3 (deficiency) of revenues and other 

sources over (under) expenditures 

         

and other uses 10,478 6,338 (21,999) 130,303 5,717 24,669 (19,283) 

  

Fund balance (deficits) at beginning of year as previously stated 61,256 102,977 93,866 843,921 782,262 (176,229) 46,492 4,506 

 

Prior period adjustment 

      

- 

  

Fund balance (deficits) at beginning of year as restated 61,256 102,977 93,866 843,921 782,262 (176,229) 46,492 4,506 

 

Fund balance (deficits) at end of year  71,734  $ 109,315 $ 71,867 $ 974,224  $ 787,979  $ Cl.51,560) $ 27,209 S 4,506  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemertts. 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Combining Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonrnaj or Special Revenue Funds 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2023 

 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

 

I3oat 
Landing 
Permit 
Fund 

Housing 
Program 

DWI 
Court 

DWI Court - CUP 
Patient Fee Enhancement 

Fund Grant 

Fairview 
Treatment 

Center 
Claire 
House 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Special Revenue 
Funds 

         

Sales and use 
intergovernmental revenues 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

 

$ 1,939,256 

 

Federal 

  

• 537,317 

     

544,407 

 

State 

        

170,691 

 

Local 

        

335,239 

 

Riverboat fees 

        

1,400,000 

 

Licenses & Permits 

 

26,518 

      

26,518 

 

Fees, Charges, & Commission 

 

33,752 

      

l 96,477 

 

hwestrnent earnings & interest 

 

192 89 

     

37,753 

 

Other revenue.s 

     

141,430 

  

142,080 

 

Total revenues 

 

60,462 537,406 

 

- 141,430 

  

4,792,421 

 

EXPENpITURES 

          

Current: 

          

General government 

        

98,666 

 

Public safety 

        

2,761,462 

 

Public works 

        

251,628 
u., Culture & Recreation 

 

3,253 

      

293,707 

 

Health & welfare 

     

183,297 

  

426,119 

 

Urban redevelopment & Housing 

  

532,651 

     

532,651 

 

Capital outlay 

 

61,825 

      

83,693 

 

Total expenditures 

 

65,078 532,651 

  

183,297 

  

4,447,926 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

          

over (under) expenditures 

 

(4,616) 4,755 

  

(41,867) 

  

344,495 

 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

          

Operating transfers in 

        

1,195,000 

 

Operating transfers out 

        

(1,445,000) 

 

Total other financing soerces (uses) 

        

(250,000) 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 

          

and other uses 

 

(4,616) 4,755 

  

(41,867) 

  

94,495 

 

Fund balance (deficits) at beginning of year as previously stated 

 

108,231 22,960 3,820 7,445 28,897 (1,222,452) (61,203) 646,749 

 

Prior period adjustment 

      

1,222,452 61,203 1,283,655 

 

Fund balance (deficits) at beginning of year as restated 

 

108,231 22,960 3,820 7,445 28,897 

  

1,930,404 

 

Fund balance (deficits) at end of year $ 103,615  27,715 $ 3,820 $ 7,445 $ (12,979) $ - $ - $ 2,024,899  

The acconlpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Gaming Receipt Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Ne2ative) 

    

Riverboat fees $ 1,400,000 $ 1,400,000 $ 1,400,000 $ 
Investment earnings & interest 300 300 996 696 
Other revenues 

 

500 500 

 

Total revenues 1,400,300 1,400,800 1,401,496 696 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

General government 1,710 1,710 1,018 692 
Public safety 95,000 95,000 45,000 50,000 

TotaI expenditures 96,710 96,710 46,018 50,692 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,303,590 1,304,090 1,355,478 51,388 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

    

Operating transfers out 

    

General Fund (450,000) (500,000) (500,000) 

 

Jail Operating & Maintenance Fund (845,000) (845,000) (845,000) 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,295,000) (1,345,000) (I,345,000) 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 
and other uses 8,590 (40,910) 10,478 51,388 

Fund balance at beginning of year 15,144 61,256 61,256 

 

Fund balance at end of year $ 23,734 $ 20,346 $ 71,734 $ 51,388 

The accompanying notcs are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Witness Fee Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Original 
Budiret 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

Fees, Charges, & Commission 50,000 $ 57,000 $ 67,136 $ 10,136 
Total revenues 50,000 57,000 67,136 10,136 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

    

General government 

    

Witness Fees 7,500 4,750 4,948 (198) 
Payment to 16th JDC Crimnal Court Fund 40,000 55,850 55,850 

 

Total expenditures 47,500 60,600 60,798 (198) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
sources over (under) expenditures 2,500 (3,600) 6,338 9,938 

Fund balance at beginning of year 85,000 102,977 102,977 

 

Fund balance at end of year 87,500 99,377 $ 109,315 9,938 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Juror Compensation Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(N egative) 

   

Fees, Charges, & Commission $ 50,000 $ 56,000 $ 64,851 $ 8,851 
Total revenues 50,000 56,000 64,851 8,851 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

    

General government 25,000 35,000 36,850 (1,850) 
Total expenditures 25,000 35,000 36,850 (1,850) 

Excess revenues over expenditures 25,000 21,000 28,001 7,001 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers out 

General Fund (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 
and other uses (25,000) (29,000) (21,999) 7,001 

Fund balance at beginning of year 118,177 93,866 93,866 

 

Fund balance at end of year $ 93,177 $ 64,866 $ 71,867 $ 7,001 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Wards 5 & 8 Sales Tax Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

Sales and use $ 295,000 $ 385,000 $ 365,532 $ (19,468) 
Investment earnings & interest 1,350 7,350 19,210 11,860 

Total revenues 296,350 392,350 384,742 (7,608) 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

General government 3,300 3,300 

 

3,300 
Public safety 

Fire fighting 10,000 10,000 10,000 

 

Public works 

    

Street lighting 82,000 91,000 90,362 638 
Wax Lalce East Drainage District 12,000 12,000 2,452 9,548 
Bayou Vista Area Sidewalks 43,000 53,000 41,625 11,375 

Culture & Recreation 

    

Town of Berwick 3,000 3,000 3,000 

 

Other 6,750 L750 1,000 750 
Recreation District #3 65,000 66,000 66,000 - 
Recreation District #4 50,000 50,000 40,000 10,000 

Total expenditures 275,050 290,050 254,439 35,611 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 21,300 102,300 130,303 28,003 

Fund balance at beginning of year 739,317 843,921 843,921 

 

Fund balance at end of year 760,617 946,221 $ 974,224 $ 28,003 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements_ 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison ScheduIe 
Wards 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, & 10 Sales Tax Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

SaIes and use $ 435,000 $ 470,000 $ 513,872 $ 43,872 
Investment earnings & interest 550 550 15,445 14,895 
Other revenues 

  

150 150 
Total revenues 435,550 470,550 529,467 58,917 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

    

Public safety 
Baldwin Police Dept. 

 

20,000 20,000 - 
Fire fighting 50,523 100,523 94,523 6,000 

PubIic works 
Sidewalks & crosswalks 

   

- 
Street Iighting 116,000 123,000 117,189 5,811 

Culture & Recreation 

    

Elizabeth B. Davis Park 42,360 42,360 30,121 12,239 
Hebert-Washington Park 48,200 48,200 32,713 15,487 
City of Franklin 8,334 8,334 3,333 5,001 
St. Joseph Recreation Area 1,500 1,500 1,723 (223) 
Recreation District #5 

 

28,000 (2,000) 30,000 
Recreation District #7 30,000 30,000 30,000 - 
Sorrell Park 17,600 17,600 19,537 (1,937) 
Enrichment Progams 23,750 73,750 63,941 9,809 
Other 1,150 1,150 1,086 64 

Health & Welfare 
General Assistance 24,500 21,300 39,716 (18,416) 

Capital outlay 

    

Elizabeth B.Davis Park 2,000 1I,000 10,934 66 
Sorrell Park 

 

12,000 10,934 1,066 

Total expenditures 365,917 538,717 473,750 64,967 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expen.ditures 69,633 (68,167) 55,717 123,884 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Operating transfers out 
Road Construction and Maintenance Fund 

 

(50,000) (50,000) 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

 

(50,000) (50,000) 

 

Net change in fund balance 69,633 (118,167) 5,717 123,884 

Fund balance at beginning of year 689,762 782,262 782,262 

 

Fund balance at end of year $ 759,395 $ 664,095 $ 787,979 $ 123,884 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Jail Operating & Maintenance Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Taxes 

Original 
Budzet 

Final 
Budaet Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Neeative) 

    

Sales and use S 950,000 $ 1,075,000 S 1,059,852 $ (15,148) 
Local 

Sheriff 300,000 325,000 335,239 10,239 
Fees, Charges, & Commission 2,000 24,371 24,696 325 
Investment earnings & interest 50 50 1,82I 1,771 

Total revenues 1,252,050 1,424,421 1,421,608 (2,813) 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current: 

    

Public safety 

    

Administration 596,000 517,000 489,793 27,207 
Adult Correctional Institution 1,518,000 1,838,000 2,041,622 (203,622) 
Cost for Juvenile Prisoners 10,000 27,500 40,060 (12,560) 
Adult Correctional Institution - Morgan City jail 5,000 20,000 20,464 (464) 
Total expenditures 2,129,000 2,402,500 2,591,939 (189,439) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (876,950) (978,079) (1,170,331) (192,252) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

    

Operating, transfers in 

    

General Fund 

 

350,000 350,000 

 

Gaming Receipt Fund 845,000 845,000 845,000 

 

Total other financing sources 845,000 1,195,000 1,195,000 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over (under) expenditures 
and other uses (31,950) 216,921 24,669 192,252 

Fund balance at beginning of year 33,914 (176,229) (176,229) 

 

Fund balance at end of year 1,964 $ 40,692 $ (151,560) $ 192,252 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison ScheduIe 
16th JDC - St. Mary Parish Drug Court 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Original 
B ud get 

Final 
Budget  Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

   

Federal grant $ 12,625 $ 12,625 $ 7,090 $ (5,535) 
State grant 227,375 227,375 170,691 (56,684) 
Patient fees 4,000 4,000 6,042 2,042 

Total revenues 244,000 244,000 183,823 (60,177) 

EXPENDITURES 

Current 
Health and welfare 

    

PersonaI services and benefits 76,265 76,265 71,332 4,933 
Operating services 2,630 2,630 2,174 456 
Supplies 1,300 1,300 40 1,260 
Lab fees 6,000 6,000 

 

6,000 
PMT to Odyssey House 155,805 155,805 129,560 26,245 
TraveI 1,000 - -- 1-,000 

 

1,000 

 

Total expenditures 243,000 243,000 203,106 39,894 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 1,000 1,000 (19,283) (20,283) 

Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year 

  

46,492 46,492 

Fund balance (deficit) at end of year S 1,000 $ 1,000 S 27,209 $ 26,209 

•-

 

The accompanying notes are an intezral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Job Readiness Program Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
• Buduet Budget Actual (Negative)  

REVENUES 
Fees, Charges, & Commission $ - S - $ $ 

Total Revenues - - 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
Health & Welfare 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Fund balance at the beginning, of year 

Fund balance at the end of year 

    4,506 (4,506) 

$ - $ - $ 4,506 $ (4,506) 

The accompanying notes are an integal part of these financial statements_ 

159 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison ScheduIe 
Boat Landing Permit Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

Licenses & permits $ 20,000 S 20,000 $ 26,518 $ 6,518 
Fees, Charges, & Commission 26,900 26,900 33,752 6,852 
Investment earnings & interest 250 250 192 (58) 

Total revenues 47,150 47,150 60,462 13,312 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

    

Culture & Recreation 2,000 2,500 3,253 (753) 
Capital outlay 85,500 65,200 61,825 3,375 

Total expenditures 87,500 67,700 65,078 2,622 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (40,350) (20,550) (4,616) 15,934 

Fund balance at beginning of year 99,700 108,231 108,231 

 

Fund balance at end of year 59,350 $ 87,681 $ 103,615 $ 15,934 

The accompanying notes are an integal part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Housing Program 

For the Year Ended Deceinber 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Original 
Budaet 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

Federal grants $ 504,800 $ 504,800 $ 537,317 $ 32,517 
Investment earnings & interest 

  

89 89 
Total revenues 504,800 504,800 537,406 32,606 

EXPENDITURES 

Housing assistance and administrative 504,800 504,800 532,651 (27,851) 
Total expenditures 504,800 504,800 532,651 (27,851) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

  

4,755 4,755 

Fund balance at beginning of year - - 22,960 (22,960) 

Fund balance at end of year - $ $ 27,715 $ (22,960) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3,820 3,820 

$ 3,820 $ 3,820 

ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
DWI Court 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Variance 
Final Budget 

Original FinaI Positive 
Bud2et Budaet Actual (Negative) 

REVENUES 

Federal grant 
Total Revenue 

EXPENDITURES 

Health & welfare 
Total Expenditure 

Excess of (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance (deficit) at end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
DWI Court - Patient Fee Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budaet Actual (Negative)  

REVENUES 
Fees, charges, & commission 

Total revenues 
$  $ $ $ 

       

EXPENDITURES 
Health & Welfare 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

7,445 7,445 7,445   

$ 7,445 $ 7,445 $ 7,445 $ 

The accompanying notes are ari integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
OJP Enhancement Grant 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

REVENUES 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

    

Other revenues $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 141,430 S 41,430 
Total revenues 100,000 100,000 141,430 41,430 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current 
Health & welfare 100,000 100,000 183,297 (S3,297) 

Tota1 expenditures 100,000 100,000 183,297 (83,297) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

 

- (41,867) (41,867) 

Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year - 28,897 28,897 

 

Fund balance (deficit) at end of year $ $ 28,897 $ (12,970) $ (41,867) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
NON MAJOR - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

SALES TAX BOND SINKING FUND 

The Sales Tax Bond Sinkina Fund accounts for the Council's share of a one percent sales tax 
which is to be used for the retirement the 2011 bond issue totaling $6,865,000, the 2020 bond 
issue totaling $3,960,000, the 2020A bond issue totaling $1,500,000, and the 2021 bond issue 
totaling $1,000,000. Any amounts accumulated in excess of debt service requirements can be 
used by the parish for any lawful purpose. 

SALES TAX BOND RESERVE FUND 

The Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund is a reserve fund required by the 2011 $6,865,000 bond issue 
indenture. 

THREE-FOURTHS PERCENT SALES TAX BOND RESERVE FUND 

The Three-Fourths Percent Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund is a reserve fund required by the 2012 
$3,890,000 bond issue, and the 2015 $2,190,000 Sales Tax Refunding Bond Issue. 

THREE-FOURTHS PERCENT SALES TAX BOND SINKING FUND 

The Three-Fourths Percent Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund accumulates that portion of the three-
fourths percent sales tax needed for the payment of 2012 $3,890,000 bond issue, and 2015 
$2,190,000 Sewerage Sales Tax Refunding Bond Issue. 

ST. MARY PARISH LIBRARY SINKING FUND 

The Library General Obligation Sinking Fund accounts for the receipt of ad valorem taxes and 
payment of the 2009 $2,500,000 of general obligation bonds. 
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CERTIFICATES OF INDEB 1EDNESS SENT-KING FUND 

This fund accourits for the transfer of revenues for the repayment of the $600,000 Certificates of 
Indebtedness Series 2011, the $19,095,000 Limited Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2021, and the 
$600,000 Certificates of Indebtedness Series 2020. 

GOMESA DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND 

The GOMESA Debt Service Reserve Fund is a reserve fund required by the $11,500,000 
Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and Conamunity Development Authority 
Revenue Bonds (St. Mary Parish GOMESA Project), Series 2019. 

GOMESA DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The GOMESA Debt Service Fund accounts for receipts and transfers of GOMESA revenues for 
the repayrnent of the $11,500,000 Louisiana Local Goverrunent Environmental Facilities and 
Community Development Authority Revenue Bonds (St. Mary Parish GOMESA Project), Series 
2019. 
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$ 754,530 $ 127,823 $ 727,227 $ 611,802 $ 278,626 $ 171,295 $  535,461 $ 305,335 $  3,512,099 

145,739 $ s 
145,739 

107,771 $  • • $ - $ $ 253,510 

107,771 253,510 

ST. MARY -PARISH COUNCIL 

Combining Balance Shect 
Nonrnajor Debt Service Funds 

December 31, 2023 

Certificates GOMESA GOMESA Total 
Sales Tax Sales Tax 3/4% Sales 3/4% Sales St. Mary Parish of Debt Service Debt Nonmajor 

Bond Bond Reserve Tax Bond Tax Bond Lihruy Indebtedness Reserve Service Debt Service 
• Sinking  Fund . Fund Reserve Fund Sinking Fund Sinking Fund Sinking Fund l'und Fund Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 310;000 $ - $ 705,619 $ 335,000 $ 138,733 $ - $ 535,461 $ 305,335 $ 2,330,148 
Investments 43,510 228 2 827 368 44,935 
Due from other governments 401,020 139,525 540,545 
Advance to other funds 127,595 21,606 275,975  171,295 596,471 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

Liabilities 
Advance from other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund equity 
Fund balances 

Restrictecl for debt service 310,000 727,227 335,000 138,733 535,461 305,335 2,351,756 
Assigned for debt service 127,823 276,802 32,122 171,295 608,042 
Unassigned 298,791 298,791  

Total fund equity 608,791 127,823 727,227 611,802 170,855 171,295 535,461 305,335 3,258,589  

Total liabilities and fund equity $ 754,530 S 127,823 $ 727,227 $ 611,802 $ 278,626 $ 171,295 $ 535,461 $ 305,335 $ 3,512,099  

The accompanying notes nre ari integral part of these financial statements. 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Combining Statenient o ERevenues, Expenditures, and Changes ill Fund Balances 
Nonrnajor Debt Service Funds 

For the Year Ending Deceinber 31, 2023 

 

REV13NUES 

Taxes 

Sales Tax 

Sinking Fund 
Bond  

Sales Tax 3/4% Sales 3/4% Salcs 
Bond Reserve Tax B ond Tax Bond 

Fund Reserve Fund SinkingDind 

St. 11,i
i
a
b
ry
ra

P

ry

 arish 
L 

Sinking Fund 

Certificate • GOMESA 
of Debt Service 

Indebtedness Reservc 
Sinking Fund Fund 

GOMES A 

Service 
Fund 

T
Debt Norio.ntlaitijor 

Debt Service 
Funds 

      

Sales and use $ 2,235,565 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 5 $ 2,235,565 

 

Ad Valorem 37,027 

  

147,039 

   

184,066 

 

Investment earnings & interest 27,599 187 1,009 436 276 773 23,868 35,628 89,776 

 

Total revenues 2,300,191 187 1,009 436 147,315 773 23,868 35,628  2,509,407 

 

EXPENDITURES 

         

Debt service 

         

Principal 605,000 

 

665,000 - 145,000 960,000 

 

645,000 3,020,000 

 

Interest 124,576 

 

30,293 44,100 535,028 

 

476,520 1,210,51.7 

 

Fees 2,750 

 

2,850 400 1,900 

  

7,900 

 

Total expenditures 732,326 

 

698,143 189,500 1,496,928 

 

1,121,520 4,238,417 

O,, 
oo 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

1,567,865 187 1,009 (697,707) (42,185) (1,496,155) 23,868 (1,085,892) (1,729,010) 

         

Operating transfers in 

  

705,000 

 

1,506,000 

 

1,120,490 3,331,490 

 

Operating transfers out (1,400,000) . 

     

(1,400,00D 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,400,000) 

 

705,000 - 1,506,000 

 

1,120,490 1,931,490 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 

sources over (under) expenditures 

         

and other uses I 67,865 187 1,009 7,293 (42,185) 9,845 23,868 34,598 202,480 

 

Fund balance beginning of year 440,926 127,636 726,218 604,509 213,040 161,450 5'11,593 270,737 3,056,109 

 

Fund balance at end of year 608,791 $ 127,823 $ 727,227 $ 611,802 $ 170,855 $ 171,295 9 535,461 $ 305,335 $ 3,258,589 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
pe5,3e 1 01.8 

DISCRETELY PRESEN If ED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statennen.ts of Ne] Position- All thsczetely Presented Component Hurts 

December 31, 2023 

WATER & SEWER WATER& SEWER WATER & SEWER WATER & SEWER WATER & SEWER WATERWORKS 
COMMISSION # 1 COMMISSION # 2 COMMISSION #3 CON/SESSION #4 COMMISSION g 5 DISTRICT # 5 TOTAL 
OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH (PAGE 

OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 

      

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,476,390 $ 327,923 $ 8,260,548 $ 58,136 S 326,551 $ 30,667 $ 10,480,215 
investrients 

 

150,735 3,293.690 

    

3.444,425 
Receivables (net of allowances 

ibr uncollectibles) 

 

107,063 125,712 238.449 171,288 20,268 

 

662,780 
Other receivables 

 

571,200 

  

19,035 I9,346 

 

610,081 
Accrued interest receivable 

       

- 
Due: from component unit 

       

„ 
Duo from other governments 

 

27,507 

  

761,973 

  

789.480 
Prepad espenses 

 

34,646 14,792 38,975 34,947 10,553 

 

133,913 
Inventories 

 

152.417 182,672 

    

335,089 
Net pension asset 

        

Other assets 

Total current assets 

        

2,519.958 3,944,789 8,537,972 1,045,379 377,218 30,667 16,455,983 

Noncurrent Assets 

        

Restricted Assets 

        

Cash 

 

91,70I 24,212 233,002 379,937 22,166 

 

751,078 
tryttrtments 

  

215,029 

    

215_029 
Invtst in Berwick Bayou Vista hint 

  

379,673 

    

379,673 
Capital Assess 

        

Land and improvements 

 

205,726 51.709 22,155 6,926 108;237 16,500 411,253 
Buliclin., net of accumulated depreciation 

 

1,302,354 19,475 217,558 443,381 

 

2,551,654 4,534_422 
Improvements, other Man buildings, net 

of accumulated denreciation 

 

2,610,640 3,775,553 4,3O3,6IO 3,118,462 1,659,864 

 

15,673,129 
Equipment and furniture, net of 

accumulated depreciadon 

 

247,903 23,090 268,843 1,223,147 81,307 

 

1,843,290 
Infrastrucnire 

    

3,871,097 

  

3,871,097 
Construcdon in progress 

 

1,941,167 31,059 709,443 882.796 

  

2;984,465 

Total noncurrent assets 

 

6,599,491 4,519,800 5,259,611 9,844,746 1,871.574 2,568,154 30.663,376 

Total assets 

 

9,119,449 8,464.589 13,797,583 10 890,125 2,248,792 2,598,821 47,119,359 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

        

Debt redemption costs 
Related to pensions 

   

323,537 305,782 

 

92,018 721.337 

Total deferred oufflows of resources 

   

323,537 305,782 

 

92,018 721,337 

Total assets and deferred outlaws 
of resources S 9.119449 .8 8,464,569 S 14,121,120 8 11,195,907 $ 2,248.792 S 2,690,839 $ 47,840,696 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

        

AND NTT POSITION 

        

Current Laaltihnes 

        

Accountr payable 

 

313,529 $ 52,364 S. 144,605 $ 713,422 $ 32,426 

 

1,256.346 
Contracts payable 

    

20,987 

  

20,987 
Retainage payable 

 

82,021 

     

82,021 
Accrued liabilities 

 

146.330 

 

35.765 42.868 50.550 S 26.735 302,248 
Accrued interest payable 

        

Due to Sr Mary Pansh Cornier' 

 

47,589 64 998 

  

20,371 

 

132,958 
Due to component writs 

  

31,614 

    

31,614 
Thtu to other yovernments 

  

36,955 

 

313,655 

  

350610 
Payable from restricted assets 

 

91,701 224,650 234,642 226,027 

  

777.020 
Current poruou of long-term debt 

    

4.44.635 

  

444,635 
Other liabilities 

   

21,738 - 21,752 

 

43.490 

Tufa1 current bsbis 

 

681,170 410,58: 436,750 1.761,594 125,099 26,735 3,441.929 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

        

Compensated abseuctts 

   

72,157 136,959 

  

249,146 
Net pension liability 

   

248,651 157,775 

 

48,650 455,076 
Noncurrent potion of long-term debt 

    

2,633.886 

  

2,633,886 
Total noncurrent liabilities 

   

320.838 2,928,620 

 

48,650 3.298,108 

Total liabilities 

 

681,170 430,561 757.588 4,690,214 125,099 75,385 6,740,037 

Deferted Inflows of Resources 
Related to pensions 

   

78,560 39,838 

 

10,340 78,738 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

   

28,560 39,838 

 

10,340 78,738 

TOL1l liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources 

 

661,170 410.581 786,148 4,730,052 125,099 05,725 6,81 775 

Net Position 

        

Net insfastinent in capital assets 

 

0,507,790 3,900,886 5,026,609 6,366,260 1,849,808 2,568,154 26,239,535 
Rostricted for. 

capital protects 

       

- 

Ocht service 

    

153,910 

  

153,910 
Other purposes 

 

1,000,000 

     

1,000,000 
Unrestricted 

 

930,489 4,153.122 8.308,363 (74,343) 273,885 36,960 13.628,476 

Total net position 

 

8,438,279 8,054,008 13,334,972 6,465,855 2,123,693 2,605,174 41.021,921 
Total Liabilities, deferred inflow.3 of 

resources, and net position 9 9,119,449 $ 8,464,589 $ I4.121_12O  $ 11,195,907 $ 2,7.48,792 If 2,690,839  $ 47.840,696 
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ST. MARY PARISII COUNCIL 
page 2 of 8 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Net Position- All Discretely Presented Component Units 

December 31, 2023 

WARDS 5 & 8 
JOINT SEWERAGE 

COMMISSION TOTAL 
OF THE PARISH (PAGE 

OF ST. MARY ONLY)  

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 221,722 $ 221,722 
Investments 459,237 459,237 
Due from component units 50,809 50,809 
Due from other governnlents 193,006 193,006 
Prepaid expenses 25,106 25,106 
Other assets 2,402 2,402 

Total Current Assets 952,282 952,282 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital Assets 

Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation 330,739 330,739 
Improvements, other than buildings, net 

of accumulated depreciation 331,487 331,487 
Equipment and furniture, net of 

accumulated depreciation 164,701 164,701 
Construction in progress 28,802 28,802 

Total noncurrent assets 855,729 855,729 

Total assets 1,808,0I1 1,808,011 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to pensions 49,055 49,055 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

Total assets and deferred outflows 
of resources 1,857,066 $ 1,857,066 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

24,233 $ 24,233 
7,661 7,661 

Total current liabilities 31,894 31,894 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Net pension liability 36,059 36.059 

Total noncurrent liabilities 36,059 36,059 
Total liabilities 67,953 67.953 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to pensions 4,147 4.147 

Total deferred inflows of resources 4,147 4,147 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resouree,s 72,100 72,100 

Net Position 
Net invested in capital assets 855,729 855,729 
Unrestricted 929,237 929237 

Total net position 1,784,966 1,784.966 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows ot 
resources, and net position 1,857,066 $ 1,857,066 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
page 3 of 8 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statenwits of Net Position - All Discreteiy Presented Component Units 

December 31, 2023 

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLCDATED 
GRAVITY GRAVITY 

DRALNAGE DRAINAGE 
DISTRICT # 1 DISTRICT 4 2A 

OF 714E PARISH OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY 

WAX LAKE EAST 
DRAINAGE 
DISTRICT 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

SUB-GRAVITY 
DRAINAGE 

DISTRICT # 1 OF 
GRAVITY DRAINAGE 

DISTRICT 4 2 TOTAL 
OF THE PARISH (PAGE 

OF ST. MARY ONLY) 
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 

       

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

1.560,244 S 2,097.631 S 11,422 $ 6,943 S 3,676,240 
Investments 

  

1.623.367 1,620,078 

 

651.689 3,895,134 
Receivables (tiet of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 

   

8,946 

  

8,946 
Other Receivabfes 

       

Due from SL Mary Parish Council 

       

Due from component nnits 

       

Due from other governments 

 

25,426 

 

36.773 

  

62.199 
Prepaid expenses 

  

113.564 28.809 

 

10.715 153,088 
Inventories 

       

Net pension asset 

       

Other Assets 

  

257,250 

  

50 257,300 

Total current assets 

 

1,585,670 4,091,812 1,7(76,028 

 

669,397 8,052,907 

Capital Assets 

       

Land and Improvements 

 

8.600 2,789,972 

   

2,798.572 
Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation 

 

28,331 7,965 

  

486,103 522,399 
Improvements, other than buildings, net 

of accumulated depreciation 

   

26,011 

  

26,01 
Equipment and furniture, net of 

accumulated deureciation 

 

585,034 885,033 1,345,971 

 

53,963 2,870,00 I 
Infrastructure, net of accumulated depr. 

 

2.162,447 14,664.876 

   

16.827,323 
Construction in progress 

 

19,053 12,100,901 285,643 

 

137,482 12,543.079 

Total noncurrent assets 

 

2,803,465 30,448,747 1,657,625 

 

677,548 35,587,385 

Total assets 

 

4.389,135 34,540.559 3,363,653 

 

1,346,945 43,6.30.292 

Deferred outflows of resources 

       

Debt redemption costs 

  

215,283 

   

215,283 

Related to Pensions 

 

385,767 

    

385,767 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

 

385,767 215,283 

   

601,050 

Total assets and deferred oufflows 
of resources 

 

4,774.902 $ 34,755,842 $ 3,363,653 $ 1,346,945 $ 44.241,342 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

       

AND NET POSITION 

       

Current Liabilities 

       

Accounts payable S 69,596 $ 40,304 S 76,578 $ 17,801 $ 204.279 
Accrued liabilities 

  

56,147 

   

56.147 
Accrued interest payable 

       

Current portion of long-term. debt 

 

48,535 854,804 

   

903.339 

Total current liabilities 

 

118,131 951,255 76,578 

 

17,801 . 1,163,765 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

       

Compensared absences 

 

143,388 

    

143,388 
Net pension liabiiity 

 

291,269 

    

291,269 
Due to St. Mary Parisb CounciI 

       

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 

 

14,443 8,730,058 

   

8,744,501 

Total rionounvnt liabilities 

 

449.100 8,730,053 

   

9,179,158 

Total liabilities 

 

567,231 9,681,313 76,578 

 

17,801 10,342,923 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Related to pensions 

 

32.719 

    

12,719 

Total Deferred Inflows 

 

32,719 

    

32,719 

Total Liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources 

 

599,950 9,681,313 76,578 

 

17,801 10,375,642 

Net Position 

       

Net investment in capital asscts 

 

2,740,487 22,033,289 1.657,625 

 

677,548 27,108,949 

Restricted for: 

       

Debt service 

  

801,445 27,485 

  

828,930 

Other purposes 

 

18,581 

    

18,581 

Unrestricted 

 

1,415.884 2,239,795 1,601,965 

 

651.596 5,909.240 

Total net position 

 

4,174,952 25,074,529 3,287,075 

 

1,329,144 33.865,700 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
TeSallItes, and not position 

 

4,774,902 $ 34,755,842 S 3,363,653 S 1.346,945 $ 44.24E342 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
page 4 of 8 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statemects of Net Position. - All Discretely Presented Component Units 

December 31, 2023 

FIRE PROTECTION FIRE PROTECTION FIRE PROTECTION F1RE PROTECTION FIRE PRaTECTION 
DISTRICT g I DISTRICT i47 DISTRICT 4 3 DISTRICT 37 DISTRICT # II TOTAL 

OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH (PAGE 
OF ST. MARY OF ST MARY OF ST MARY OF ST. MARY OF ST MARY ONLY) 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Cun-err Assets 

           

Cash and cash equivalerns $ 165,768 S 32.345 $ 226,865 $ 116,048 $ 155,O36 S 696,062 
investments 

 

860,525 

 

198,595 

     

453,460 1.712,58O 
Receivables 01 et of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 

          

. 
Other receivables 

 

62,553 

        

62,553 
Due from other novemmects 

     

2107 

    

2,1O7 
Prepaid expenses 

   

3,O14 

 

48,164 

   

24,687 75,865 
Other assets 

     

1,489 

 

320 

 

1,182 2.991 

Total current assets 

 

1,083,346 

 

433,954 

 

278.625 

 

116,308 

 

634,365 2,552,153 

Noncurrsni Assets. 

           

Restncted Assets: 

           

Cash 

       

210,516 

  

21O,516 
Capital Assets 

           

Land and irnpro‘nrnenu 

 

84,479 

 

15,000 

 

477,5O8 

 

7.000 

 

29,437 613,424 
Buildings, net of accumulanni depreciation 
bnproveruentS, other than buildings, net 

of accumulated depreciation 

 

250,797 

 

165,586 

 

506,209 

20,108 

 

=116,916 

 

7,990 

10350 

1,347,498 

3O,453 
Equipment and furristure, net of 

accumulated depreciation 

   

1,031,47 i 

 

505_377 

 

704,903 

 

46,254 2,288,005 
Construction in progress 

           

Total noncurrent assets 

 

335,276 

 

1,212,057 

 

1,509,202 

 

1,339,335 

 

94,031 4,489,9O1 

Total assets 

 

1.424,122 

 

1,646.011 

 

1.787,827 

 

1,455,707 

 

728,396 7,042,059 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

     

87,475 

    

67,475 

Total deferred outflows 

     

87,475 

    

87,475 

Total assets and Deferred Outflows 
of resources 

 

1,424,122 S 1,646.011 S 1,875.3O2 S 1,455,7O3 S 728,396 $ 7,129.534 

ABILmEs. L)EFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

           

AND NET POSITION 

           

Ciurent Labrlrties 

           

Accounts payable 

 

1,175 S 68,523 

 

61,544 S 6,53I 

  

S 137,773 
Accrued liabilities 

         

11 7 I2 11,212 
Accrued interest payable 

   

842 

      

842 
Current portion of long-terrn debt 

   

52,898 

   

64,OOO 

  

116.898 

Total current liabilities 

 

1,175 

 

122,263 

 

61,544 

 

7O,531 

 

11,212 766,725 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

           

Net pension liability 

     

299,787 

    

299.287 
Noncurrent portion of long-temi debt 

   

161,285 

   

596,OOO 

  

757,285 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

 

161,235 

   

299,287 

 

596,000 

  

1,056,572 

Total. liabtltttes 

 

I,175 

 

283,548 

 

360,83 I 

 

666,531 

 

11,212 1,323,297 

Deferred Inflows of Resonrces 
Related to Pensions 

     

186,857 

    

I86,857 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

     

186,857 

    

186,857 

Total liabilities and deferred mflows 
of resources 

 

I,175 

 

283.548 

 

547,688 

 

666,531 

 

11,212 1,510,154 

Net Position 

           

Net investment in capital assets 

 

335.276 

 

997,874 

 

1,5O9,2O2 

 

468,819 

 

94,03I 3,4O5,2O2 
Restricted for 

           

Debt service 

       

21O,516 

  

210,516 

Unrestricted (defier° 

 

3,987,671 

 

36:4,589 

 

(181,588) 

 

1O9,837 

 

623,153 2,003.662 

Total net position 

 

1,422,947 

 

1,362,461 

 

1,327.614 

 

789,172 

 

717.184 5,619,380 

Total habilines, deferred inflows of 
resourcs, arid net position a 1,424,122 $ 1,646,O1i $ 1,875,302 S 1,455,703 $ 728,396 S 7,129,534 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
Nige 5 of 

DISCRETELY PR£SENTED COMPON'£Nf UNITS 
Combinirs Schedule orStatementu of Net Post ben - Ail Discretely Presented Component Units 

December 31, 2923 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT » 1 

OF THE PAP,ISH 
OF ST MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT 0 2 

OF THE PARISH OF 
OF ST. MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT 03 

THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

 

OF 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT 0 4 

THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT # 5 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT 4 7 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST MARY 

ATCHAFALAYA 
GOLF 

COURSE 

TOTAL 
(PAGE 
ONLY1 

        

Cash and cash equivalent $ 685,733 $ 1,292,721 $ 1,072,766 $ 34,550 S 89,398 $ 55,106 $ 107,782 $ 3.368,956 

Investments 375,632 

   

196,374 

   

572,006 

Receisables (net of allowances 
for uncollecn tiles) 

  

6,220 

    

32,650 38,870 

Other receivables 

       

16,430 16,430 

Due from other governments 44,304 43,220 

  

15.000 18,000 

  

120,724 

Prepaid dispenses 3,7I7 53,356 31,614 

 

23,298 

   

119,485 
Inventories 

       

44,433 44.439 

Net pension asset 

         

Other asset 

 

395 375 

     

680 

Total current assets 1,109,536 1,390,102 1,117,975 

 

269.222 107.398 85,106 201,300 4,250,689 

Noncurrent Assets 

         

Capital Assets 

         

Land and improvements 80.000 13,981 268,607 

 

22,000 66,500 

 

2.470 453,558 

Buildings, net of acmimulated depreciation 1,512,705 3,387,679 997,291 

 

902,914 1,354,365 

  

8,155,454 

Improvements, other than buildings, net 
of accumulated depreciation 

 

6.069 54,249 

  

144,254 

  

204,572 

Equipment and furniture, net of 
accumulated depreciation 37,797 186,010 2,065,273 

 

21,575 48.753 129,230 260,839 2749,477 

COrisLtcct ton m progress 

  

98,123 

     

93.123 

Deposu towards purchase &equipment 

         

Capittlised interest on purchase of equipment _ - . 

        

Total noncurrent aSSMS 1,630,502 3,593,739 3,483.543 

 

946,439 1 ,614,372 129,230 26.3:
-

3-09 11,661,134 

Total asset, 2,740,088 4,983,841 4,601,518 

 

1,2I5,711 1,721,770 214,336 464,609 15,941,873 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

         

Related to pensions 

   

1111,437 

   

101,437 

 

Toml deferred outflows &resources 

       

101,437 101,437 

Total Assets and Deferred Outilous 
of resource, 2.740,083 $ 4,983,841 5 4,601,518 5 1,215.711 $ 1,721.770 $ 214,336 S 166,646 $ 16,043,3I0 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 

       

Current Liabilimiz 

         

Accounts payatlo $ 9,713 $ 29,109 8 53,258 $ 13,457 S 22,488 

 

S 111,133 5 239.163 

Contract payable 

         

Other liabilities 

    

8,660 

 

50 5632 14,342 

I .esse obligation payable 

         

Current portiun oflong-teem debt 

 

167,000 143,000 

    

72.732 384,732 

Total current liabilitics 9,718 196,109 191.258 

 

22,I17 22,483 50 389,497 638,237 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

         

Net pension liability 

       

78,478 78,473 

Due to St. Mary Parish Council 

       

528,620 528,620 

Noncurrent ponion of long-lean debt 

 

1.669,000 

     

212.246 1,881,246 

Total noncurrent liabilites 

 

1,669,000 

     

319,344 2,488.344 

Total liabilities 9,718 1,865,109 199,258 

 

22,117 22,488 50 1,008,841 3,126,581 

Def wed Inflous of Resources 

         

U.eamed revenue 

         

Related to Pensions 

       

78,680 78,680 

Total defamed inflows of resources 

       

78,680 78,680 

Total liabilities and deferred 
intloss of resources 9,718 1.365,109 198,258 

 

22,117 22,488 50 1,087,521 3,205261 

Net Posifion 

         

Net investment in capital assets 1,630,502 1,757,739 3,338,543 

 

946,489 1,614,372 S 129,230 

 

9,416,975 

Restricted for: 

         

Caprial projects 

 

1,324,593 2,358 

     

1,32695 t 

Debi service 

 

137,912 61,031 

  

24.755 

  

223,699 

Unrestricted (deficit) 1,099.863 (10I,512) 1,001,323 

 

247,I05 60,155 85,056 (521,475) 1,870,525 

Total non porInc.r. (eefiat) 2.730,370 3.113,732 4,403,260 

 

1,193,594 1,699,282 214,286 (521,475) 12,838,049 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
rt.ources, and net position 2,740,038 $ 4,983.3A1 S 4,601,518 S 1,215,711 $ 1.721,770 S 214,336 $ 566,046 5 16,041310 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
page 6 of 8 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COM PON ENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Net Position-All Discretely Presented C pnient Units 

December 31, 2023 

HOSPITAL SERVICE HOSPITAL SERVICE. 
DISTRICT fie 1 DISTRICT # 2 TOTAL 

OF THE PARISH OFT1-IE PARISH (PAGE 
OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY ONLY)  

Assets ANL/ DEFERRED ODTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 

    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,291,714 $ 307,874 $ 6,599,588 
Investments 

 

4,323,550 

 

1,393.513 5,717,363 
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncollecobles) 

 

1,475,261 

 

10.291 1,485,552 
Other receivables 

 

8,743,370 

 

1,163A25 9,906,495 
Due from other governments 

 

7,945,144 

  

2,945.144 
Prepaid mrpenses 

 

781,564 

  

781,564 
Inventories 

 

663,346 

  

663,346 

Total current assets 

 

25,223,949 

 

2,875,I03 28,099,052 

Noncurrent .Assets 

     

Restricted Assets: 

     

Cash 

 

12,172,488 

 

1 1,184 12.183,672 
Investments 

   

72'3,791 723,791 
Other 

     

Capital Assets 

     

Land and improvements 

 

1,635,758 

 

118,210 1,753,968 
Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation 
improvements, other than louildings, net 

of accumulated depreciation 

 

25.846,675 

1,566,179 

  

25,846,675 

1,866,129 
Equipment and funuture, net of 

accumulated depreciation 

 

5.507,301 

  

5,507.301 
Construction in progress 

 

267,406 

  

267,406 

Total noncurrent assets 

 

47,295,757 

 

853,185 48,145,942 

Total assets 

 

72.519,706 

 

3,728,288 76,247,994 

  

13,025 

  

13.025 
D.Sc. in.] outflows of resources 

Debt redemption costs 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

 

13,025 

  

13,025 

Total assets anei deferred outflows of 
resOUrCes 

 

72,532,731 $ 3,728.288 S 76,261.019 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSMON 

     

Current Liabilities 

     

Accounts payable s 2.908,145 

  

S 2,908,145 

Accrued liabilities 

 

1,673,896 

  

1.673,896 
Accrued interest payable 

 

12.446 

  

12,446 
Due to other governmeuts 

 

80,914 

  

80,914 
Other Liabilities 

   

112,916 112,916 
Ciarent portion of long-term debt 

 

320,497 

  

320_497 

Total current liabilities 

 

4,995,898 

 

112.916 5,108,814 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Noncurrenr portion of long-term debt 

 

3,548,191 

  

3,548,191 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

 

3,548,191 

  

3,548,191 

Total liabilities 

 

8,544,089 

 

112,916 8.657,005 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Unearned revenue 

 

750,000 

 

1,163,125 1,913,125 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 

 

9,294,089 

 

1,276,041 10,570,130 

Net Position 

     

Net investment in capital assets 

 

31,254,551 

 

118,210 31,372,791 
Restricted for 

     

Capital projects 

   

734,975 734,975 
Debt service 

 

380,155 

  

380,155 
Other purposes 

     

Unrestricted 

 

31,603,906 

 

1,599,062 33.202,96& 

Total net position 

 

63,238,642 

 

2,452,247 65,690,889 

Total Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position 

 

72,532,731 $ 3,728,288 $ 76.261,019 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
page 7 of 8 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of statements of Net Position - All Discretely Presented Component Units 

December 31, 2023 

  

MOSQIJITO 

    

CONTROL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

ST. MARY ST. MARY PARISH DISTRICT g 1 DISTRICT - 911 TOTAL 
PARISH TOURIST OF THE PARISH OF THE PARISH (PAGE 

LIBRARY COMMISSION OF ST. MARY OF ST. MARY ONLY) 

ASSETS AND DEFER.RED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 

      

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,791,931 $ 1,144,515 $ 75,031 $ 499,337 £ 3,510,814 
Investments 593,890 1,494,885 231,968 

 

634,973 2,955,716 
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 2,591,305 

   

125,279 2,717,084 
Other receivables 

  

161,924 

  

161,924 
Due from other governments 35,562 103,025 

   

138,587 
Prepaid expenses 16,459 48,295 

  

49,116 113,870 
Net pension asset 

Total current assets 

      

5,029.647 2,790,720 468,923 1,308,705 9,597,995 

Noncurrent Assets 

      

Capital Assets 

      

Land and improvements 320,891 49,696 

   

370.587 
Buildings, net of accumulated depreciation 7,059,883 4,700,154 

   

11,760,037 
Improvements, other than buildings, net 

of accumulated depreciation 

 

132,522 

   

132,522 
Equipment and furniture, net of 

accumulated depreciation 796,110 33,132 

  

277,912 1,107,154 
Construction in progress 235,766 

    

235,766 

Tota1 noncurrent assets 8,412,650 4,915,504 

  

277,912 13,606,066 

Total assets 13,447,297 7,706,224 468,923 

 

1,586,617 23,204,061 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 656.467 

   

339 '73 995.738 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 656.467 

   

339,271 995,738 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow 
of Resources $ 14,098,764 $ 7,706,224 $ 468,923 $ 1,925,888 $ 24,199,799 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 

      

AND NTT POSITION 

      

Current Liabilities 

      

Accounts payable 23,370 $ 6,179 $ 11.876 $ 5,660 $ 52,085 

Aecrued liabilities 146,511 

   

42,220 188,731 

Current portion of long-term debt 

 

3,045 

  

73,118 76,163 

Total current liabilities 174,881 9,224 11,876 

 

120,998 316,979 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

      

Compensated absences 

    

19,482 19,482 

Net Pension Liability 465,673 

   

247,724 713,397 

Noncurrent portion of iong-term debt 

 

12,072 

  

366,388 178,460 

Total noncurrent habilites 465,673 12,072 

  

433,594 911,339 

Total liabilities 640,554 21,296 11,876 

 

554,592 1,228,318 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Re!ated to Pensions 66,358 

   

37,846 104.204 

Total Deferred inflows of Resources 66.358 

   

37,846 104,204 

Total Liabilities anti Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 706,912 21,796 11,876 

 

592,438 1,332,522 

Net Postton 

      

Net investment in capital assets 8,412.650 4,900,387 

  

38,406 13,351,447 

Restricted for. 
Economic Developrnent and Tourism 

 

692,823 

   

692,323 

Unrestricted 4,979,202 2,091,718 457,047 

 

1,295,044 8,823,011 

Total net position 13,391,852 7,684,928 457,047 

 

1,333,450 22,867,277 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
resouroes, and pet position $ 14,098,764 S 7,706,224 $ 468,923 $ 3,925,888 $ 24,199,799 
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ST. MARV PARISH COUNCIL 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT 'UNITS 
Combining Sehoinle of Sratmnents of Nnt Position - All Discretely Presented Component Units 

Deo:saber 31. 2023 

ST. MARY TOTAL 
ST. MARY PARISH TOTAL (DISCRETELY 

PARISH CLERK OF (PAGE PRESENTED 
ASSESSOR COURT ONLY) ENTITIES) 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 

   

Cash and cash equivalents 437,615 $ 938,752 $ 1,376,367 $ 29;929,064 
lnvesau®ts 4,445,402 '263.693 4,809,100 23 165,561 
Reczivables (net of allowances 

for =collectibles) 1.689.717 43.933 1.733.650 6,546.882 
Other receivables 

   

10,757483 
Due flora St Mary Parish Council 

    

Dee front component units 

   

50.809 
Due from OthET gOverunents 636 3,485 4,141 4,255,388 
Prepaid expenses 56,108 10.825 67.013 1.469,904 
Inventori 

   

1042.873 
Net pension asset 

    

Other ausets 

   

.263,373 

Total current assets 6,779.573 7,266.693 7.990,271 77,981,337 

Noncurrent Assets 

    

Restricted Assets: 

    

Cash 

   

13,145,206 
Investments 

   

938.820 
Other 1,524 

 

1,524 1 524 
[most na Berwick Bayou Vista Commission 

   

379..673 
Capital Assets 

    

Land and Improvements 

   

6.401.362 
Buildings. net M.o.:in-Related depreciaa® 

   

52.497.224 
Improvements. other than buildings, net 

of accumulated depreciation 

   

18,264,308 
Euuipment and furniture net of 

rtemmulatai depreniarion 24,694 38,614 63,308 16,593,237 
Infrastructure 

   

20.698,420 
Construction in progress 

   

16.157,641 

Total noneurrent assets 26.210 38.614 64,832 145..077,415 

Total assem 6,755.796 1,299.307 8.055.103 223,058,752 

Deferred outEows of resources 

    

Debt redemplicri Costs 

  

- 228,308 
Related to Pensions 621,629 659.033 1.290.567 3.621,476 

Related ta other postempla!mteut benefits 753,813 302,990 1.056.303 1.036,803 
Total deferred outflows of resources 7,375,442. 962,028 2337470 4.906.507 

Total assas and deferred mallows 
of asources 0.131.238 S 2.261.335 S 10.392,573 277,965,339 

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES. 

airreln 

ANI) NET POSITION 

   

ACC011iTtS payable 

 

5 6,167 $ 6,167 S 4,878.191 
Caatracts pmable 

   

20,987 
Retainage payable 

   

82,921 
A.ccrued I3.I37 

 

13,132 1253,027 
Accrued interest payable 

   

13.298 
Due to St. Mary Parish Council 

   

132,950 
Due to component units 

   

31,614 
Due to other governments 

   

431.524 
Pmuble from restricted assets 

   

777,920 
Other halalmes 

   

170,748 
Lease obligation payable 

    

Current portion of long-term debt 9,868 13,916 23.784 2,270.041 

Total current babilities 23000 20.083 43,085 11,011.426 

NIoneurrent Liabthues 

    

Compensated absenr,u 

 

20..680 20,680 392,596 
Other postemplmanent benefits 5.254,980 2,789,275 9,044.255 8,044,255 
Net pension habulay 746.366 1.677,148 2,423,514 4,297,080 

Due to St. Mary Parisb Council 

   

528,620 
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 13.782 2,353 16.155 17,759,704 

Total noncurrent abilitim 6.0/5,128 3,489456 10,504,584 ,1,02,355 

Total liabilium 6,038,128 4,509,539 10 547,667 42.053,781 

Deferred inflows of ',saurus 

    

UM:MX[17VMM 

   

1,913,125 
Deferred inflows related to pension 89.016 98.511 187.527 672.872 
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 1,677,765 1,256.200 2.933.965 2,933.965 

Total deferred intlaws of resourm 1,766,781 1,354711 3.121.492 5.519,962 

Total liabilities and detened inflows 
of resources 7304,909 5,864250 I3,669.1i9 47,553,743 

Net Position 

    

Net investment in capital 3.5.0.15 1.044 22,345 23,389 111,773.913 

Restricted for. 

    

Capital pnojects 

   

2.661,926 
Debt serve:0 

   

1,7117,20,9 
Other purrawo, 

   

I,711,494 
Unrestricted 3-b..285 (3,625.260) (3,299,975) 63,067,144 

Total net FO5irF011 326,329 (3.602,915) (3.276,506) 130,411,596 

Total liabilities. deferred inflows of 
resources. and net pasitinn 8,131.238 $ 2,261,335 $ 10,392,573 S 227.965.339 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Activities - All Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 3 I, 2023 

Exvensig; 
General government 

WATER & SEWER 
COMMISSION # I 
OF THE PAR1SH 

OF ST MARY 

WATER & SEWER 
COMMISSION # 2 
OF THE PARISI-1 

OF ST. MARY 

WATER & SEWER 
COMMISSION 0 3 
OF TI-IE PARISH 

OF ST. MARY 

WATER & SEWER 
COMMISSION -0 4 
OF TI-IE PARISH 

OF ST. MARY 

WATER & SEWER 
COMMISSION # 5 
OF THE PARTSH 

OF ST MARY 

WATERWORKS 
DISTRICT # 5 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST MARY 

TOTAL 
(PAGE 
ONLYI 

       

Water & sewer S2,513,981 $1,689,770 $2,717,750 $3,494,086 $834,842 3504,527 $11,754,956 
Interest and fees on long-term debt 

  

34,951 126,189 643 

 

161,813 

Total program expenses $2,513,981 1,689,770 2,752,731 3,620,275 835,485 504,527 $11,916,769 

Program revenues 

       

Charges for services 
Water & sewer 1,021,499 1,084,222 1,756,760 1,695,321 229,441 

 

5,787,243 

Total charges for reniCeS 1,02I,499 1,084,222 I,756,760 I,695,321 229,441 

 

5,787,243 

Net progam expenses (revennes) 1,492,462 605,548 995,971 1,924.954 606,044 504,527 6,129,526 

General revenues 

       

Taxes: 

       

Sales and use 

       

Ad valorem taxes levied 
for general purposes 626,165 827,354 1,075,140 651,091 410,461 

 

3,590,211 
Ad valorem taxes letied 

for debt service 

      

- 
investment eat Mugs & interest 10.857 124,212 329,233 513 2,074 66 466,955 
tiAseellaneous 

   

22,486 

 

3,257 25,743 
Intergovernmental . -rants 

   

761,973 33.792 

 

795,765 

Transfers in (out) 
Capital contributions 

 

(IO2,767} (220.000) 

  

252,569 (69,898) 

Total general revenues and transfers 637,022 548,799 1,184,373 1,436,063 446,327 256.192 4,805.776 

Special item 
Reco‘ery of bad debt 

   

(109,176) 

  

(109,176) 

Total Special Item 

   

(109.176) 

  

(109,176) 

Change in net position (855,460) 243,25 I 188,402 (598,067) (i59,717) (248,335) (1.429,926) 

Net position - beginning of year 9,293.739 7,810,757 13,146,570 7,063,922 2,283,410 2,853,449 42,451,947 

Prior period adjustment 

      

- 

Net position - beginning of year (ns adjugred) 9,293,739 7,810,757 13,146,570 7,063,922 2,283,410 2,853,449 42,451,847 

Net position- epri or year $ 8,438,279 8,054,008 13,334,972 6,465,855 $ 2,123,693 $ 2,605,114 $ 41,021,921 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Activities - A11 Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Expenses 

WARDS 5 & 8 
JOINT SEWERAGE 

COMMISSION 
OF THE PARISH 

OF ST. MARY 

TOTAL 
(PAGE 
ONLY) 

  

Water & sewer 995,503 $ 995,503 

Total program expenses 995,503 995,503 

Program revenues 

  

Charges for services 
Water & sewer 1,270,420 1,270,420 

Total charges for services 1,270,420 1,270,420 

Net program expenses (revenues) (274,917) (274,917) 

General revenues 

  

Investment earnings & interest 13,969 13,969 
Gain (loss) on disposition of asset (4,743) (4,743) 
Miscellaneous 2 2 

Total general revenues and transfers 9,228 9,228 

Change in net position 284,145 284,145 

Net position - beginning of year 1,500,821 1,500,821 

Net position - end of year $ 1,784,966 $ 1,784,966 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Activities - All Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2023 

CONSOLIDATED 
GRAVITY 

DRAINAGE 
DISTRICT # I 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY  

CONSOLIDATED 
GRAVITY 

DRAINAGE 
DISTRICT # 2A 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY  

WAX LAKE 
EAST 

DRAINAGE 
DISTRICT 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY  

GRAVITY-SUB 
DRAINAGE 

DISTRICT # 1 
OF GRAVITY 
DRAINAGE 

DISTRICT # 2 TOTAL 
OF THE PARISH (PAGE 

OF ST. MARY ONLY)  

Expenses 

    

Drainage $1,820,090 $1,971,728 S896,928 $348,807 $5,037,553 
Interest and fees on fong-term debt 

 

3I0,360 1.551 311,911 

Total program expenses $1,820,090 /282,088 898,479 348,807 5,349,464 

Operating grants and contributions 
Drainage 

  

51,531 51,531 

Total operating grants and 
contributions 

  

51,531 51,531 

Capital grants and contributions 

    

Drainage 

    

Total capital punts and 
contributions 

Net program expenses (revenues) 

    

1,820,090 2,282,088 846,948 348,807 5,297,933 

General revenues 

    

Taxes: 

    

Sales and use 

    

Ad valorem taxes levied 
for general purposes 1,594.996 2,237,300 952,071 291,105 5,075,472 

Ad valorem taxes levied 
for debt service 

    

Hote] Motel Tax 

    

State shared revenue 

  

33,926 33,926 
Special axsessments 

    

Investment earnings & interest 22,221 87,698 77,702 31,078 218,699 
Payment from St. Mary Parish Council 24.000 

  

16,720 40,720 
Miscellaneous 129,793 7,147 11,137 7,568 155,645 
Nonemployer pension contributions 7,052 

  

7,052 

Total general revenues 1,778,062 2,332,145 1,074,836 346,471 5,531,514 

Change in net position (42,028) 50,057 227,888 (2,336) 233,581 

Net position - beginning of year 4,357,419 25,024,472 3,059,187 1,331,480 33,772,558 

Prior period adjustment (140,439) 

  

(140.439) 

Nct position - bcginning of year (as adjusted) 4,216,980 25,024,472 3,059,187 1,331,480 33,632,119 

Net position - end of year 4,174,952 $25,074,529 $3,287,075 $1,329,144 $ 33,865,700 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT TJNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Activities - All Cliscreely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Expenses 

FIRE 
PROTECTION 
DISTRICT =4 1 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

FIRE 
PROTECTION 
DISTRICT # 2 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

FIRE 
PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 4 3 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

FIRE 
PROTECTION 
DISTRICT # 7 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

FIRE 
PROTECTION 
DTSTRICT # 11 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

TOTAL 
(PAGE 
ONL Y I 

      

General government $72,381 

    

$72,381 
Fire Protection 23,774 S314.096 $539,670 $378,096 $432,877 1,688,5I3 
Interest and fees on ]ong-terM debt 

 

12,905 (518) 

  

12,387 

Total progarn expenses $96,155 327,001 539,152 378,096 432,877 81,773,281 

Operating grams and contributions 
Fire Protection 19,534 

 

28,412 

  

47,946 

Total operating grants and 
contributions 19,534 

 

28,412 

  

47,946 

Net program expenses (revenues) 76,621 327,001 510,740 378,096 432,877 1,725,335 

General ravenues 

      

Taxes: 

      

Sales and use 

      

Ad valorem taxes levied 
for general purposes 57,128 268,144 411,339 4-44,029 465,671 1,646,311 

Ad valorem taxes levied 
for debt service 

      

Hotel Motei Tax 

      

Stare shared revenue 

      

Special assessmen 

      

Investment earnings & interest 40,970 18.758 

   

59,728 
Transfers: 

      

Operating 
Capital 

 

39,500 

   

39,500 
Transfer to Agency Fund 

      

State Grants 

      

Payment from St Mary Parish Council 

 

100,000 

  

51,393 151,393 
Payment to St Man" Parish Council 

      

Disaster Relief 

      

Gain (loss) on disposition of assets 

 

25,000 

   

25,000 
Special item-payment to St. Mary Parish Council 

      

Loss on investments 

      

Insurance recovenes 

 

13,873 

   

13,873 
Miscellaneous 2,137 1.375 377 3,039 21,644 28.572 

Total general revenues 100,235 466,650 411,716 447,068 538,708 1,964,377 

Special Item 

      

Transfer to St. Mary Parish Council 

      

Total Special Item 

      

Change in net position 23,614 139,649 (99,024) 68,972 105,831 239,042 

Net position - beginning of year L399,333 1,222,814 1,426,638 V0,200 611,353 5,380,338 

Nef position - end of year $1,422,947 $1.362,463 $],327,614 789,172 8717,184 5,619,380 
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D1SCRETEL,Y PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Activities - A1I Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 

Expenses 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT # 1 

OF THU PARIS[-1 
OF ST. MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT # 2 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT # 3 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

RECREATION 
DIS'1111CT # 4 

OF THE PARISI-I 
OF ST. MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT # 5 

OF THE PARISH 
OF ST MARY 

RECREATION 
DISTRICT # 7 

OF ThE PARISH 
OF ST. MARY 

ATCIIAFALAYA 
GOLF 

COURSE 

TOTAL 
(PAGE 
ONLY) 

         

Recreation $523,152 $949,841 $794,669 $363,514 $562,030 $1.7,556 $(,059,037 $4,269,799 

 

interest and fees on long-terin debt 

 

(20,560) 7,988 

   

2,057 (10,515) 

 

Total prograrn expenses 523,152 929,281 802,657 363,514 562,030 17,556 1,061,094 4,259,284 

 

Program revenues 

         

Charges for services 

         

Recreation 17,958 22,525 61,306 91,162 31,644 30,000 781,409 1,036,004 

 

Totai charges for services 17,958 22,525 61,306 91,162 31,644 30,000 781,409 1,036,004 

 

Operating grants and contributions 

         

Recreation 

  

100,000 72,125 

   

172,125 
O0 

Total operating grants and 

         

contributions 

  

100,000 72,125 

   

172,125 

 

Net program expenses 505,194 906,756 641,351 200,227 530,386 (12,444) 279,685 3,051,155 

 

General revenues 

         

Taxes: 

         

Sales and use 273,979 67,676 

     

341,655 

 

Ad valorem taxes levied 

         

for general purposes 154,014 704,020 708,746 127,521 383,562 

  

2,077,863 

 

Ad valorein taxes levied 

         

for debt service 

       

.. 

 

Investment earnings & interest 5,466 

 

9,338 

 

1,004 54 

 

15,862 

 

Payrnent frorn St Mary Parish Council 

    

18,000 

 

250,000 268,000 

 

Gain (loss) on disposition of assets 

  

508 

    

508 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

1,900 3,796 10,832 4,757 1,400 

 

22,685 

 

Nonernployer pension contributions 

      

1,900 1,900 

 

Total general revenues 433,459 773,596 722,388 138,353 407,323 1,454 251,900 2,728,473 

 

Change in net position (71,735) (133,160) 81,037 (61,874) (123,063) 13,898 (27,785) (322,682) 

 

Net position - beginning of year 2,802,105 3,251,892 4,322,223 1,255,468 1,822,345 200,388 (493,690) 13,I60,731 

 

Net position- end of year 2,730,370 $ 3,118,732 $ 4,403,260 $ 1,193,594 $ 1,699,282 $ 214,286 $ (521,475) $ 12,838,049 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Activities - All Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Expenses 

HOSPITAL 
SERVICE 

DISTRICT # 1 
OF TI-TE PARISH 

OF ST. MARY 

HOSPITAL 
SERVICE 

DISTRICT # 2 
OF THE PARISH 

OF ST. MARY 

TOTAL 
(PAGE 
ONLY) 

    

General government 

  

177,647 177,647 
Medical care $38,365,467 

  

38,365,467 
Interest and fees on long-term debt 176,462 

  

176,462 

Total prograrn expenses $38,541,929 

 

177,647 $ 38,719,576 

Program revenues 

    

Charges for services 

    

Rental fees 

  

88,142 88,142 
Medical care 29,284,658 

  

29,284,658 

Total charges for services 29,284,658 

 

88,142 29,372,800 

Operating grants 
11,664,611 

  

11,664,611 Medical 

Total operatirig grants and 
contributions 11,664,611 

  

11,664,611 

Non-operating Revenues 
3,763,437 

  

3,763,437 Medical 

Total capital grants and 
contributions 3,763,437 

  

3,763,437 

Net prograrn expenses (revenues) (6,170,777) 

 

89,505 (6,081,272) 

General revenues 

    

Taxes: 

    

Ad valorem taxes levied 
for general purposes 2,893,401 

  

2,893,401 

State shared revenue 

  

62,437 62,437 

Special assessments 

    

Investment earnings (loss) 200,024 

 

110,718 310,742 
Miscellaneous (133,387) 

  

(133,387) 

Total general revenues 2,960,038 

 

173,155 3,133,193 

Change in net position 9,130,815 

 

83,650 9,214,465 

Net Position - beginning of year 54,107,827 

 

7 368 597 56,476,424 

Net Position- end of year 63,238,642 $ 2,452,247 $ 65,690,889 
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DJSCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Activities - All Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2923 

Expenses 

ST MARY 
PARISH 

LIBRARY 

ST. MARY 
PARISH 

TOURIST 
COMMISSION 

MOSQUITO 
CONTROL 

DISTRICT g 1 
OF THE PARISH 

OF ST. MARY 

COMMUNI-

 

CATIONS 
DISTRICT-911 TOTAL 

OF THE PARISH (PAGE 
OF ST. MARY ONLY 

    

General goverrunent 

  

$4,209 $4,209 
Health and welfare 

  

136,850 136,850 
Library $2,836.317 

  

2,836,317 
Tourisrn 

 

5905,744 

 

905,744 
Public safety 

   

$1,096,856 1,096,856 
Interest and fees on long-term debt 

 

1,064 

 

1,064 

Total program expenses 2,836,317 S906,808 141,059 1,096,856 $4,981,040 

Prowarn revenues 

    

Charges for services 

    

Library 26,752 

  

26,752 
Tourism 

 

7,342 

 

7,342 
Public safety 

Total charges for services 

    

26,752 7,342 

 

34,094 

Operabng grants and contributions 

    

Library 12,637 

  

12,637 
Tourism 

 

412,793 

 

417,793 
PubIic safety 

   

5,997 5,997 

Total operating grants arid 
contributions I2,637 412,793 

 

5,997 431,427 

DIet program expenses (revenues) 

    

2,796,928 486,673 141,059 1,090,859 4,515,519 

General revenues 

    

Taxes: 

    

Sales and use 

   

919,773 919,773 
Ad valorem taxes levied 

for general purposes 2,831,619 

 

143,066 2,974,685 
Ad valorem taxes levied 

for debt service 

    

Hotel Motel Tax 

 

552,327 

 

552,327 
State shared revenue 37,213 

  

80,958 118,171 
Special assessments 

    

Investment earnings & intert 146,073 68,495 11,395 32,734 258,697 
State Grants 

    

Disaster Relief 

    

Gain (Loss) on Disposition of assets 

    

Miscellaneous 10.848 

  

1.023 11.871 

Total general revenues and transfers 3,025,753 620,827 154,461 1,034,488 4,835,524 

Change in net position 228,825 134,149 13,402 (56,371) 320,005 

Net position- beginning of year 13,163,027 7,550,779 443,645 1,389,821 22,547,272 

Net position - end of year $13,391,852 7,684,928 $457,047 S1,333,450 S 22,867,277 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNTIE 
Combining Schedule of Statements of Acownes All Discretely Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

 

ST. MARY 
PARISH 

ASSESSOR 

ST. MARY 
PARISH 

CLERK OF 
COURT 

TOTAL 
(PAGE 
014LY) 

TOTAL 
DISCRETELY 
PRESENTED 

COMPONENT 
UNITS 

Expenses 

    

General government $2,253,202 $1,435,219 S3,688,421 3,942,658 
Watec & sewer 

   

12,750,459 
Drainage 

   

5,037,553 
Fire Protecrion 

   

1,688,511 
Recreation 

   

4,269,799 
Health and welfare 

   

136,850 
Medical care 

   

38,365,467 
Library 

   

2,336,317 
Tourism 

   

905,744 
Pubfic safery 

   

1,095,855 
Interest and fees on long-term debr 

   

653,122 

Toral proDam expenses 2,253,202 1,435,219 3,638,421 71,683,339 

Program revenues 

    

Charges for services 

    

Gwen] government 72,164 1,759,560 1,771'324 1,771,724 
Water le stsreS 

   

7,057,663 
Recreac,r7 

   

1,036,004 
Rental fees 

   

88,142 
Medical care 

   

29,284.658 
Library 

   

26,752 
Tourism 

   

7.342 
Public safety 

Total charges for serwces 

    

12,154 7,759,560 1,771,724 39,272,285 

Operating grants and contributions 

    

Drainage 

   

51,531 
Fire Protection 

   

47,946 
Recreation 

   

172,125 
Media care 

   

11.664,611 
Library 

   

11,637 
Tourism 

   

412,793 
Public safety 

   

5,997 

Total operating grants and 
contributions 

   

12,367,640 

Capital grants and contributions 

    

Drainage 

    

Medical care 

   

3,753.437 
Tounsm 

    

Total /mprtal grants and 
contributions 

   

3,763,437 

Net program expenses (revenues) 2,241,038 (324,341) 1,916,697 16,279.976 

Genera/ revenues 

    

Taxes. 

    

Sales and use 

   

1,261,428 
Ad valorem taxes levied 

for general purposes 1,367,485 

 

1,367485 20,125,428 
Ad valorem taxes levied 

for debt servme 

    

Hotel Motel Tax 

   

552,327 
State shared revenue 55,049 

 

55,049 269,583 
Investment earnings (loss) 244,525 18,025 262,550 1,607.202 

State Grants 

    

Payment from St. Mary Parish Council 

   

463.113 

DIsesteT rebef 

    

Insurance recoveries 

   

13,873 

Gain (loss) on dispositron of asset 

   

20.765 

Special item-payment to St. Mary Partsh Council 

    

Loss on investments 

    

Inrernal Government Revenue 
yfiscelIaneous 4357 

 

4,357 115,488 

Intergovernmental gmnts 

   

795,765 

Nonemployer pension contributions 245,270 

 

245,270 254,222 

Transfers in (outI 

   

(69,898) Capital contributions 

Total general revenues and transfers 2,416,696 18,025 2,434,711 25,445,796 

Special itern 

    

Transfer to Sr Mary Parish COUIACJI 
R.ecovery of bad debt 

   

(109.1761 

Total special item 

   

(109,176) 

Chang,: in Posinien 175,648 342,366 519,(114 9,06,644 

Net positron - beginnin oryear 150,681 (3,945,281) 0,794,600) 171,495,391 

Prior period adjustment 

   

(140.439) 

Net peel:we- beginning of year (as adjusted) 150,651 (3,945,281) (3,794,600) 17I,354,952 

position - end of year 8326,329 $ (3,602,915) (53.276,536) $180,411,596 
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St. Mary Parish Council 
Compensation Paid Council Members 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Council Members at Large 

 

Gwendolyn Hidalgo $ 10,200 
Kristie Prejean, MD 9,600 
Dean Adarns 9,600 

Single Members: 

 

James Wallace Bennet, Jr. 5,400 
Mark Duhon 5,400 
Patrick Hebert 5,400 
J. Bertrand Ina 5,400 
Craig Alonzo Mathews 5,400 
Rodney Olander 5,400 
Robert Ramsey 5,400 
Leslie Rulf 5,400 

 

$ 72,600 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Reimbursements to 

Agency Head, Political. Subdivision Head, or Chief Executive Officer 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Parish President: David J. Hanagriff 

Purpose Amount 
Salary 12,000 
Benefits-Insurance 22,950 
B enefits-Retirement 1 ;380 
Cell phone allowance 1,440 
Automobile allowance 14,400 

Total 52,170 

Chief Administrative Officer: Jean Paul Bourg 

Purpose Amount 
Salary 96,259 

B enefits-Insurance 22,950 
Benefits-retirement 11,070 
Automobile allowance 4,800 

Total $ 135,079 

These amounts represent all compensation, benefits, and reimbursements for the year. 
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Coverage. 

ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
Scheduie of Insurance Policies in Force 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Amounts of Limits Palicv Term Company 

Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability $1,000,000.00 01/01/23- 01101/24 PGRMA 

Ferry-Hull and Machinery $75,000.00 05/15/23 - 05116/24 Continental Underwriters, Ltd. 

Ferry-Proteclion & indemnity $1,000,000.00 05/16123 - 05/15/24 Lloyds of London 

Equipment Floater $10,304,936.00 05115/23 - 05/15/24 . Continental Casualty Company 

Boiler & Machinery 633,641,60aC0 06/15/23 - 06/15/24 Conlinentat Casualty Company 

Property - Bums Point DvveilIng 524,000.00 06/26/23- Den8/24 Louisiana Citizens 

Airport liability $1,000,000.00 09/29123 - 09/29/24 Hallmark. Insurance Company 

Package Polley 

 

12/31/23 - 12/31/24 

 

**General Liability $3,000,000.00 12/31123 • 12/31/24 AmGuard Insurance Company 

**Auto Liability Coverage $1,000,000.00 12/31/23 -12/31/24 AmG ward Insurance Company 

**Public Entity Management Liability Coverage $3,000,000.00 12131/23 - 12/31/24 ArnGuard Insurance Company 

**Public Entity Employment Practices $3,000,000.00 12/31123 - 12/31124 ArnGuard Insurance Company 
(Liability Protection Coverage) 

   

**Employee Bonet Plans Administration $3,000.000.00 12/31/23 - 12/31/24 AmGuard Insurance Company 
(Liability Protecton Coverage) 

   

Property $10,160,000.00 06115/23 - 06/15/24 Louisiana Citizens 

Property $23,082,920.00 06/15/23 - 06/15/24 Maximum 

Property 625,350,000,0G 06/15/23 - 06/15/24 Peachtree 

Property X-Wind $Z 322,387.00 06/15/23 - 06/15/24 ROCCO 

Bond - Terry Foulcard $5,000.00 12/14/23 - 12/14/24 Travelers 

Bond - Name Schedule Bond $50,000.00 03/01/23 - 03/01/24 Travelers 

Bond - Pariah Prestdent $sa,o00.00 01111/22 - 01111/24 Western ButetY 

Bond - Paul Governate $40,000.00 07/3i/23- 07/31/24 Travelers 



ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Justice System Funding Schedule (Cash Basis) - Receiving Entity 

General Fund 
As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Receipts From: 

 

First Six Month 
Period Ended 06/30/23 

Second Six Month 

Period Ended 12/31/23 

  

Agencv Name Collection Type 

  

St. Mary Parish Sheriff Crirninal Court cost/fees 31,464 15,897 

Subtotal Receipts 

 

31,464 15,897 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Justice System Funding Schedule (Cash Basis) - Receiving Entity 
Witness Fee Fund 

As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 
For the Year Ended Decernber 31, 2023 

First Second 
Six Month Period Six Month Period 

Ended 06/30/23 Ended 12/31/23 

Receipts From: 

   

Aencv Name Co]lection Type 

  

St. Mary Parish Sheriff Criminal Court costlfees 40,577 26,558 

Subtotal Receipts 

 

40,577 26,558 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Justice System Funding Schedule (Cash Basis) - R.eceiving Entity 
Juror Compensation Fund 

As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

First Second 

Six Month Period Six Month Period 

Ended 06/30/23 Ended 12/31/23 

Receipts Frorn: 
A=cy Name Collection Type  

St. Mary Parish Sheriff Criminal Court cost/fees S 39,808 25,043 

Subtotal Receipts 39,808 25.043 
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St. Mary Parish Council 
Schedule of Expenditures of federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

FEDERAL 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ ASSISTANCE PASS-THROUGH 

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR NAME/ LISTING GRANT IDENTIFYING EXPENDITURES 

PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER NUMBER INCURRED  

U.S. Department of the Interior 
Bureau of Land Management 

Office of the Secretary of the Interior 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 
GoMESA 

Total U.S. Department of Interior 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Deve]opment 

15.226 
15.435 

  

8,165 
1,339,636 

1,347,801 

 

Passed through Louisiana Office of Community 

    

Deve]opment Disaster Recovery Unit 

    

Community Development Block Grants/States 
Program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 

  

66,125 

Housing - Fecleral Housing Commissioner 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 

  

532,651 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

   

598,776 

U.S. Department of Transportation 

    

Airport Improlvernent Program 20.106 

  

18,500 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Culture Recreation 
and Tourism Office of State Parks 

    

Recreational Trails Prouam 20.219 

 

(SEE NOTE 2) 6,681 

Total U.S. Departrnent of Transportation 

   

25,181 

U.S. Department ofjustice 
16.585 2018-DC-BX-0064 

 

183,299 Treatment Court Discretionary Grant Program 

Total U.S. Department ofjustice 

   

183,299 

U.S. Department of Treasury 

21.027 MFNKMAL7MFM8 

 

54,325 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 

 

Total U.S. Department of Treasury 

   

54,325 

194 



FEDERAL 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ ASSISTANCE PASS-THROUGH 

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR NAME/ LISTING IDENTIFYING EXPENDITURES 

PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER INCURRED  

U.S. Department of Health and Hurnan Services 
Passed through Louisiana Department of Health Office of 

Public Health Bureau of Community Preparedness 

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) 

   

Aliened Cooperative Agreements 93.074 

 

20.318 

Passed through Louisiana Supreme Court 

   

Drug Court Office 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 

 

8,792 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals 

   

Total U.S. Department of I lealth and Human Services 

  

29,110 

Department of Homeland Security 

   

Passed through Governor's Office of Homeland 

   

Security and Emergency Preparedness 

Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 (SEE NOTE 3) 123,476 

Passed throueh State of Louisiana Office of 

   

State Police 

   

Ernergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 

 

32,559 

Homeland Security Grant Progam 97.067 

 

41,611 

Total Department of Homeland Security 

  

197,646 

Total Primary Government Federal Financial Assistance 

  

2,436,138 

 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this schedule. 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is a sunnnary of activity of the Council's 
federal award programs presented on the basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles for fund accounting. In 2023, the Council did not charge nor allocate any indirect 
costs to federal awards. 

NOTE 2 - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Recreation Trails Prograrn (ASSISTANCE LISTING NUMBER 20.219) 
In the current year the Recreation Trail Program is funded 80% by federal funds. Total expenditures for 
the current year was S8,351 of which 56,681 qualifies for 80% reimbursement 

NOTE 3 - DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY  

Hazard Mitigation Grant (ASSISTANCE LISTING NUMBER 97.039)  

In the current year the Hazard Mitigation grant is funded 75% by federal funds. Total expenditures for 
the current year were $164,634 of which S123,476 qualifies for 75% reimbursement. 
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PITTS & MATTE  

a corporation of 

certified public accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

0N COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  

Chairman and Members of the Council 
St. Mary Parish 
Franklin, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, and the respective budgetary comparisons for the 
General Fund, Road Construction & Maintenance Fund, and Sanitation Fund, Statement of Fiduciary 
Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Council and have issued 
our report thereon dated August 15, 2025. We did not audit any of St. Mary Parish Clerk of Court 
which was audited by other auditors. This report includes our consideration of the results of the other 
auditor's testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and other matters that are 
reported on separately by those other auditors. However, this report, insofar as it relates to the results of 
the other auditors, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Council's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) for the basis of designing the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. 
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. We identified a deficiency in internal control described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as itern 2023-001 that we consider to be a 
material weakness. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Council's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items 2023-002, 2023-003, and 2023-004. 

St. Mary Parish Council's Response to Findings  
The Council's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Council's response was not subject to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is considered a public record and may be distributed by the 
Legislative Auditor. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

August 15, 2025 
Morgan City, Louisiana 
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PITTS & MATTE  

a corporation of 

certified public accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Chairman and Members of the Council 
St. Mary Parish 
Franklin, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited St. Mary Parish Council's (Council) compliance with the types of cornpliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Council's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
2023. The Council's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Council complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2  
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and  
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 
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We are required to be independent of the Council and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal prograrn. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Council's compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreemen₹s applicable to the 
Council's federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Council's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,  and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncoinpliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Council's compliance with the requirements of 
each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards,  and the Unifolin Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test ba.sis, evidence regarding the Council's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 
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o Obtain an understanding of the Couneil's intemal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
intemal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
fiinctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal progam on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis_ A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

August 15, 2025 
Morgan City, Louisiana 
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ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements of the St. 
Mary Parish Council's primary government. 

2. One material weakness was disclosed during the audit of the primary government financial 
statements that are required to be reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Perfonned in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

3. Three instances of noncompliance material to the primary government financial statements of the St. 
Mary Parish Council were disclosed during the audit 

4. No fmdings related to the audit of major federal award programs are reported as material weaknesses 
in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements that Could Have a Direct 
and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance. 

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the St. Mary Parish 
Council expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. No audit findings relative to the major federal award progams for the St. Mary Parish Council are 
reported in Part C of this Schedule. 

7. The programs tested as major programs include: 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (21.027) 
GoMesa (15.435) 

8. The threshold for distinguishing types A and B programs was $750,000. 

9. St. Mary Parish Council was not determined to be a low risk auditee. 
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B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

ITEMS RELATED TO THE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
(see items 2023-005, 2023-006 and 2023-007 for items related to Component Units) 

INTERNAL CONTROL FINDINGS 

MATERIAL WEAKNESS 

ITEM NO. 2023-001 Failure to Collect Certain Fees  

Auditors' Comments  

Condition: The Council sets a fee for garbage pick up service at residences and small businesses that is 
to be billed and paid monthly. The Council does not have a system to send monthly bills to end 
users. Because of this the Council has made ageements with various governmental entities (Water 
& Sewer Districts and municipalities) located in the Parish that normally bill their own customers on 
a monthly basis for utilities to also bill the Council's customers for the garbage pick up fee as well_ 
The agreements with the other governments allows them to_retain a small portion of the garbage pick 
up fee as compensation for perfornaing this service. The other governnaents then pay to the Council 
the net fees collected on either a monthly or quarterly basis. 

During the course of our audit procedures, we discovered that two governmental entities made no 
payments to the Council during 2023 and owed the Council approximately $99,100 at the end of 
2023. 

Criteria: The billing and collections agreements require the billing and collecting governments to remit 
the collected fees on a periodic agreed upon time fra.me. 

A sound internal control system over collections of revenues should include a monitoring system to 
insure that all amounts due are collected when due. 

Effect: Failure to properly monitor revenue collections on a periodic basis can result in lost revenues. 

Cause: The Council's internal control system in place failed to recognize when payments were not 
received from these entities. 

Recommendation: The Council should improve its monitoring of mounts owed to the Council by 
entities collecting revenues due to the Council. Further the Council should put this collection 
procedure in this area in writing. 

Management's Response: 
Subsequent to year end, the outstanding fees have been received. We will fine tune our control system 
in place to ensure all garbage fees from the governmental entities (Water & Sewer Districts and 
municipalities) are received and rnanagement will be informed when entities fail to remit timely 
payments. The Council will put collections procedures in this area in writing. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL FINDING 

NONCOMPLIANCE 

ITEM NO_ 2023-002 Budget Monitoring 

Auditors' Comnaents 

Condition: During the course of the audit for the year ended December 31, 2023, it was noted that some 
of the Parish's individual funds needed budget amendments that were not made. 

Criteria: State Statute require that budgets be amended when actual revenues are less than budgeted 
revenues by five percent or more or actual expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures by five 
percent or more. These conditions are explained in detail below. 

Effect: Failure to amend budgets to recognize anticipated shortfalls in funds prevents the governmental 
body fiom effectively curtailing projects and/or services in accordance with actual available 
resources. 

Cause: Although the cause of the above condition was not fully determined the following appears to 
have a significant effect. Although the Parish makes accruals for payables and receivables at year 
end, adjustments are not made in the interim period. When significant differences exist between 
payables and receivables from year to year, the amount of funds that appear to be available or costs 
that appear to have been incurred can be distorted. Failure to recognize the effect of these 
differences can lead to variances between budgeted and actual activity. 

Recommendation: The Council should fine tune its ongoing budget rnonitoring program to periodically 
consider accruals for major revenues and expenditures. 
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A more detailed description of the conditions and criteria is presented below: 

Auditors' Detailed Comments  

Notification was not made and the following budgets were not amended although actual revenues were 
less than budgeted revenues by five percent or more: 

 

Actual Budgeted 

  

Funds Amount Amount Variance Percent 
16th  JDC-St. Mary Parish Drug Court $ 183,823 $ 244,000 $ (60,177) 24.66% 
Road Construction & Maintenance Fund 4,254,702 5,365,755 (1,111,053) 20.70% 

Notification was not made and the following budgets were not amended although actual expenditures 
exceeded budgeted expenditures by five percent or more: 

 

Actual Budgeted 

  

Funds Amount Amount Variance Percent 
Jail Operating & Maintenance $2,591,939 $2,402,500 $(189,439) 7.89% 
Juror Compensation Fund 36,850 35,000 (1,850) 5.29% 
Fairview Treatment Center 96,894 

 

(96,894) 100% 
OJP Enhancement Grant 183,297 100,000 (83,297) 83.30% 
Housing Program. 532,651 504,800 (27,851) 5.52% 
Claire House 429 

 

(429) 100% 

Management's Response: 

    

We continually monitor budgeted and actual amounts throughout the year and during the budget 
amendment process we strive to project amounts as close as possible to anticipated year end results. 
With the lead time required for ordinance introduction and layover, as prescribed in our Parish Charter, 
it is sometimes difficult to anticipate revenues and expenditures through year end. We will continually 
monitor budget variances, especially close to year end, and recommended to the Council when 
variances exceed the percentages as specified in the State Statute. 
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ITEM NO. 2023-003 Fund Deficit 

Auditors' Comments  

Condition: During the course of the audit it was noted that three funds had a deficit fund balance. 

Criteria: State statute prohibits expending amou.nts in excess of fund balance, revenues, and other 
financing sources. 

Effect: Violation of state statute. 

Cause: For the special revenue funds and major funds, the Council expended amounts in excess of fund 
balance, revenues, and other financing sources. 

Recomrnendation: A detailed study should be made to develop additional or alternative funding sources 
or to consider reallocating existing funding. 

The following fund was in violation of state statutes and had a deficit fund balance at year end: 

Deficit 
Fund Amount 
Major Funds  

Road Construction & Maintenance Fund $(553,924) 
Capital Improvement Fund (504,890) 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund  
Jail Operating & Maintenance Fund $(151,560) 
OJP Enhancement Grant (12,970) 

Management's Response: 
The deficit in the Fairview Treatment Center and Claire House will be fimded by future revenues. The 
deficit in the Road Construction & Maintenance, Capital Improvements, and Jail Operating & 
Maintenance Funds will be funded by future revenues or fund transfers. OJP Enhancement Grant will 
be funded by opioid settlement in General Fund. 

ITEM NO. 2023-004 FAILURE TO FILE AUDIT REPORT ON TIME 

Auditor's Comments 

Condition: The Council's audit was completed and furnished to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
(LLA) within the required tinae frame of the approved LLA extension request. However, because the 
extension is a nonemergency extension a late finding is required to be reported. 

Criteria: Audit reports should be filed wi₹h the Office of the Legislative Auditor no later than six 
months after the entity's fiscal year end. 

Effect: Failure to complete and furthsh the audit on time violated state statue. In addition, management 
should be presented with timely audited financial information so that they can better mmmEe the 
Council's operation. 
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Effect: Failure to complete and furnish the audit on time violated state statue. In addition, management 
should be presented with timely audited financial information so that they can better manage the 
Council's operation. 

Cause: Due to a delay in receipt of information needed for Landfill calculations which was caused by 
the delay in receipt of a component unit's report. Therefore an nonemergency extension was requested 
and approved fiom the LLA. 

Recommendations: Component Units should submit all reports and requested information to the lead 
auditor in a timely manner to avoid the late submission of the audit report in the future. 

Management's Response: We will require all component units to submit reports and information needed 
to subrnit the audit report on time. 

C. FINDfNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 
AUDIT 

NONE 
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B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STA1EMENT AUDIT 

ITEMS RELATED TO COMPONENT UNITS  

INTERNAL CONTROL  

ITEM NO. 2023-005 APPLICATION OF GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)  

Auditors' Comments  

Condition: Management and staff lack the training and expertise in the selection and application of 
GAAP in the financial statement preparation process. 

Criteria: A deficiency in the design of internal control exist when the persons responsible for the 
accounting and reporting function lacks the skills and knowledge to apply generally accepted 
accounting principles in recording the entity's financial tiansactions or preparing its financial 
statements." 

Cause: Those in charge of the preparation of the financial statements and related notes do not have 
sufficient skills in the application of GAAP. 

Effect: It is possible that the financial statements and related supporting transactions may have a 
significant departure from generally accepted accounting principles. 

The above comment is considered to be a material weakness for the following component units except 
for Recreation District No. 5, for which it is considered a significant deficiency. 

Water & Sewer Commission No. 3 
Water & Sewer Commission No. 4 
Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewer Commission 
Wax Lake East Drainage District 
Fire Protection District No. 3 
Fire Protection District No. 11 
Recreation District No. 1 
Recreation District No. 3 
Recreation District No. 5 
St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission 
St. Mary Parish Communications District 
Water & Sewer Commission No. 5 
Hospital District No. 1 

Management Response: 

Management has determined that the cost of employing in house personnel with this expertise exceeds 
the benefit. 
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ITEM NO. 2023-006 - SEGREGATION OF DUTIES  

Auditors' Comments: 

Condition: While performing audit tests and inquiring about internal control, it was discovered that 
there is very little segregation of duties within twenty-two of the component units. 

Criteria: Ordinarily, the accounting duties performed in an organization are segregated to reduce 
possible errors or irregularities that could occur in the accounting records and not be detected. 

Effect: Lack of segregation of duties increases the risk that errors or irregularities may occur and not be 
prevented or detected. 

Cause: Generally the Component Units have limited personnel. 

The above comment is considered to be a material weakness for all the following component units: 

Water & Sewer Commission No. 1 
Water & Sewer Commission No. 2 
Water & Sewer Commission No. 4 
Wards 5 & 8 Joint Sewerage Commission 
Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 1 
Wax Lake East Drainage District 
Sub-Gravity Drainage District No. 1 of Gravity Drainage District No. 2 
Fire Protection District No. 2 
Fire Protection District No. 3 
Fire Protection District No. 11 
Recreation. District No. 1 
Recreation District No. 3 
Recreation District No. 4 
Atchafalaya Golf Course Commission 
Hospital Service District No. 1 
St. Mary Parish Tourist Commission. 
Waterworks Commission No. 5 
Water & Sewer Commission No. 5 

Management's Response: 
We have reviewed this situation and have decided that the additional controls derived by employing an 
additional person in our bookkeeping area is outweighed by the additional personnel costs. 
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ITEM NO. 2023-007 - PROPOSED AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS 

Auditors' Comments: 

Condition and Criteria: The proposed audit adjustments for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 
for Hospital Service District No. 1 (Hospital) had material effects on the financial statements. The 
proposed audit adjustments primarily consisted of adjustments to record the effects of Medicaid and 
Medicare cost reports, filed subsequent to the year end. 

Cause: The filing of annual Medicare and Medicaid cost reports result in settlements either due to or 
from the Hospital. These settlements result from complex calculations, many variables, several 
payors, aud the use of third-party data that is often not complete until several months after year end. 
These factors make it difficult to properly estimate and record cost report settlements. The Hospital 
is conservative in its cost report estimates. 

Effect: The Hospital's financial statements have been adjusted to reflect all proposed audit journal 
eritries approved by management. 

Recommendation: Management should perform a comprehensive review of financial statements, 
estimates, and journal entries before closing the fiscal year. 

Management Response: 
The Hospital's CFO continues to perform a comprehensive review of the Hospital's financial statements 
and estimates, particularly those involving Medicare and Medicaid cost report settlement accounts prior 
to closing the fiscal year. In addition, the CFO reviews journal entries and reconciliations. The Hospital 
maintains a conservative position as it relates to recording estimated cost report settlements. As in prior 
years, some Medicaid cost reports from earlier years, particularly those from the former "Coordinated 
Care Network" entities were settled for amounts different from estimates that the Hospital recorded 
when those cost reports were subrnitted. The Hospital will change the timing of reviews, where feasible, 
to quarterly or semi-annually to try to minimize the number of proposed audit adjustments. 
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C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 

RELATED TO COMPONENT UNITS 

NOT APPLICABLE 
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RELATED CORRECTIVE 
ACTION PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT OF ST_ MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Items of Noncompliance 

Item No. 2022-001 Budget Monitoring 

Condition: During the course of the audit for the year ended December 31, 2022, it was noted that 
several of the Parish's individual funds needed budget amendments that were not rnade. 

Corrective Action: This has not been corrected. 

Item No. 2022-002 Fund Deficits  

Condition: During the course of the audit, it was noted that one fund had a deficit fund balance. 

Corrective Action: This has not been corrected. 

Item No. 2022-003 Failure to File Audit Report on Time 

Condition: The Council's audit was not completed and furnished to the Louisiana Auditor within the 
required timeframe. 

Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 
NONE 
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RELATED CORRECTIVE 
ACTION PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT OF ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

(continued) 

ITEMS RELATED TO COMPONENT UNITS  

INTERNAL CONTROL  

ITEM NO. 2022-004 APPLICATION OF GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) 

Auditors' Comments 
Condition: Management and staff lack the trafning and expertise in the selection and application of 

GAAP in the financial statement process. 

Corrective Action: This finding has not been corrected_ 

ITEM NO. 2022-005 SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 
Auditors' Cornments  

Condition: While performing audit tests and inquiring about internal control, it was discovered that 
there is very little segegation of duties within twenty-three of the Component Units. 

Corrective Action: This finding has not been corrected. 

ITEM NO. 2022-006 PROPOSED AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS 
Auditor's Comments  

Condition: The proposed audit adjustments for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 for Hospital 
Service District No. I had a material effect on their financial statements. 

Corrective Action: This finding has not been corrected_ 

ITEM NO. 2022-007 — Collateralization 
Auditor's Comments  

Condition: As per R.S. 39:1225, the amount of the security must at all times be 100% of the funds on 
deposit except that portion insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 

Corrective Action: This finding has been corrected. 

ITEM NO. 2022-008 AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES  
Auditor's Comments  

Condition: It was found that former Chief Financial Officers were still listed as authorized signatures on 
several of the Hospital's bank accounts subsequent to employment at the Hospital. In addition, those 
electronic signatures were used to disburse funds several months after the end of employment. 

Corrective Action: This finding has been corrected. 
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN PREPARED BY MANAGEM_ENT 
OF 

ST. MARY PARISH COUNCIL 

Item No. 2023-001 Failure to Collect Certain Fees 

Correction Action: Subsequent to year end, the outstanding fees have been received. We will fine tune 
our control system in place to ensure all garbage fees from the governinental entities (Water & Sewer 
Districts and Municipalities) are received and management will be in formed when entities fail to remit 
timely payments. The Council will put collection procedures in this area in writing. 

Item No. 2023-002 Budget Monitoring 

Corrective Action 
We continually monitor budgeted and actual amounts throughout the year and during the budget 
amendment process we strive to project amounts as close as possible to anticipated year end results. 
With the lead time required for ordinance introduction and layover, as prescribed in our Parish Charter, 
it is sometimes difficult to anticipate revenues and expenditures through year end. We will continually 
monitor budget variances, especially close to year end, and recommend to the Council when variances 
exceed the percentage as specified in the State Statute. 

Item 2023-003 Fund Deficit 

Corrective Action 
The deficit in the Fairview Treatment Center and Claire House will be funded by future revenues. The 
deficit in the Road Construction & Maintenance, Capital Improvement, and Jail Operating & 
Maintenance fund will be funded by future revenues or fund transfers. OJP Enhancement Grant will be 
funded by fees from the Opioid Settlement in General Fund. 

Item No. 2023-004 Failure to File Audit Report on Time 

Corrective Action 
One of our component units was unable to complete their audit report on time which delayed the 
completion of our Reporting Entity Report. In the future, we will closely monitor our component units 
to insure timely subrnission of their audit reports. 

Item's No.'s 2023-005. 2024-006, 2023-007 

Corrective Action 
These items are related to our component units and have been answered by their management in separate 
reports. 
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